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			   •	 Strategy 1	 Improving operational integrity and transparency in order to achieve sustainable  
							      strategic goals (totaling 1 project);

			   •	 Strategy 2	 Strengthen work systems/management procedures to increase efficiency, be 
							      transparent and verifiable, and avoid corruption (totaling 3 projects);

			   •	 Strategy 3	 Promoting knowledge development and encouraging CG engagement from all  
							      stakeholders in order to create a corporate culture (totaling 2 projects). 
							      As of December 31, 2021, the Bank had completed 6 projects.

		  2.2	 CG in Process The implementation of good governance was consistent with the Integrity and 
Transparency Assessment (ITA) criteria. The Bank also organized training sessions for executives and employees on 
good corporate governance, ethics, and the Bank’s code of conduct via the E-learning system. Specifically, there 
is a motivation to create an organizational culture that develops both smart people, good people, and volunteers 
with clearly defined Do & Don’t behaviors in order to train the Bank’s personnel to adhere to it until it becomes an 
organizational culture that the Bank has developed by arranging activities to transform the corporate culture into 
an integrity culture.

		  2.2.1	 Meeting with MD activity 2021 A quarterly activity was organized in a new two-way  
communication event where the President informed the employees throughout the organization of key performance 
advancements. This event allows employees to ask questions in a friendly way with executives and employees  
attending the event in order to follow up on various movements occurring within the organization through  
Telepresence and FB: GHB Info Supermarket which allow executives and employees from every branch nationwide 
to ask and answer questions in a friendly manner, exchange ideas and suggestions to jointly develop the organization 
and enhance participation in promoting good corporate governance. The Meeting with MD activity No. 1/2564 in the  
New Normal form was held via SMART Radio with live broadcasts for employees countrywide to watch via  
Facebook GHB Info Supermarket to update major topics that employees should be aware of, such as: leading the  
GHB towards becoming Digital Banking with 4 new cities that are expected to be fully developed by 2021, consisting 
of: 1. Application GHB ALL Excellent; 2. GHB Buddy; 3. Application G H Bank Smart NPA; and 4. Application G H Bank 
Smart NPL; an overview of new loan issuance, which is anticipated to reach 100,000 billion baht within the 2nd quarter 
in order to accomplish the objectives of 215,000 million baht by the end of 2021, providing guidelines for assisting 
customers impacted by the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic situation in preventing NPL; notifying 
personnel of the status of COVID-19 vaccine procurement by providing the opportunity to personnel working in the 
head office and branches around the country to discuss questions over the phone and to listen to the President’s 
real-time response; and allowing personnel to ask questions via Facebook GHB Info Supermarket, which has about 
900 concurrent viewers of the live program, and also including 4 employees from the Marketing Business Unit, Branch 
Business Unit Information Technology Unit, Debt Restructuring Unit, serving as MCs in this event. This event took 
place at the Smart Radio Room, Corporate Communications Department, Floor 2, Building 1, Headquarter.

Meeting with MD activity 2021
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		  2.2.2	 2021 CG&CSR Day The Bank organized the CG&CSR Day 2021 on December 13, 2021 by  
Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr, the Bank Director serving as the Chairman of the Corporate Governance and Corporate Social  
Responsibility (CG&CSR) committee, presided over the opening ceremony of G H Bank: CG&CSR Day 2021  
“CG for Sustainable Growth”. In this regard, the Bank, in collaboration with the Regulatory Operations Club of the 
Government Financial Institutions Association, organized this event for government financial institution personnel to 
have knowledge and understanding of development operations in accordance with the principles of Good Corporate 
Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility as Mr. Chatchai Sirilai, President and Chairman of the Association of 
State Financial Institutions, gave a speech on the topic of “CG for SFIs’s Sustainable Growth”. Mr. Prachak Boonyang,  
Thailand’s Auditor-General, was honored to give a speech on the topic of “The State Audit for Sustainable Development”  
and Mr. Niwat Chaikasemmongkol, the Secretary-General of the National Anti-Corruption Commission, gave a speech 
on the topic of “Direction of Moral Assessment and Transparency in the Operation of Government Agencies”, 
along with Khun Thidaporn Mekingthong, Senior Executive Vice President, Operation Unit and Acting Executive Vice  
President, Legal Group, Secretary of the CG&CSR Committee and Chairman of the Financial Institutions Supervision 
Club of the State, said the report on Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility for the year 2021.  
In addition, there were also the executives of 8 government financial institutions, consisting of Government Housing Bank 
(G H Bank), Bank for Agriculture and Agricultural Cooperatives (BAAC), Government Savings Bank (GSB), Krung Thai Bank  
(KTB), Export-Import Bank of Thailand (EXIM BANK), Small and Medium Enterprise Development Bank of Thailand  
(SME Bank), Islamic Bank of Thailand (iBank) and Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation (TCG) attending the event.  
Additionally, there was a “CSR: Cloth Bag to Save the World D.I.Y by G H Bank” activity in which the Bank Executives 
Directors from the 8 financial institutions, and the Bank’s personnel worked together to produce the handmade 
cloth bags to be given to hospitals in the wilderness areas for packing medications and medical supplies to patients 
instead of using plastic bags to limit the quantity of greenhouse gas emissions into the world’s atmosphere from 
plastic manufacture and disposal, thus contributing to the reduction of global warming concerns. Participants also 
received souvenir pineapple cheese tart cookies from Ban Wang Phong Community, Prachuap Khiri Khan Province, 
which is one of the communities supported by the Bank in the 1 Career for 1 Community for Community Growth 
and Sustainability, and the Project of Repair Housing for Low-Income Earners, known as the Bank on Bank project. 
The event was held at the Vimanmek Room, 3rd floor, Building 2, Government Housing Bank Headquarters and was 
streamed live on Facebook GHB info Supermarket for all personnel in all branches around the nation to attend 
simultaneously.

2021 CG&CSR Day
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Internal Public relations media on excellent governance

G H Bank Corporate Governance Principles and Code of conduct

		  2.2.5	 Publication of articles, news, activities on good governance via the Bank’s website,  

internal e-mail, FB: GHB Info Supermarket, and Meeting With MD group. Furthermore, corporate governance actions 

were publicized to emphasize on anti-corruption efforts.

		  2.2.6)	 Cooperating with external agencies to promote and develop good governance following 

best practice and collaboration between state enterprises network and external agencies.

		  2.2.7)	 Sharing and storing knowledge on good corporate governance, ethics and codes of 

conduct in a modern format. The Bank’s understanding of corporate governance has been incorporated into  

the Bank’s KMS system. 
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Name Position Source

1. - Chairman -

2. Mr. Chanvit Nakburee Director
Representative of the Ministry of
Finance, (In the list of state enterprise 
directors prepared by the Ministry
of Finance)

Approved by Ministry of Finance,
effective October 28, 2021
* According to the Government Housing  
Bank Act

3. Ms. Patcharee Arayakul Director
Representative of Ministry of Social 
Development and Human Security,
(In the list of state enterprise directors 
prepared by the Ministry of Finance)

Approved by Ministry of Social
Development and Human Security, 
effective October 22, 2019
* According to the Government Housing  
Bank Act

4. Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr Director
(Independent Director)

According to the Cabinet resolution on 
March 23, 2021

5. Mr. Krit Sesavej Director
(Independent Director)
(In the list of state enterprise directors 
prepared by the Ministry of Finance)

According to the Cabinet resolution on 
March 23, 2021

6. Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont Director
(Independent Director)

According to the Cabinet resolution on 
March 23, 2021

7. Associate Professor
Dr. Thanavath Phonvichai

Director
(Independent Director)
(In the list of state enterprise directors 
prepared by the Ministry of Finance)

According to the Cabinet resolution on 
March 23, 2021

8. Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng Director
(Independent Director)
(In the list of state enterprise directors 
prepared by the Ministry of Finance)

According to the Cabinet resolution on 
March 23, 2021

9. Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse Director
(Independent Director)

According to the Cabinet resolution on 
March 23, 2021

10. Mr. Chatchai Sirilai Director
(In the list of state enterprise directors 
prepared by the Ministry of Finance)

President *
According to the Government Housing  
Bank Act

Remark	 *	 The Government Housing Bank Act, B.E. 2496 (1953), amended by the Government Housing Bank Act (No. 4), B.E. 2562, Section 13 stipulates  
that the Bank’s Board of Directors includes the Chairperson, a Ministry of Finance representative, a Ministry of Social Development and 
Human Security representative and at least four other Directors but not exceeding seven. The Bank President will automatically be a director.
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•	 Board of Directors’ Authority

	 The Board of Directors is authorized to supervise, control, and facilitate all Bank businesses according 

to the Government Housing Bank Act B.E. 2496 (1953), Section 17, 18, 27 and others, amended by Declaration of  

Revolution Council No. 317 dated December 13, 1972 and the Government Housing Bank Act (No 3), B.E. 2549 (2006). 

and The Government Housing Bank Act (No. 4) B.E. 2562 (2019)

	 1.	 Operate business to promote and support people to have buildings and/or land for living in  

compliance with the objectives of establishing the Government Housing Bank under the Government 

Housing Bank Act.

	 2. 	Establish meeting regulations and operations of the Board of Directors and Executive Board.

	 3.	 Determine operational regulations of the Bank’s employee.

	 4. 	Determine the Bank operational regulations.

	 5. 	Responsible for appointment and removal of bank employees, determining remuneration for managers  

and employees as well as demanding performance guarantees from employees to ensure that  

they will perform their duties honestly. The determining remuneration for manager’s salary must be  

approved by the Minister.

	 6. 	Operate business in accordance with the policy set by the Cabinet.

• 	 Nomination and Appointment of the Bank’s Board of Directors

	 The Bank’s Board of Director Nomination policy is applied as a guideline for the nomination of the Bank’s 

non-officio directors in order to have a person with good qualifications, knowledge, abilities and expertise that are 

beneficial to long - term operations and in accordance with the Bank’s operational mission and strategy, leading to 

a sustainable development of the organization. For the nomination and appointment process, the Bank’s Board of 

Directors assigns the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to proceed as follows:

	 1. 	 Consider and nominate a suitable person to be the Bank’s non-officio director from the recommendation  

of the Bank’s Directors and/or from the list of state enterprise directors of the Ministry of Finance and/or other 

methods as the Nomination and Remuneration Committee deems appropriate.

	 2. 	 Consider and select qualified candidates by taking into account the proportion of appointments 

of non-officio directors which will be considered from the list of state enterprise directors and experiences in the 

business sector which are not less than one-third of the total non-officio directors.

	 3. 	 Select a person who possesses knowledge, competence, expertise and experiences by using the Board 

Skill Matrix. (The Bank reviews the Board Skill Matrix annually to be in line with the Bank’s mission and strategy).

	 4. 	 Screen the qualifications of nominees or request the nominated person to examine his or her  

qualifications and prohibited characteristics. The Bank will select a person who has appropriate qualifications and 

does not have any prohibited characteristics for being the Bank’s non-officio directors prescribed in the relevant laws.

	 5. 	 Present a list of nominees to the Bank’s Board of Directors before submitting to the authorized person 

to appoint the Bank’s directors for approval.

Remark :	 The Government Housing Bank Act, B.E. 2496 (1953) and its amendments, Section 13 paragraph two, 

		  the Cabinet is the appointee of the Chairman and other directors.
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•	  Independent Directors

	 The Bank defines independent directors as “External members who are neither the Ministry of Social 
Development and Human Security representatives, the Ministry of Finance representative, the Ministry of Finance 
officers nor the Bank’s President”. Each independent director must sign an independent letter of certification  
annually. An Independent Director must meet the following criteria:

	 1. 	 An Independent director is outside director who is neither the Ministry of Social Development and 
Human Security representatives, the Ministry of Finance representative, the Ministry of Finance officers nor the Bank’s 
President.

	 2. 	 Independent from management team and regulatory agencies.

	 3. 	 No business relationship or work related to the Bank which has an effect in a manner that may  
impede the exercise of discretion and independent judgment.

	 4. 	 Have no participation in the Bank’s management. He or she shall not receive a regular salary from 
the Bank unless the duties stipulated by law or the Bank’s Board of Directors or works in the duties of a Director in 
accordance with the normal obligations of being the Bank’s Director.

	 5. 	 Have no direct or indirect benefit from, or interest in the finance and management of the Bank.

	 6. 	 Not be a related person to, or close relative of the Bank’s senior management.

•	 List of independent directors in the Bank’s Board of Directors are as follows:

	 1.	 Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr	

	 2.	 Mr. Krit Sesavej	 (In the list of state enterprise directors prepared

			   by the Ministry of Finance)

	 3.	 Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont

	 4.	 Associate Professor Dr. Thanavath Phonvichai	 (In the list of state enterprise directors prepared

			   by the Ministry of Finance)

	 5.	 Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng	 (In the list of state enterprise directors prepared

			   by the Ministry of Finance)

	 6.	 Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse

Meetings and Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Sub-Committees
•	 Board of Directors’ Meetings

	 The Board of Directors sets a meeting plan in advance each year. The meeting is held monthly and the 
annual meeting date is informed to the Board of Directors in the fourth quarter of the previous year. Additional 
meetings can be held as appropriate. In 2021, there were 12 meetings. The Chairman of the Board of Directors  
approved the agenda for each meeting. The Board of Directors received the meeting agenda together with supporting 
information at least 7 days prior to the meeting date to ensure that the Board of Directors have sufficient time to  
review the information before the meeting. The meeting agenda was in an electronic file. During the meeting,  
the Board of Directors raised questions on various significant matters in order to consider them carefully as well as 
the providing comments, suggestions and observations that were beneficial to the Bank’s operations. The Bank 
recorded a summary in the minutes of the meeting.

	 In addition, the Board of Directors invited the Bank’s senior managements to attend the meeting on relevant 
agenda every time to clarify and provide useful information for the Board of Directors to make decisions. At the same time, 
senior management directly acknowledged policies and recommendations of the Board of Directors, which could be 
implemented correctly and quickly, except for the agenda that was a specific meeting of the Board of Directors.
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•	 Committees appointed by the Board of Director

	 The Board of Directors appoints committees to supervise and screen important tasks requiring specialized 

expertise to help the Board of Directors perform duties efficiently. As of December 31, 2021, there were 8 committees 

as follows:

	 • 	 Executive Board (The Government Housing Bank Act, Section 21)

	 • 	 Audit Committee

	 • 	 Risk Management Committee

	 •	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

	 • 	 Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR)

	 • 	 Relations Affairs Committee

	 • 	 IT&KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee

	 • 	 G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee

•	 Executive Board

	 The Board of Directors appoints an Executive Board according to the Government Housing Bank Act, B.E. 2496 

and its amendments, Section 21 which “specifies that the Board of Directors has authority to appoint an Executive 

Board consisting of President and at least two but not exceeding four Directors. The Board of Directors selects 

one Executive Board member as Chairman. Executive Board members shall hold office for one year and may be  

re-elected. The term of office shall be terminated upon resigning from the position of the Bank’s Director.”

	 Executive Board members (as of December 31, 2021)

	 1.	 Mr. Chanvit Nakburee		  Chairman

	 2.	 Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng		  Member

	 3.	 President 		  Member and Secretary

	 4.	 Office of President Senior Vice President	 Assisant Secretary

	 Executive Board meetings must be held at least once a month. For the fiscal year 2021, there were  

11 meetings and performance reports were presented to the Bank’s Board of Directors quarterly.

	 Change of Executive Board in 2021

	 1.	 Mr. Yuttana Yimgarund 		  Perform duties of the Executive Committee Chairman

				    until March 22, 2021

	 2.	 Senior Colonel Dr. Jearanai Vongsaard	 Perform duties of the Executive Committee

				    until March 22, 2021

	 3.	 Mr. Chanvit Nakburee		  Perform duties of the Executive Committee Chairman

				    since April 29, 2021 - October 27, 2021

				    And since November 25, 2021

	 4.	 Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng 		  Perform duties of the Executive Committee

				    since April 29, 2021
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Authority and Responsibility

The Executive Board has authority and duties for the Bank’s operations as prescribed by the Board of Directors 

consisting of 6 categories: Corporate direction and strategy, loan, debt reconciliation, property sales and bad debt 

write-off, employees and others categories which include;

1.	 Consider and screen policy issues before submission to the Board of Directors.

2.	 Propose the Bank’s management policies.

3.	 Consider and approve the risk payment to employees who work in special areas as prescribed by the 

government if there is a change in the area.

4. 	 Consider other matters as prescribed by the Board of Directors.

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors appoints the Audit Committee according to the Audit Committee Charter. The term of 

office depends on the term of the Bank’s Board of Directors, consisting of one Chairman and at least two but not 

exceeding four committee members. All members of the Audit Committee must be independent and fair. At least 

one person must have knowledge, understanding and experience in accounting or finance and is capable of reviewing 

the reliability of the financial statements and has the head of the internal audit unit as the secretary. The Chairman 

of the Audit Committee must not be the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the Management Committee.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee and members must possess the following qualification:

1.	 Must be the Bank’s Board of Director members.

2.	 Must have time to perform duties and provide independent and unbiased opinions.

3.	 Must not be a permanent government officer of the Ministry of Finance.

4. 	 Must not be a Director assigned to determine policies or regulations or have authority to make  

administrative decisions, a staff, employee or advisor who receives fixed salaries or remuneration from the Bank,  

related persons or companies related to the Bank, whether while holding the position of the Audit Committee Chairman  

or member or within 2 years prior to the date of appointment as the Audit Committee Chairman or member.

5.	 Must not have a conflict of interest with the Bank, whether while holding the position of the Audit  

Committee Chairman or member of the Audit Committee or within 1 year prior to the date of appointment as the 

Audit Committee Chairman or member.

6.	 Must not be a parent, descendant or spouse of the Bank’s Board of Directors Chief Executive Officer, 

Head of Internal Audit, the Bank’s internal auditor or internal auditors of companies where the Bank participates  

in making decisions about the policies and operations of that company.

Audit Committee members (as of December 31, 2021)

1.	 Associate Professor Dr. Thanavath Phonvichai		  Chairman

2.	 Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr			   Member				 

3.	 Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont			   Member

4.	 Head of Internal Audit Department			   Secretary
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The Audit Committee meeting is held at least one meeting per quarter. For fiscal year 2021, there were  

13 meetings, with a quorum of not less than two-thirds of a total number of committee members. Performance 

results were reported to the Board of Directors quarterly.

Change of Audit committee in 2021

1.	 Mr. Thanin Pa-em 	 Perform duties of the Audit Committee Chairman

			   until March 22, 2021.

2.	 Mr. Wichit Sangtongstit 	 Perform duties of the Audit Committee

			   until March 22, 2021.

3.	 Associate Professor Dr. Thanavath Phonvichai 	 Perform duties of the Audit Committee Chairman

			   since April 29, 2021.

4.	 Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont 	 Perform duties of the Audit Committee

			   since April 29, 2021.

Authority and responsibility

Duties and responsibilities are stipulated in the Audit Committee Charter as follows:

1. 	 The following are the duties and obligations assigned to the Audit Committee by the Board of Directors:

	 (1) 	 Prepare the Internal Audit Charter of the Audit Committee in line with the Bank’s business operations. 

The Charter must be approved by the Board of Directors and reviewed at least once a year.

	 (2) 	 Review the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal control, good governance, and risk  

management process.

	 (3) 	 Ensure that financial reports are adequate, accurate and reliable.

	 (4) 	 Review the Bank’s operations in accordance with laws, rules, regulations, operational procedures, 

cabinet resolutions, announcements or orders related to the Bank’s operations.

	 (5) 	 Ensure that the Bank has a good internal audit system and consider the independence of the internal 

audit department.

	 (6) 	 Review the Bank’s operations in various fields to ensure that they are in accordance with the criteria 

for performance assessment of state enterprises (Enablers) specified by the State Enterprise Policy Office (SEPO).

	 (7) 	 Consider connected transactions or transactions that may have conflict of interest or fraud 

that may affect the Bank’s operations and information disclosure, including ensuring accurate and complete 

information of Public Service Account policy.

	 (8) 	 Propose recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the appointment, transfer, promotion, 

performance assessment of the Head of the Internal Audit Department.

	 (9) 	 Coordinate with the Bank’s auditor about auditing results, suggest a review of necessary items 

as well as proposing the Bank’s auditors’ remuneration to the Board of Directors.

	 (10)	 Report the internal audit result of the Audit Committee to the Board of Directors at least once 

a quarter within 60 days from the last day of each quarter, except for the 4th quarter result that is reported in an 

annual report. Reports must be submitted to the Ministry of Finance within 90 days after the bank’s fiscal year-end.
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		  The following information must be included in the operating performance report:

		  (10.1)   Comments on the preparation and disclosure of Information in financial reports.

		  (10.2)   Opinions on the adequacy of the internal control system;

		  (10.3)    Comments on conformity with laws, regulations, operational procedures, cabinet resolutions, 
and the Bank announcements and orders;

	 (11)	 At least once in every fiscal year, carry out an assessment of the Audit Committee’s internal  
audit, as well as submitting the results of the assessment, difficulties. and impediments, along with the operational  
improvement plan to the Board of Directors for approval;

	 (12)	 Disclosure the Audit Committee’s annual performance report and the auditors’ remuneration in  
the Bank’s annual report;

	 (13)	 Follow up on the operations in accordance with the authorities’ observations and suggestions;

	 (14)	 Perform other duties as required by the law or assigned by the Board of Director. However,  
duties must be in the scope of duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee.

2.	 The Audit Committee reports directly to the Board of Directors in the execution of its obligations under team 1.

Risk Management Committee
The Board of Directors appoints the Risk Management Committee according to the Risk Management  

Committee Charter. The Risk Management Committee has a term of office according to the term of the Bank’s Board 
of Directors. Composition and qualifications are as follows:

1. 	 Consist of at least 3 persons.

2. 	 The Risk Management Committee Chairman must be an independent director or a non-executive director.

3. 	 All members must be Executive Board or Bank’s advisors. At least half of the members must be  
independent directors, non-executive directors or the Bank’s advisors.

4. 	 At least one member must have knowledge, expertise and understanding of risks related to financial 
institution business.

	 The Board of Directors will elect a person with the above-mentioned qualifications as Chairman and 
appoint the head of the risk management department (Assistant Managing Director, Risk Management Group)  
as Secretary and the Director of Risk Management Department is Assistant Secretary.

Risk Management Committee Members (as of December 31, 2021)

1. 	 Mr. Krit Sesavej		  Chairman

2. 	 Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng		  Member

3. 	 President 		  Member

4. 	 Executive Vice President, Risk Management Group	 Secretary

5. 	 Senior Vice President, Risk Management Department	 Assistant Secretary

Risk Management Committee is held at least once a month. For fiscal year 2021, there were 11 meetings.  
The committee reported to the Board of Directors of the changes in risks, overall impact (Portfolio Exposure),  
including risk status and changes on the risk level (Risk Appetite) with recommendations for improvement to comply 

with policies and strategies set by the Board of Directors.
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Change of Risk Management Committee in 2021

1.	 Ms. Patcharee Arayakul	 Perform duties of the Risk Oversight Committee Chairman
			   until March 22, 2021.

2.	 Senior Colonel Dr. Jearanai Vongsaard	 Perform duties of the Risk Oversight Committee
			   until March 22, 2021.

3.	 Mr. Eitti Ponguussara	 Perform duties of the Risk Oversight Committee
			   until March 22, 2021.

4.	 Mr. Krit Sesavej 	 Perform duties of the Risk Oversight Committee Chairman
			   since April 29, 2021.

5.	 Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng 	 Perform duties of the Risk Oversight Committee
			   since April 29, 2021

Authority and responsibility

1.	 Risk Management

	 Duties and repressibilities are stipulated in the Risk Oversight Committee Charter as follow :

	 1.1	 Give advice to the Board of Directors on the Bank’s risk governance framework.

	 1.2	 Supervise senior management, including the head of the risk management department to comply 
with risk management policies and strategies, including acceptable risk levels.

	 1.3	 Ensure that the Bank’s capital and liquidity management strategies are consistent with the approved 
risk tolerance levels.

	 1.4	 Review the policy’s sufficiency and effectiveness, overall risk management strategy and acceptable 
risk levels at least once a year or when there is a significant change. The Risk Management Committee should discuss  
and exchange opinions with the Audit Committee to assess whether the Bank’s risk management policies and strategies 
cover all types of risks, including emerging risks and then implement effective and efficient policies and strategies.

	 1.5	 Report to the Board of Directors about risk position, risk management efficiency and compliance 
status on a risk-aware corporate culture, significant factors, and what needs to be revised in order to be consistent 
with the Bank’s risk management policy and strategy.

	 1.6	 Express opinions or participate in the efficiency and effectiveness assessment of the head of risk 
management department.

	 1.7	 Have decision-making power to take any relevant actions within the scope of responsibility as well as  
having authority to access the Bank’s information related to Risk Management Committee Charter.

2.	 Internal Control

	 2.1	 Consider and scrutinize internal control policies and annual work plans, then proposing to the Board 
of Directors for approval.

	 2.2	 Review the appropriateness and sufficiency of internal control policies annually to ensure that  
the Bank’s internal control is efficient and effective. If there is no change, the committee must inform the Board of 
Directors. If there is a change, it will be proposed to the Board of Directors for approval.

	 2.3	 Supervise and monitor the internal control system’s performance, improvement plans including giving 
opinions and suggestions to comply with internal control standards.

	 2.4	 Report internal control performance to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors on a regular basis.
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3. 	 GRC Integration

	 3.1	 Consider and scrutinize the integrated policy of good corporate governance, risk management,  

and regulatory compliance before submitting it to the Board of Directors for approval.

	 3.2	 Approve the GRC Manual and the Annual GRC Integration Program.

	 3.3	 Oversee and monitor the performance of the GRC Integration and the GRC Integration Plan, as well as  

provide quarterly comments and recommendations in line with GRC Principles compliance.

4.	 Perform other duties as specified by the Board of Directors.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
The Board of Directors appoints the Nomination and Remuneration Committee according to the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee Charter. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has a term of office according 

to the term of the Bank’s Board of Directors. Composition and qualifications are as follows:

1.	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes:

	 (1)	 Not less than 3 but not exceeding 5 Board of directors and must be non-executive directors* and 

must be appointed by the Board of Directors.

	 Remark*	 Refer to Executive Director

		  1. 	Directors who perform management duties in the position of manager, deputy manager, assistant 

manager or any other equivalent position called otherwise.

		  2.	 Directors who are responsible for operating or participating in any administration similar to executives 

including a director appointed as a member of the Executive Committee.

		  3.	 Directors who have signing authority to bind the Bank, unless such binding signature is for those 

previously approved by the Board on a case-by-case basis and co-signed with other directors.

	 (2)	 The President is automatically an advisor and can appoint external experts as advisors.

	 Committee members and external advisors should be appointed as appropriate.

2.	 The Board of Directors appoints the Committee Chairman, members and advisors to the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee. The Chairman must be the Bank’s Director and be elected by the Board of Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee must possess knowledge, ability, experience, and understanding  

of their roles and responsibilities. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall appoint a Secretary as appropriate.  

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee Chairman should be an independent director to help drive the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee performance independently.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee members (as of December 31, 2021)

1.	 Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse	 Chairman

2.	 Ms. Patcharee Arayakul	 Member

3.	 Mr. Krit Sesavej	 Member

4.	 President 	 Advisor

5.	 Executive Vice President	 Secretary

	 Human Resource Management Department
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting is held at least one meeting per quarter. For fiscal 
year 2021, there were 12 meetings, with a quorum of not less than half of the total number of committee members 
(not less than 2 persons). Performance results were reported to the Board of Directors quarterly.

Change of Nomination and Remuneration Committee in 2021

1.	 Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr	 Perform duties of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Chairman
			   until March 22, 2021.

2.	 Mr. Thanin Pa-em	 Perform duties of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
			   until March 22, 2021.

3.	 Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse	 Perform duties of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Chairman 
			   since March 30, 2021.

4.	 Mr. Krit Sesavej	 Perform duties of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
			   since March 30, 2021.

Authority and responsibility

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has duties to consider and provide recommendations to  
the Board of Directors according to Nominating and Remuneration Committee Charter as follows:

1. 	 Determine policies, regulations and procedures for recruitment to appoint, promote, set remuneration 
and other benefits for the position of Senior Vice President of departments/ offices/ regions or equivalent and  
upper level executives including the position of Senior Executive Vice President or equivalent. Committee members’ 
remuneration and other benefits are also determined. The regulations must be determined with transparency and 
presented to the Bank’s Board of Directors for approval.

2. 	 Select and nominate qualified persons to hold positions as follows:

	 (1) 	 Members of the Executive Board and Sub-Committee that have been assigned authority and  
responsibility from the Board of Directors.

	 (2) 	 Executive levels; Senior Vice President of departments/offices/regions or equivalent and upper level 
executives including the position of Senior Executive Vice President or equivalent.

3.	 Supervise members in Sub-Committee and executives; the position of Senior Executive Vice President or 
equivalent and upper level executives including Senior Executive Vice President or equivalent to ensure that they 
receive appropriate remuneration for their duties and responsibilities. If committee members are assigned additional 
duties and responsibilities, appropriate additional remuneration must also be considered.

4.	 Disclosure policies, recruiting process, remuneration, including preparing remuneration reports covering 
goals, operations and opinions of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. This report must be included in 
the Bank’s annual report.

5.	 Determine guidelines and regulations for assessing the performance of committee members and executive 
performance of Senior Executive Vice President or equivalent and upper level executives including Senior Executive 
Vice President or equivalent positions. The assessment is to consider annual remuneration adjustment by taking into 
account responsibilities and related risks as well as determining the remuneration and other benefits of the Bank’s 
President and other benefits before submission to the Board of Directors for approval.

6.	 Determine and review regulations and procedures for the nomination of non-officio directors.

7.	 Recruit non-officio directors and screening qualified persons in accordance with the rules and procedures 
prescribed by the Bank.

8.	 Any other assignments by the Board of Directors.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee members who are non-officio directors must comply with laws 
on standard qualifications for state enterprise’s directors and employees and the law on state enterprise supervision 
and administration, as the case may be.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee may request professional recommendations from external advisors.
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Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility (CG&CSR) Committee	
The Board of Directors appoints the Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility (CG&CSR) 

Committee according to the Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Charter CG&CSR 

Committee consists of not less than 3 persons but not exceeding 5 persons. The term of service of the Committee 

member is equivalent to the Board of Directors. The Bank’s President is automatically a member. External qualified 

persons can be appointed as a committee member as appropriate. Senior Executive Vice President, Operations 

Group is Secretary to the Committee. Executive Vice President, Legal Division and Executive Vice President, Corporate 

Communication Division are Assistant Secretary.

Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility (CG&CSR) Committee members

(as of December 31, 2021)

1.	 Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr		  Chairman

2.	 Ms. Patcharee Arayakul		  Member

3.	 Associate Professor Dr. Thanavath Phonvichai	 Member

4.	 Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont		  Member

5.	 President 		  Member

6.	 Senior Executive Vice President, Operation Unit 	 Secretary

7.	 Executive Vice President, Legal Group Assistant	 Assistant Secretary

8.	 Executive Vice President, Corporate Communication Group 	 Assistant Secretary

The CG&CSR Committee meeting is held at least one meeting per quarter or as appropriate. For fiscal 

year 2021, there were 4 meetings, with a quorum of not less than half of a total number of committee members. 

Meeting reports were submitted to the Bank’s Board of Directors quarterly.

Change of Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility (CG&CSR) Committee in 2021

1.	 Mr. Thanin Pa-em 		  Perform duties as CG&CSR Committee member chairman

				    until March 22, 2021

2.	 Mr. Wichit Sangtongstit 		  Perform duties as CG&CSR Committee member

				    until March 22, 2021

3.	 Mr. Pipat Khanthong		  Perform duties as CG&CSR Committee member

				    until March 22, 2021

4.	 Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr 		  Perform duties as CG&CSR Committee member chairman

				    since April 29, 2021

5.	 Associate Professor Dr. Thanavath Phonvichai 	 Perform duties as CG&CSR Committee member

				    since April 29, 2021

6.	 Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont 	 Perform duties as CG&CSR Committee member

				    since April 29, 2021
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Authority and responsibility

The Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility (CG&CSR) Committee has duties and  

responsibilities as stipulated in the Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility (CG&CSR) Committee 

Charter as follows :

1.	 Propose CG&CSR policies to the Board of Directors for considering criteria and guidelines for sustainable 

development, good corporate governance and social and environmental responsibility.

2.	 Review sustainable development, good corporate governance, social and environmental responsibility 

and prepare proposals to the Board of Directors.

3.	 Encourage the Board of Directors, executives, employees, communities, customers and general public to 

participate in CG&CSR activities

4.	 Encourage the Board of Directors’ official participation in CG activities every quarter.

5.	 Supervise and monitor CG&CSR operations to ensure that the Bank achieve goals and maximize  

performance efficiency.

6.	 Provide suggestions for sustainable development, supervision and the Bank’s operations in accordance 

with laws, policies and procedures to achieve the Bank’s annual CG&CSR goals.

7. 	 Consider and approve strategies, goals and master plan including annual CG&CSR projects, plans, budgets 

and performance indicators in line with Bank’s business.

8. 	 Perform CG&CSR duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

9. 	 Consider and appoint a working group to support the Bank’s operations on CG&CSR as appropriate.

10.	 Report CG&CSR performance to the Board of Directors quarterly and provide recommendations as 

appropriate.

IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee
The Board of Directors appoints the IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee according to the IT & KM-Inno 

Strategy and Policy Committee Charter. The term of service of the Committee member is equivalent to the Board 

of Directors, consisting of IT & KM-Inno strategy and policy committee Chairman and committee members: not less 

than 2 persons but not more than 4 persons, all of whom are appointed by the Board of Directors. Senior Executive 

Vice President, Information Technology Unit is Secretary. External experts can be appointed as members of 

the Committee as the Board of Directors deems appropriate.
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4.	 Consider necessary budget allocation for the annual information technology, knowledge management  
and innovation projects.

5. 	 Supervise the Bank’s operations to be compliance with policies and principles of good information  
technology governance, knowledge management policy, creativity and innovation management policy including  
the Bank’s innovation management manual.

6. 	 Control, supervise, review and assess the Bank’s operational performance in accordance with the Bank’s 
information technology, knowledge management and innovation plans.

7. 	 Monitor and report on good data governance performance at least twice a year, including considering the 
performance report related to the Bank’s good data corporate governance and giving comments as necessary.

8. 	 Consider a solution in the event of the Bank data breach as well as reporting the progress to the Board.

9. 	 Create a communication culture in the organization to make the Bank’s employees recognize the  
importance and comply with the Bank’s good information governance policy as well as promoting and supporting 
the development of the Bank’s knowledge management and innovation.

10.	 Appoint Sub-committees to assist the IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee as assigned by  
the Board of Directors.

11.	 Any other assignments by the Board of Directors.

Relations Affairs Committee
The State Enterprise Labor Relations Act, B.E. 2543, Section 19 stipulates that there shall be a Relations Affairs 

Committee in each state enterprise comprising a Board member of that state enterprise and the Board is assigned 
as the Chairman of the committee; the representatives of the Employer appoint from management level in the 
number specified by the state enterprise, which shall not be less than 5 but not exceeding 9, and representatives 
of the Employee appointed from the members proposed by a Labor Unions of that state enterprise, in the equal 
number to those of the employer party, to be committee members. Member of the Relations Affairs Committee 
shall hold office for the term of two years.

The Bank’s Board of Directors appointed the board to be the Chairman of Relations Affairs Committee,  
with 9 representatives of the employer and 9 representatives of the employee. The current committee has been 
in office since December 3, 2019.

Relations Affairs Committee (as of December 31, 2021)

1. 	 Ms. Patcharee Arayakul	 Director	 Chairman

Representatives of the employer

1. 	 Ms. Chatravee Jirakulmetapat	 Representatives of the employer	 Member

2. 	 Ms. Thidaporn Mekingthong	 Representatives of the employer	 Member

3. 	 Ms. Porta Yimtraiporn	 Representatives of the employer	 Member

4. 	 Ms. Paninee Manosun	 Representatives of the employer 	 Member

5. 	 Ms. Karuna Muantoei	 Representatives of the employer 	 Member

6.	 Ms. Sudjittra Kumdee	 Representatives of the employer 	 Member

7.	 Ms. Oranuch Phongprayoon	 Representatives of the employer 	 Member

8.	 Ms. Khwanjai Sakdamin	 Representatives of the employer 	 Member

9.	 Mr. Nisit Aunvijit	 Representatives of the employer 	 Member
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Representatives of the employee

1.	 Acting Sub.Lt  Pakornpat Suppameewong	 Representatives of the employee 	 Member

2.	 Mr. Pongteb Suntipun	 Representatives of the employee 	 Member

3.	 Mr. Palakorn Viriyasart 	 Representatives of the employee 	 Member

4.	 Mr. Tanakorn Sukprasit	 Representatives of the employee 	 Member

5.	 Mr. Pachara Sombundee 	 Representatives of the employee 	 Member

6.	 Mr. Virat Sonthi	 Representatives of the employee 	 Member

7.	 Mr. Seksit Kaewjumbung	 Representatives of the employee 	 Member

8.	 Mr. Nathee Tamcharoen	 Representatives of the employee 	 Member

9.	 Mr. Kraipisit Vo-onsri	 Representatives of the employee 	 Member

The Relations Affairs Committee meeting is held at least once a month with a quorum of not less than half of a  
total number of committee members and requires one member of the employer and employee each. For fiscal year 2021,  
there were a total of 12 meetings and each meeting report was submitted to the Board of Directors quarterly.

Change of Relations Affairs Committee in 2021

1.	 Mr. Thanin Pa-em 	 Perform duties of the Relations Affairs Committee Chairman 
			   until March 22, 2021.

2.	 Ms. Patcharee Arayakul	 Perform duties of the Relations Affairs Committee Chairman 
			   since April 29, 2021

Authority and Responsibility

1. 	 Consider and give opinions on an improvement of operational capacity of the state enterprise as well as 
promoting and developing relation affairs.

2. 	 Find out method of harmony and prevent labor disputes in the state enterprise.

3. 	 Consider improving rules and regulations which will benefit employers, employees and such state enterprise.

4. 	 Consult to solve problems in any grievance made by an employee or a Labor Union except a complaint 
concerning a disciplinary penalty.

5. 	 Consult to consider improving conditions of employment

G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee
The Board of Director appoint the G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee. The term of 

service of the committee member is equivalent to the Board of Directors.

G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee members (as of December 31, 2021) 

1. 	 Mr. Chanvit Nakburee	 Chairman

2. 	 Ms. Patcharee Arayakul	 Member

3. 	 Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr	 Member

4. 	 Senior Vice President, Office of the President 	 Secretary

G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee meeting is held as appropriate. For fiscal year 2021, 

there were 3 meetings and performance reports were presented to the Bank’s Board of Directors.
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Change of G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee in 2021

1.	 Mr. Yuttana Yimgarund 	 Perform duties of G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee 	

				    Chairman until March 22, 2021

2.	 Mr. Theeraj Athanavanich	 Perform duties of G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee  

				    since April 29, 2021 – October 27, 2021

3.	 Mr. Chanvit Nakburee 	 Perform duties of G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee  

				    Chairman since November 25, 2021

4.	 Ms. Patcharee Arayakul	 Perform duties of G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee  

				    since April 29, 2021

Authority and Responsibility

1. 	 Consider and scrutinize the regulations and methods for assessing the President’s performance.

2. 	 Consider and scrutinize the President’s Management Plan, starting from the Government Housing Bank 

Management Plan 2019.

3. 	 Evaluate the performance of the President as specified in the employment contract period.

4. 	 Interview relevant person or collect document necessary for The Bank’s President Performance Assessment.

5. 	 Any other assignments by the Board of Directors

Development and Assessment of the Board of Directors
•	 Board members’ Orientation

	 On March 23, 2021, the Cabinet approved the appointment of chairman and eight members  

to the G H Bank Board of Directors, namely: Mr. Yuttana Yimgarund, Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr, Mr. Krit Sesavej,  

Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont, Associate Professor Dr. Thanavath Phonvichai, Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng, Mr. Narin  

Opamuratawongse, and Mr. Chanvit Nakburee. Furthermore, on March 23, 2021, the Ministry of Finance appointed  

Mr. Theeraj Athanavanich, a representative of the Ministry of Finance, to the Board of Directors of the Government  

Housing Bank. Therefore, in order for the newly appointed directors to be informed of the Bank’s significant  

information, business operations, and functions, which will improve the operational efficiency of the  

G H Bank Board of Directors and develop a complete understanding of the Bank’s duties and missions, the Bank has 

arranged a Board Orientation for all 9 newly appointed directors. Due to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) 

pandemic situation in 2021, the Bank must comply with the announcements of the Center for Epidemic Management 

of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (OCC) that traditional orientation activities cannot be held, therefore the Bank conducts 

an orientation for newly appointed Bank directors via electronic media with the following primary activities:

	 1. 	 Handing out the “Management for the Board of Directors of the Government Housing Bank” manual in 

electronic form containing important information for the Bank’s Board of Directors; Guidelines on Effective Function 

of The Board of Director of State - Owned Enterprise of the State Enterprise Policy Office, Ministry of Finance; the 

BOT’ notifications relating to duties and responsibilities; qualifications and prohibited characteristics of the Bank’s 

Board of directors; and code of conduct; listing of assets and liabilities to the Office of the National Anti-Corruption  
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Commission; the Bank’s structure; Board and sub-committees; the authority; the annual report, schedule for  

the annual Board of Directors meetings; remuneration; benefits; information for supervision; and control and 

administration, etc.

2. Presenting key information regarding roles and responsibilities, policies, 5-year strategic plan and annual  

action plan; financial position and key performance; related laws including other important information by  

the Bank’s senior management.

Development of the Board of Directors

The Bank regularly improves the Board of Directors’ knowledge by preparing a plan to develop the potential 

of corporate governance covering training courses, seminars, study visits and business visits to improve knowledge, 

skill, competence, as well as creating new perspectives in various fields such as governance, risk management, 

technology and innovation to enable the Bank to achieve its mission with efficiency and effectiveness. The Bank 

delivers information on training courses to the Bank’s Board of Directors to allocate time in advance to attend a 

training course relating to their roles and duties in a reputable and standardized institute such as the Thai Institute 

of Directors Association (IOD), and King Prajadhipok’s Institute, and other courses that are important and necessary 

for corporate governance. Due to the COVID-19 situation, the Bank has adjusted training courses for the Bank’s 

Board of Directors by focusing more on internal training in a form of in-house training. In 2021, the Bank encouraged  

the Board of Directors to attend training courses/seminars/study visits as follows:
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No. Course/Program Board of Directors’ name

1 International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS 9) for the Board of 

Directors [In-house Training] by Mr. Kasiti Ketsuriyonk, Deloitte Touche 

Tohmatsu Jaiyos Audit Company Limited

Mr. Chanvit Nakburee

Ms. Patcharee Arayakul

Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr

Mr. Krit Sesavej

Associate Professor Dr. Thanavath 

Phonvichai

Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng

Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse

Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont

Mr. Chatchai Sirilai

Mr. Yuttana Yimgarund

Mr. Theeraj Athanavanich

2 Core Business Enablers for the Board of Directors [In-house Training] by 

Mr. Somchai Trairatanapirom, Assessment Expert, Institute of Research 

and Development for Public Enterprises (IRDP)

Mr. Chanvit Nakburee

Ms. Patcharee Arayakul

Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr

Mr. Krit Sesavej

Associate Professor Dr. Thanavath 

Phonvichai

Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng

Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse

Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont

Mr. Yuttana Yimgarund

Mr. Theeraj Athanavanich

3 Risk Management Course for the Board of Directors [In-house Training] 

by Ms. Thanyanit Niyomkarn, Assistant Governor Supervision 2 and  

Ms. Vireka Suntapuntu, Senior Director, Specialized Financial Institutions 

Supervision and  Examination Department Bank of Thailand

Mr. Chanvit Nakburee

Ms. Patcharee Arayakul

Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr

Associate Professor Dr. Thanavath 

Phonvichai

Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng

Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse

Mr. Krit Sesavej

Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont

Mr. Chatchai Sirilai

4 Role and Responsibilities of the Board, Specialized Financial Institutions  

(SFIs) and Core Business Enablers by The Government Financial  

Institutions  Association (GFA) by Mr. Somchai Trairatanapirom,  

Assessment Expert, Institute of Research and Development for Public 

Enterprises (IRDP)

Ms. Patcharee Arayakul

Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr

Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse

Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont
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No. Course/Program Board of Directors’ name

5 Cyber Resilience Leadership 2021 : Herd Immunity (Online Workshop)
by the Bank of Thailand

Mr. Chanvit Nakburee
Ms. Patcharee Arayakul
Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr
Associate Professor Dr. Thanavath 
Phonvichai
Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng
Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse
Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont
Mr. Yuttana Yimgarund
Mr. Theeraj Athanavanich

6 Fintech : Regulator Perspective, Roles of the Bank of Thailand​​ (Tech-
nology management for innovation in organizations) by Ms. Siritida 
Panomwon Na Ayudhya, Assistant Governor, Payment Systems Policy 
and Financial Technology Group​, Bank of Thailand

Mr. Chanvit Nakburee
Ms. Patcharee Arayakul
Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr
Associate Professor Dr. Thanavath 
Phonvichai
Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng
Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse
Mr. Krit Sesavej
Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont
Mr. Chatchai Sirilai

7 Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 305/2021
by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 

Ms. Patcharee Arayakul
Mr. Krit Sesavej

8 Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 306/2021 
by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) 

Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont

9 Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 308/2021 
by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse

10 Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 312/2021 
by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Mr. Chanvit Nakburee

11 Advanced Audit Committee Program (AACP) Class 41/2021
 by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont

12 Risk Management Program for Corporate Leaders (RCL) Class 23/2021 
by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Mr. Krit Sesavej

13 Role of the Chairman Program (RCP) Class 48/2021
by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Mr. Chanvit Nakburee
Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr
Mr. Krit Sesavej
Associate Professor Dr. Thanavath 
Phonvichai
Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng
Mr. Theeraj Athanavanich

14 IT Governance and Cyber Resilience Program (ITG) Class 18/2021
by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr
Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng
Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse
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	 Furthermore, in 2021, the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee visited the Rajadamnern Branch’s 

operations, both in the form of a physical site visit and a branch visit via Teleconference system in order to learn 

about past performance, listen to problems/obstacles, and make suggestions on solutions/obstacles in the operation  

that are beneficial to employees in order to upgrade the branch’s operation to be more efficient. Furthermore,  

the Bank’s Board of Directors has set up a policy on the management of fair services to customers (Market Conduct) 

to encourage branch personnel to strictly adhere to the rules and offer customers with fair and equitable services.

Self Assessment of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors evaluates the performance of the Board twice a year, divided into 2 parts:  

Board Evaluation and Self Assessment. In 2021, the assessment results were as follows:

1. 	 Board Evaluation: There were 5 evaluation topics: the Board’s composition and qualifications; duties 

and responsibilities; meeting preparation and attendance; essential information for the operation; relationship with 

management. The evaluation result was 99.70 percent.

2. 	 There were 6 assessment topics: meeting attendance, independence, preparedness, attention to duties 

and responsibilities, performance, and self-development. The overall assessment result was 99.09 percent.

The Bank summarized the assessment result to consider the Board of Directors’ performance, problems,  

obstacles, observations and recommendations. The Board of Directors considered and discussed the assessment 

result at the official Board of Directors meeting and there were various remarks and recommendations for enhancing 

the supervision efficiency of the Board of Directors. The Bank took the Board of Directors’ recommendations from 

the assessment to improve the Bank’s efficiency and used as an input for the preparation of important annual plans 

to develop the potential of corporate governance of the Board of Directors
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Remark : 		 The numbers shown in the table mean the number of meeting attendance/number of meetings during a period members  

		  hold the office.

		  (1)  Mr. Yuttana Yimgarund, resigned as a Chairman since November 1, 2021. As of now, there has not yet to be a cabinet 

resolution on the Bank Chairman of the Board appointment.

 		  (2)		 Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021, Chairman of Executive Board and Member of IT&KM-Inno 

Strategy and Policy Committee for the 1st term since April 29, 2021 to October 27, 2021 and served as Chairman of 

Executive Board and IT&KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee for the 2nd term since November 25, 2021

		  (3) 	 Served as Chairman of the Risk Management Committee since April 28, Chairman of the Labor Relations Committee and 

Member of the G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee and served as Member of Good Corporate 

Governance & Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) since April 29, 2021. 

		  (4)		 Served as Chairman of the Corporate Governance & Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR)  

since April 29, 2021, Chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee until March 29, 2021 and served as 

Member of the IT&KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee until April 28, 2021.

		  (5)		 Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021, Chairman of the Risk Management Committee  

since April 29, 2021 and served as Member of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee since March 30, 2021.

		  (6)		 Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021, Chairman of the Audit Committee and served as Member 

of Good Corporate Governance & Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) since April 29, 2021. 

 		  (7) 	 Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021, Chairman of the IT&KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee, 

Member of Executive Director and served as Member of the Risk Management Committee since April 29, 2021.

		  (8)		 Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021, Chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee 

since March 30, 2021 and served as Member of the IT&KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee since April 29, 2021.

		  (9)  Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021, Member of the Audit Committee and served as Member of 

the Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) since April 29, 2021.

		  (10)	 Served as Chairman of the Board of Directors since March 23, 2021 to October 31, 2021, Chairman of the Board of  

Executive Directors and served as Chairman of the G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee  

until March 22, 2021.

		  (11)	 Served as Chairman of the Board of Directors until January 31, 2021.

		  (12)	 Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021 to October 27, 2021, Member of the IT&KM-Inno Strategy  

and Policy Committee and served as Chairman of the G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee  

since April 29, 2021 to October 27, 2021.

		  (13)	 Served as the Bank’s Board member, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Member of the Nominating and Remuneration 

Committee, Chairman of the Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) and  

served as Chairman of the Labor Relations Committee until March 22, 2021.

		  (14)	 Served as the Bank’s Board member, Member of Executive Director, Member of the Risk Management Committee and 

served as Chairman of the IT&KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee until March 22, 2021.

		  (15)	 Served as the Bank’s Board member, Member of the Audit Committee and served as Member of the Corporate  

Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) until March 22, 2021.

		  (16)	 Served as the Bank’s Board member and served as Member of the Corporate Governance and Corporate Social  

Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) until March 22, 2021.

		  (17)  Served as the Bank’s Board member, Member of the Risk Management Committee and served as Member of the  

IT&KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee until March 22, 2021.
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Remuneration of the Board of Directors
Remuneration of the Bank’s Board of Directors consists of three parts: monthly remuneration, meeting allowance,  

and bonus.

1.	 Monthly Remuneration
	 Monthly remuneration was approved by the Cabinet Resolution on April 24, 2019. The rates are as follows:

	 • 	 Chairman of the Board 		  20,000 baht / month

	 • 	 Board members 		  10,000 baht / month

	 In the event that Board members hold the position less than one month. Monthly remuneration will be 

paid in proportion to the length of tenure.

	 The Board of Directors received monthly remuneration from January - December 2021 of 1,337,419.36 baht.

2.	 Meeting Allowance
	 Meeting Allowance was approved by the Cabinet Resolution on April 24, 2019. The rates are as follows:

	 • 	 Chairman of the Board 		  25,000 baht / month

	 • 	 Board members 		  20,000 baht / month

	 In case of a particular situation, meeting allowance may be paid more than one time per month but 

not exceeding 15 times per year. For committee/sub - committee/ other working groups appointed by the law,  

regulation, the cabinet resolution or the Bank’s Board of Directors, meeting allowance is as follows:

	 -	 For the Board members and non - bank members shall receive the same amount of meeting  

allowance for each meeting at the rate of 0.5 times of specified Board meeting allowance regulations. Members of 

committees, sub-committees, other working groups shall receive the allowance not more than two committees’ 

meetings and not more than one meeting per month.

	 -	 For the Bank personnel, a meeting allowance shall not be paid if that meeting attendance is  

considered as his/her duties.

	 The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for their personal income tax.

	 The Board of Directors and Committee members received total meeting allowance during  

January 1 - December 31, 2021 of 4,606,712.37 baht
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		  (3) 	 Served as Chairman of the Risk Management Committee since April 28, Chairman of the Labor Relations Committee and 

Member of the G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee and served as Member of Good Corporate 

Governance & Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) since April 29, 2021.

		  (4)		 Served as Chairman of the Corporate Governance & Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR)  

since April 29, 2021, Chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee until March 29, 2021 and served as 

Member of the IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee until April 28, 2021.

		  (5)		 Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021, Chairman of the Risk Management Committee  

since April 29, 2021 and served as Member of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee since March 30, 2021.

		  (6)		 Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021, Chairman of the Audit Committee and served as Member 

of Good Corporate Governance & Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) since April 29, 2021. 

		  (7)  Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021, Chairman of the IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee, 

Member of Executive Director and served as Member of the Risk Management Committee since April 29, 2021.

		  (8)		 Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021, Chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration Committee 

since March 30, 2021 and served as Member of the IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee since April 29, 2021.

		  (9)		 Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021, Member of the Audit Committee and served as Member of 

the Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) since April 29, 2021.

		  (10)	 Served as Chairman of the Board of Directors since March 23, 2021 to October 31, 2021, Chairman of the Board of  

Executive Directors and served as Chairman of the G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee  

until March 22, 2021.

		  (11)	 Served as Chairman of the Board of Directors until January 31, 2021.

		  (12)	 Served as the Bank’s Board member since March 23, 2021 to October 27, 2021 Member of the IT&KM-Inno Strategy  

and Policy Committee and served as Chairman of the G H Bank’s President Performance Assessment Committee  

since April 29, 2021 to October 27, 2021.

		  (13)	 Served as the Bank’s Board member, Chairman of the Audit Committee, Member of the Nominating and Remuneration 

Committee, Chairman of the Corporate Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) and served 

as Chairman of the Labor Relations Committee until March 22, 2021.

		  (14)	 Served as the Bank’s Board member, Member of Executive Director, Member of the Risk Management Committee and 

served as Chairman of the IT&KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee until March 22, 2021.

		  (15)	 Served as the Bank’s Board member, Member of the Audit Committee and served as Member of the Corporate  

Governance and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) until March 22, 2021.

		  (16)	 Served as the Bank’s Board member and served as Member of the Corporate Governance and Corporate Social  

Responsibility Committee (CG&CSR) until March 22, 2021.

		  (17)	 Served as the Bank’s Board member, Member of the Risk Management Committee and served as Member of the 

IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee until March 22, 2021.
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3. 	Board Members’ Bonus from 2020 Bank’s Performance (received in 2021) 
	 Bonus Calculation

Board members received bonus based on state enterprise annual performance in accordance with state 

enterprise performance appraisal system regulations. In case of normal performance, Board bonus will be paid 

at standard rate. If the performance is low, the bonus will be reduced. Additional bonus will be paid for better  

performance. Board member’ bonus calculation is based on the following performance appraisal system as follows:

Performance level (Point) Bonus paid (Baht/Person/Year)

5.0 (High Improvement) Base + 100% of base

4.5 Base + 75% of base

4.0 (Improve) Base + 50% of base

3.5 Base + 25% of base

3.0 (Normal) The base amount of the bonus per person is calculated 

from net profit to allocate bonuses. Annual accounts 

are evaluated by the same criteria.

2.5 Base - 25% of base

2.0 (Low) Base - 50% of base

1.5 No bonus

1.0 (Very low) No bonus

Remark 		  1.	 Base means 3 percent of net profit for bonus allocation, but not exceeding 60,000 baht per person per year. If the 

net profit is 100 - 13,000 million baht, Board members will receive an additional bonus of 65,000 - 130,000 baht 

per person per year according to the profit level. Board members receive an additional 10,000 baht each for each 

additional 2,000 million baht net income increment.

		  2. 	 Chairman of the Board receives an extra bonus of 25 percent, higher than Board member.

		  3. 	 Board members’ bonus is calculated based on the tenure and meeting attendance.

			   •	 Absence from meeting more than 3 month but not exceeding 6 month, bonus will be decreased by 25 percent.

			   •	 Absence from meeting more than 6 month but not exceeding 9 months, bonus will be decreased by 50 percent.

			   •	 Absence from meeting more than 9 months, bonus will be decreased by 75 percent.

	 The Bank’s Board of Directors and Ex-Board members received a total bonus of 1,905,159.61 baht.
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Summary of the Individually Board Member’s Remuneration in 2021
Unit : Baht

Name

Remuneration
Total

RemunerationMonthly
Remuneration

Meeting
Allowance Bonus*

1.	 (Chairman)

2. 	 Mr. Chanvit Nakburee
	 (Representative of the Ministry
	 of Finance)

82,903.23 380,000.00 462,903.23

3. 	 Ms. Patcharee Arayaku
	 (Representative of Ministry of Social 	
	 Development and Human Security)

120,000.00 396,250.00 227,500.00 743,750.00

4.	 Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr 120,000.00 518,026.88 184,079.30 822,106.18

5.	 Mr. Krit Sesavej 82,903.23 390,000.00 - 472,903.23

6.	 Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont 82,903.23 371,333.33 - 454,236.56

7. 	 Associate Professor
	 Dr. Thanavath Phonvichai

82,903.23 406,666.67 - 489,569.90

8. 	 Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng 82,903.23 380,000.00 - 462,903.23

9. 	 Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse 82,903.23 392,500.00 - 475,403.23

10. 	Mr. Chatchai Sirilai
	 (President)

120,000.00 460,000.00 201,529.13 781,529.13

Board members resigned during the year

11. 	Mr. Parinya Patanaphakdee 40,000.00 25,000.00 230,099.14 295,099.14

12. 	Mr. Yuttana Yimgarund 182,903.22 295,000.00 227,500.00 705,403.22

13.	Mr. Theeraj Athanavanich 71,612.91 212,500.00 - 284,112.91

14.	Mr. Thanin Pa-em 37,096.77 155,241.94 184,079.30 376,418.01

15.	Senior Colonel Dr. Jearanai Vongsaard 37,096.77 50,000.00 184,079.30 271,176.07

16.	Mr. Wichit Sangtongstit 37,096.77 124,193.55 127,815.85 289,106.17

17.	Mr. Pipat Khanthong 37,096.77 50,000.00 127,815.85 214,912.62

18.	Mr. Eitti Ponguussara 37,096.77 - 127,815.85 164,912.62

Ex-Board members

19.	Ms. Ratana Anupasanant - - 56,875.00 56,875.00

20.	Mr. Kamonpop Veerapala - - 25,970.89 25,970.89

Total 1,337,419.36 4,606,712.37 1,905,159.61 7,849,291.34

Remark : 	 * Bonus of the Bank’s Board of Directors in 2020 (received in 2021)
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Nomination, Appointment, Assessment and Remuneration of Senior Management
The Bank’s President Nomination

The Bank complies with the Standard Qualifications of Directors and State Enterprise Employees Act (No. 6) B.E. 2550,  
Government Housing Bank Act (No.3) B.E. 2549, Bank of Thailand’s Notification No. 18/2562 RC : Qualifications and  
prohibited characteristics of directors who are not directors by the position, Managing Director, Authorized management, 
advisor of specialized financial institutions (SFI) and the relevant memorandums of the ministry of Finance in order to 
acquire qualified person to act as G H Bank’s President. The nomination process is transparent by recruiting from internal  
executives as well as giving opportunities for individuals with knowledge, abilities, visionary and experiences in large 
corporate management. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Sub - committee will propose the selected 
candidates and appropriate remuneration to the Board of directors for approval After the Board of Director’s approval,  
the Bank will ask for approval from the Bank of Thailand. before proposing to the Ministry of Finance  
and the authorized person to process an appointment according to the law.

The Bank’s Senior Executive Vice President / Executive Vice President Nomination and Recruitment

Senior Executive Vice President and Executive Vice President nomination is recruited through two approaches 
which are internal recruitment and external recruitment. Successors who have passed the specific courses such as the 
Leadership Succession Program (LSP) / Leadership Development Program (LDP) will be considered. The programs had 
prepared qualified executives at the level of Senior Vice President to replace the Executive Vice President, and prepared 
qualified Executive Vice President to replace Senior Executive Vice President. The annual development assessment will 
be conducted individually along with an annual performance assessment. As a result, the Bank is able to prepare senior 
management in a timely manner. In the event that there is no internal qualified persons, external recruiting will be  
conducted by announcing recruitment through various media such as newspapers and the Bank’s website. The Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee will select the qualified candidates, considering several qualifications such as education, 
work experience, management, financial and banking experience, vision and plan, leadership and personality according 
to regulations. The list of qualified candidates will be proposed to the Bank’s Board of Directors to consider. Following 
approval from the Board of Directors, it provides the list of qualified applicants to the Board of Directors for reviewing 
and permission to hire the qualified applicants. In line with Section 120/1 of the Financial Institution Business Act B.E. 
2551 (2008) and as modified, the Bank will seek approval for the appointment of competent personnel with the Bank of  
Thailand. The Bank will then proceed to issue an order for promotion/filling/hiring, with a probationary period of no more 
than 120 days (after the appointed date) The individual performance will be assessed by the President.

President’s Performance Assessment

The President’s performance assessment is performed twice a year. The assessment criteria can be divided 
into 3 factors: (1) Performance according to the memorandum of understanding on state enterprise assessment of 
the Government Housing Bank (2) G H Bank’s annual management by the President which has been approved by 
the Board of Directors before the end of the fiscal year; and (3) Organizational management’s ability and working 
with the Board members. The Board of Directors has assigned the Performance Assessment Committee to consider  
the Bank’s management plan and the President’s performance before proposing to the Board of Directors for approval.

Senior Management’s Performance Assessment

Regarding the senior management’s performance assessment, the Board of Directors delegated  
to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to develop guidelines and criteria for evaluating the  
performance of executives including the position of Executive Vice President or equivalent before submitting to  
the Board of Directors for approval. The assessment criteria divided into 2 parts as follows:

1.	 The performance assessment is defined with indicators and evaluation criteria based on each Senior  
Management’s scope of supervisory responsibility and assignment, as well as a performance testimonial for the Senior 
Managements to sign along with the President.



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 1

Government Housing Bank146

2. The behavioral assessment is defined by evaluating behaviors that are in alignment with the GIVE+4  

principles, as well as those that reflect leadership, process driving, and task monitoring to achieve goals and also 

an understanding of the Bank’s business perspective.

In this regard, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee monitors and evaluates the performance  

of the Senior Managements twice a year. The outcomes of the senior management assessment will be utilized to 

determine the following details: (1) salary increase; and (2) promotion; (3) individual development for self-development  

of senior management; and (4) bonus to increase employee morale and work performance.

Senior Management’s Remuneration

In 2021, the Bank paid remunerations to the Bank’s senior management: Senior Executive Vice President  

and Executive Vice President, totaling 33 persons (5 retired executives in 2020 and 4 retired executives in 2021)  

of 87.63 million baht which included extra remuneration for 5 retired executives in 2020.

The senior management performance assessment for salary increase must be reviewed and approved by the 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors.

G H Bank’s Senior Management Remuneration in 2021

Item Remuneration (Million baht)

Salary 53.12

Bonus 34.51

Total 87.63

Senior Management Development

The Bank continuously enhances senior executives’ leadership skills with a focus on leadership development; 

so that senior executives can face new challenges with efficiency and effectiveness, as well as the readiness to be 

a leader capable of professional management, vision, morality, ethics, and international competitiveness, to drive 

the organization’s strategy toward its goals. The high-level leader development includes participating in training, 

study visits, and meetings with external institutions recognized both at the national and international 

levels to exchange information in organizational management, leading to the formation of a leadership network. In 

2021, the leaders’ skill in innovation organization and corporate values drive were improved through GHB 1 Team  

course and risk management courses, such as BCM (Business Continuity Management) course for senior executives.  

Additional external leadership courses on various topics to support future changes are as follows:

No. Name Course / Program

1 Mr. Chatchai Sirilai •	 Director Certification Program, Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
• 	Risk Management Course for the Board of Directors
• 	Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
• 	IFRS 9 (International Financial Reporting Standards) for the Board of Directors



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 1

Government Housing Bank 147

No. Name Course / Program

2 Mr. Kamonpop Veerapala •	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

3 Mr. Witthaya Saenphakdee •	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

4 Ms. Chatravee
Chirakunmethaphat

•	 TEPCoT (Top Executive Program in Commerce and Trade) by UTCC
	 (University of Thai Chamber of Commerce)
• 	Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
• 	BCM (Business Continuity Management)
• 	GHB 1 TEAM

5 Mr. Pongsak Kumnuansiri •	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

6 Ms. Thidaporn
Mekingthong

•	 Corporate Governance for Executives, Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
•	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
• 	BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

7 Mr. Apirat Aroonvilairat •	 IT Project Management
•	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

8 Ms. Orada Chareonsilp •	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

9 Mr. Vichai  Viratkapan •	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

10 Mr. Saksit Jittanoon •	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

11 Ms. Karuna Muantoei •	 LSP (Leadership Succession Program), Institute of Research and 
	 Development for Public Enterprises (IRDP)
•	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

12 Ms. Kanjanika Srirattanatri • 	PEM (Advanced Certificate Course in Public Economics Management 
	 for Executives), King Prajadhipok’s Institute (KPI)
• 	Risk Management
• 	BCM (Business Continuity Management)
• 	Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
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No. Name Course / Program

13 Mr. Chana
Jirarustanarangsee

•	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

14 Mr. Narongpol Prapanirin •	 IOP DAY 2021 : Driving Innovation to Create Sustainable Growth TRIS
	 Academy of Management
•	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

15 Mr. Danai Sangsrichantara •	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

16 Mr. Tuantong Treenuparb •	 DTC (Digital Transformation for CEO), MFC Asset Management
	 Public Company Limited
•	 IT Project Management
•	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

17 Ms. Porta Yimtraiporn •	 IT Project Management
• 	BCM (Business Continuity Management)
• 	Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
• 	GHB 1 TEAM

18 Mr. Popkorn Charoenlarp •	 IT Project Management
• 	BCM (Business Continuity Management)
• 	Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
• 	GHB 1 TEAM

19 Ms. Paninee Manosan •	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

20 Ms. Ranee Pechsong • 	Advance Certificate Course in Public Administration and Law for Executives,
	 King Prajadhipok’s Institute (KPI)
• 	BCM (Business Continuity Management)
• 	Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
• 	GHB 1 TEAM

21 Mr. Sornpong
Durongkavarojana

•	 Action Plan Management Techniques
•	 Risk Management
•	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
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No. Name Course / Program

22 Ms. Saowakon Chusri •	 Risk Management 
• 	Action Plan Management Techniques
• 	Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
• 	BCM (Business Continuity Management
•  GHB 1 TEAM

23 Ms. Sudjittra Kumdee •	 LSP (Leadership Succession Program), Institute of Research and
	 Development for Public Enterprises (IRDP)
•	 Branding Secret, Thailand Productivity Institute
•	 Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
•	 BCM (Business Continuity Management)
•	 GHB 1 TEAM

24 Ms. Oranuch
Phongprayoon

• 	Anti-Corruption Strategic Management for Senior Executives
• 	Digital Leadership
• 	Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
• 	BCM (Business Continuity Management
• 	GHB 1 TEAM

25 Ms. Usanee Boosayakomut • 	Risk Management
• 	Innovation for the Board of Directors and Executives
• 	BCM (Business Continuity Management)
• 	GHB 1 TEAM
• 	Value Chain (Auditing Process)

In 2021, the Bank developed the senior executives through in-house training courses and other public training 
in both domestic and foreign countries, totaling 40 training courses. In summary, the senior management will undergo 
a total of 5,770 hours of senior management training, averaging 230.8 hours per person.

Succession Plan 
G H Bank conducts a successor development project with the objective of preparing successors to replace 

executives who may retire or leave, especially in the event that the business changes in the future from its existing 
state due to a variety of circumstances by training executives to enable the turnover of key management positions. 
The Bank has established systematic selection and development criteria to ensure that executives have the capacity 
to drive the organization’s operations in order to fulfill the Bank’s vision and purpose. In this regard, the Bank has 
established the following succession plan to prepare senior executives’ successors;

1.	 President
	 The Bank follows the Standard Qualifications for State Enterprise Directors and Officials Act (No. 6)  

B.E. 2550 (2007) and the Government Housing Bank Act (No. 3) B.E. 2549 (2006), as well as the relevant memorandums  
of the Ministry of Finance in order to acquire people who have the knowledge, capabilities, and experience suitable  
to be the President. The Bank has a transparent recruitment and selection process by publishing recruitment from 
internal executives and giving opportunities to outsiders to apply for the position. Furthermore, the G H Bank  
President Nomination Committee and the President’s remuneration Sub-Committee select a suitable person in order  
to nominate a suitable person to the Board of Directors for approval before proposed to the person with the  
authority to appoint according to the law. 
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2.	 Senior Executive Vice President and Executive Vice President
	 The Bank has developed and prepared itself to create high-level leaders by enhancing knowledge in 

significant issues regarding the banking business through the Leadership Succession Program (LSP), Leadership  

Development Program (LDP), Digital Leadership Program, and other programs in order to develop critical leadership 

and management skills for operations, innovation directions, and business driving in various dimensions to support 

the strategy and growth of the banking business in the digital era. Furthermore, the Bank has devised a Succession 

Plan to prepare executives to replace them in high-level leadership roles (by taking the position of Senior Executive 

Vice President and Executive Vice President) in a systematic manner by defining Senior Executive key competencies, 

including monitoring, evaluating performance after detachment, and developing an individual development plan 

to improve stronger potential.

3.	 Senior Vice President
	 The Bank has prepared leaders at the departments level to support the replacement of middle-level  

executives through the High Potential Management Program and the High Potential Management BoostUp Program. 

The Bank will select qualified candidates passing the test based on the Bank’s criteria to enter the development 

process in order to prepare the Assistant Senior Vice President of departments to replace the Senior Vice President 

position in the departments and determine development guidelines in line with the Bank’s strategy to become the 

Digital Banking (Fully Digitized) in 2022 and to be the Best Housing Bank for Thai people in 2025.

Change of Senior Management

No.    Name Detail

1 Ms. Somjit Rodthong Retired from Senior Executive Vice President, Grade 16, Information Technology 
Unit due to retirement since October 1, 2021.

2 Mr. Pongsak Kamnuansiri Leaved a position of Executive Vice President, Grade 15, Credit Analysis 
Group / Acting Executive Vice President, Credit Business Unit / Appointed as 
Executive Vice President, Grade 16, Credit Business Unit since July 30, 2021.

3 Ms. Thidaporn Mekingthong Leaved a position of Executive Vice President, Grade 15, Support Group /  
Acting Executive Vice President, Operation Unit / Appointed as Senior Executive 
Vice President, Grade 16, Operation Unit since July 30, 2021. / Appointed as 
Executive Vice President, Legal Group since October 1, 2021.

4 Mr. Apirat Aroonvilairat Leaved a position of Executive Vice President, Grade 15, IT Operating  
Department / Acting Senior Vice President, IT Operating Department /  
Appointed as Senior Executive Vice President, Grade 16, Information  
Technology Unit since October 1, 2021.

5 Mr. Songdet Daramas Retired from Executive Vice President, Grade 15, Retail Customers Operating 
Group due to retirement since October 1, 2021.

6 Mr. Chaiyaporn Chulamanee Retired from Executive Vice President, Grade 15, Legal Group due to  
retirement since October 1, 2021.

7 Mr. Woranat Sukhotsmith Retired from Executive Vice President, Grade 15, Audit Group due to  
retirement since October 1, 2021.
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No.    Name Detail

8 Ms. Sudjittra Kumdee Executive Vice President, Grade 15, Communications and Corporate Image 
Group / Acting Senior Vice President, Corporate Communications Department / 
Leaved a position of Acting Senior Vice President, Corporate Communications 
Department since December 1, 2021.

9 Mr. Chana
Jirarustanarangsee

•	 Leaved a position of Bank Inspector, Grade 15, Acting Executive Vice President, 
	 Regional Branch Group 2 / Appointed as Executive Vice President  Grade 15,  
   Regional Branch Group 2 since July 30, 2021.
•	 Leaved a position of Executive Vice President, Grade 15, Regional Branch  
	 Group 2 / Appointed as Executive Vice President, Grade 15, Regional Branch 
	 Group 1 since October 4, 2021.

10 Ms. Kanjanika Srirattanatri Leaved a position of Senior Vice President, Grade 14, Deposit Products 
Development Department / Acting Executive Vice President, Marketing and 
Business Development Group 2 / Appointed as Executive Vice President, 
Grade 15, Marketing and Business Development Group 2 since July 30, 2021. /  
Appointed as Acting Senior Vice President, Deposit Products Development 
Department since August 3, 2021.

11 Ms. Ranee Pachsong Leaved a position of Senior Vice President, Grade 14, Accounting Department, /  
Acting Executive Vice President, Finance and Accounting Group / Appointed  
as Executive Vice President, Grade 15, Finance and Accounting Group,  
since July 30, 2021.

12 Ms. Saowakon Chusri •	 Leaved a position of Senior Vice President, Grade 14, North Branch (Uptown)  
	 Department, / Acting Executive Vice President, Regional Branch 
	 Group 1 / Appointed as Executive Vice President, Grade 15, Regional Branch  
	 Group 1, since July 30, 2021.
•	 Leaved a position of Executive Vice President, Grade 15, Regional Branch  
	 Group 1 / Appointed as Executive Vice President, Grade 15, Regional Branch  
	 Group 2 since October 4, 2021.

13 Mr. Sornpong
Durongkavarojana

Leaved a position of Senior Vice President, Grade 14, Digital Services Banking  
Department / Acting Executive Vice President, Marketing and Business  
Development Group 1 / Appointed as Executive Vice President, Grade 15,  
Marketing and Business Development Group 1 since July 30, 2021. / Appointed as  
Senior Vice President, Digital Services Banking Department since August 3, 2021.

14 Ms. Usanee Boosayakomut Leaved a position of Senior Vice President, Grade 14, Project Loan Analysis 
Department / Appointed as  Executive Vice President,  Grade 15, Credit Analysis 
Group since September 1, 2021.

15 Mr. Chainarong
Sawatdeewongsa

Senior Vice President (Department), Grade 14, Office and Branch 
Administration Department / Acting Executive Vice President, Support Group 
since September 1, 2021.

16 Mr. Monchai Teeravorakul Senior Vice President, Grade 14, Loan Documents Department / Appointed as  
Acting Executive Vice President, Retail Customers Operating Group  
since October 1, 2021.



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 1

Government Housing Bank152

Section 4  Taking into account the Role of Stakeholders
4.1	 The Bank’s Roles and Treatment of Stakeholders

The Bank values the rights of all stakeholder groups, as indicated by prescribing rules for dealing with each 
stakeholder group and establishing communication channels for stakeholders. The guidelines for dealing with 
the Bank’s stakeholders are as follows:

Owner:

The Bank is committed to conducting a business that achieves strong performance, consistent growth, and 
competitiveness while taking present and future risk factors into account. It is the Bank’s responsibility to disclose 
information in a transparent and fair manner, make every effort to protect the assets and maintain the Bank’s  
reputation in order to build confidence and trust of its owners, and to strive to develop and strengthen its  
competitive potential in order to create long-term added value for owners. In 2021, the ownership shareholders 
have 100 percent satisfaction with the Bank’s performance.

Regulatory Authority:

To promote national stability and progress, the bank conducts business in a transparent manner, makes 
business decisions, and operates in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, as well as adheres 
to the Bank’s high ethical standards and best practices. In 2021, the regulatory authorities’ stakeholders have 
100 percent satisfaction with the Bank’s performance.

Board of Director:

The Board of Directors has been informed and has responded in line with its authorities, duties, and obligations, 
as well as recognizing and preserving the rights of all groups of stakeholders in the Bank in an equitable and fair manner.  
In 2021, the Bank’s Board of Directors stakeholders have 100 percent satisfaction with the Bank’s performance.

Employee:

The Bank provides policies and guidelines for employees that emphasize personnel management and  
development, as well as a human resource management system that allows employees at all levels to advance 
in their careers in an equitable manner. Compliance with relevant laws and regulations with justice and respect 
for human rights, as well as managing wages, remuneration, and other benefits which are appropriate in line with 
their responsibilities and the Bank’s performance in the short and long term. Furthermore, the Bank has a policy to 
encourage employees to enjoy a higher quality of life by offering a wide variety of benefits tailored to their specific 
needs. In 2021, employee stakeholder groups have 97.70 percent satisfaction with the Bank’s performance.

Low-income earner: 

The Bank is committed to providing low-income earners with access to financial resources in the financial 
system through financial education and savings habits development that reflect their ability to repay loans in order  
to prepare them for home ownership, as well as the development of goods and services to meet low-income 
earners’ demands in order to provide them with simpler and more convenient access to financial services. In 2021, 
low-income stakeholders have 100 percent satisfaction with the Bank’s performance.

Customer:

The Bank is committed to customer satisfaction by: serving a wide variety of financial products and services 
that are complete, of high quality, and ready to meet customers’ needs; offering service channels that use various 
technologies to facilitate the process and lower the cost of customers accessing Bank services; providing equitable 
customer service; prioritizing customer confidentiality; and informing customers about the risks of accessing the Bank’s 

financial services. In 2021, Customers’ stakeholder groups have 98 percent satisfaction with the Bank’s performance.
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Business partner:

The Bank recognizes the importance of cooperation and best practices in conducting business with its strategic 
partners with transparency, accuracy, speed, and fairness; as well as supporting cooperation in various important  
activities or measures that benefit the Bank, its customers, and business partners; and organizing a committee to review 
business partners’ annual performance in order to maintain their capacity to provide services to customers in terms 
of quality, price, quantity, complaints, or different service conditions. Furthermore, business partners’ confidentiality  
and personal information are strictly preserved for the benefit of the Bank’s stable and sustainable business  
operations. In 2021, the business alliance stakeholders have 96.15 percent satisfaction with the Bank’s performance.

External service provider/supplier:

The Bank treats external service providers/suppliers in line with commercial terms and contracts, behaves 
within the context of fair competition, and does not use deceptive methods in selecting external service providers/
suppliers. The Bank will not conduct business with unlawful third-party service providers/suppliers. The external 
service providers/suppliers must have an environmental and social responsibility policy, not an organization that 
pollutes the environment. The Bank announces various procurements through the Bank’s website. In 2021, stake 
holders in the group of external service providers/suppliers were 95.36 percent satisfied with the Bank’sperformance.

Society and Community: 

The Bank works with proper consideration of its obligations and responsibilities to the nation in economic, 
social, and environmental aspects, with the objective of encouraging good social change and maximizing the Bank’s 
social responsibility efforts. The Bank also continues to collaborate on a local and national level with community 
representatives and government agencies to implement various projects aimed at improving the quality of life 
in communities, while taking into account the appropriateness of social and community operations and creating 
sustainable benefits for society and communities. In 2021, social and community stakeholders have 100 percent 
satisfaction with the Bank’s performance.

Mass media:

The Bank acknowledges and respects the mass media’s right and independence to publish news or express 
opinions, which plays an important role in identifying news in order to disseminate information to the public without  
prejudice and for the benefit of society as a whole. Additionally, the Bank provides a channel for the media to  
inquire about or obtain significant information about the Bank for distribution to the public without interference 
based on accuracy, timeliness, transparency, impartiality, or noncompliance with laws and regulations or privacy 
rights of others. In 2021, media stakeholders have 96.67 percent satisfaction with the Bank’s performance.

4.2	 Fair competition

	 4.2.1 	Business competitors

	 The Bank bears responsibility for competitors by conducting business in good faith and not harming their 
reputations by using misleading information or unlawful practices. Antitrust and trade discrimination are encouraged 
to promote fair competition. The Bank also operates within the framework of fair competition guidelines, refraining 
from actions that may have negative influence on the financial industry, such as imposing unfair service conditions 
on customers, as well as anti-corruption and bribery that would result in the creation of a competitive advantage in 
the market for Bank operators through any means that will result in the Bank’s competitive advantage in the market. 
In this respect, penalties have been imposed on violators in order to encourage the operators to conduct business 
with responsibility towards the competitors and to compete fairly in the market to build sustainable confidence 

among stakeholders. 
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		  4. 	 Complaints box at service points

		  5. 	 Complaints in person at the Complaint Center, Customer Relations Department, branches,  
				    and Business Facilitor

		  6. 	 External organization

	 • 	 Digital & Social Media Channels

		  1. 	 Website: www.ghbank.co.th for lodging a complaint to the President, and also reporting  
				    corruption and misbehavior to the Customer Relations Department

		  2. 	 E-mail address: Complaint_Center@ghb.co.th

		  3. 	 Social Media (Inbox) e.g. Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, Pantip

		  4. 	 QR Code at branches and service points

Section 5  Sustainability and Innovation

5.1	 Sustainability

	 Sustainability banking refers to banking that focuses on long-term business and social growth by conducting  
business with environmental and social responsibility and adhering to the principles of environmental, social, and 
governance (ESG), as well as assisting in the creation of a driving force for all sectors, namely households, businesses, 
and governments, to work in a direction that leads to sustainable development, thereby preventing risks to both the 
economic system and the Bank itself. The Bank plays a vital role in sustainability by allocating financial resources 
from savers to borrowers in need of capital, while also taking into account the sustainable growth of businesses 
and society through a thoughtful credit approval process on the environmental impact to reduce the potential 
environmental risks associated with lending and the impact on the Bank’s reputation, and also considering lending 
to environmentally-friendly projects with no negative environmental effects. For the financial services, the Bank 
must take into account the long-term impact on customers, such as offering loan products by considering customer 
payback capabilities to minimize insolvency; developing services that will facilitate customers’ access to financial 
services, particularly for those with low income or living in remote areas; offering sufficient knowledge to promote 
good financial discipline; and giving customers the necessary information they need in order to choose a financial 
product that meets their requirements and abilities, etc. Furthermore, the Bank promotes operations that adhere to 
good corporate governance, both inside the Bank’s own organization and in conducting business with third parties  
in a transparent manner, along with having no involvement in fraud or corruption. These measures will reduce 
compliance risk and the impacts on the Bank’s reputation.

	 As a result, we can obviously see that becoming a sustainable bank may stimulate economic growth in the 
following ways: maintaining the financial system’s stability; ensuring the economy’s steady and sustainable growth; 
building trust and a good image for customers and investors; reducing social and environmental risks in business; 
increasing business opportunities and competitiveness. In terms of social aspects, these include: facilitating access to 
financial services; providing a standardized and transparent service; reducing the risk of people becoming bankrupt; 
and supporting long-term well-being and quality of life. 

5.2	 Innovation

	 The Bank focuses on innovation to create added value to the organization along with providing concrete 
benefits to stakeholders by developing a systematic organizational innovation management system to ensure that 
the organization’s innovation development creates competitiveness and sustainable growth. The driving factors are 
as follows: structures, roles, duties, innovation management policy, innovation goal and plan creation, innovative 
values and culture enhancement, as well as a system for monitoring, assessing, and performance reports. The Bank 
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	 •	 Regarding the disclosure of the Bank and customer’s information to organizations and third parties 
requesting the Bank’s cooperation with external authorities with legal authority in requesting information verification, 
requesting documentary evidence, or requesting cooperation for the Bank’s employees to testify as witnesses for the 
benefit of external organizations’ operations as required by law, such as the Anti-Money Laundering Office (AMLO), 
Office of National Anti-Corruption Commission, Revenue Department, and Department of Special Investigation.  
In this regard, the Bank will only disclose information to agencies with legal authority to request such information.

	 •	 The Bank developed an information system to provide customer service by allowing customers to 
submit suggestions or complaints directly to the President through the Bank’s website (https://www.ghbank.co.th/) 
and the G H Bank Call Center (0-2645-9000).

	 •	 The Bank submitted an annual report of implementating following the Official Information Act B.E. 
2540 (1997) to the Office of the Official Information Commission and the Ministry of Finance.

	 •	 The Bank organized a training course to build knowledge and understanding related to the Official 
Information Act B.E. 2540 (1997) to all executives and employees.

6.2	 Disclosure Policy / Person Responsible for Disclosure / Principles of Disclosure /
Types of Disclosure / Review of Disclosure Policy

	 The Bank has established a policy for information disclosure of the G H Bank by stipulating the Regulation 
of the Government Housing Bank No. 12 concerning the provision of official information in the Government Housing 
Bank for the public to examine, B.E. 2544 and the amended regulations defined the rights for stakeholders and the 
general public to know and access the Bank’s disseminated information. as well as establishing compliance with the 
laws, rules, regulations and procedures relating to information disclosure in its entirety for the purpose of the disclosure 
to be accurate, complete, clear and timely to relevant practitioners with the following objectives:

	 1.	To allow the Bank’s Board of Directors, Top Executives, Senior Executives, Executives, and Operators 
to concentrate on adhering to the official information laws.

	 2.	To determine approaches, procedures, and guidelines for the Bank to comply with official  
information laws in order to provide the public access to the Bank’s information under the principles of  
“Disclosure is the principle and nondisclosure is the exception.”

	 3.	To enable the Bank to practice, supervise, control the management and disclose the Bank’s  
information appropriately and have guidelines for the effective disclosure of information as required by law by  
safeguarding personal benefits and public benefits, including the protection of critical information under the principle 
of “Protection necessity” which is to safeguard the Bank’s secret.

	 4.	To protect certain types of the Bank’s information that are prohibited by law from being disclosure. 
Regulations clearly define the information that can determine the level of secret, the protection of critical customer 
benefits and personal information from violations that would harm personal interests and privacy in compliance 
with the principles of the Official Information Act.

	 5.	To allow the Bank to disclose accurate, readily available, and reliable information to the people who 
require the information, as well as to provide easy-to-access and convenient channels for information disclosure.

	 Authority Disclosure Information

	 1. The President has the authority to establish procedures, regulations, and practices for disclosing  
the Bank’s information in accordance with its information disclosure policy; define and review the authority of the Bank’s  
Official Information Committee; monitor and supervise the overall picture of the Bank’s information disclosure in 
order to reveal the Bank’s information according to the law, as well as determining the type of Bank information 
for further disclosure.
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	 The procedures in investigation concerning corruption and misconduct, the Complaint Center will forward 
the complaints to the Senior Vice President of the Audit Department. In order to ensure no unauthorized access, 
the data collection will be kept confidential by recording only the reference numbers, and complainants’ names 
with ‘Confidential’ statement. The complaint will be concealed and all documents will be kept in the secret files 
with clear responsibility. In addition, the data is stored with secret classification according to the principle of Data 
Governance.

Section 7  Risk Management and Internal Control  
The Board of Directors recognizes and places emphasis on systematic risk management and internal control. 

The Risk Management Committee has been appointed to oversee risk management and the Bank’s internal control 
as follows:

1) 	 Risk Management: Determine risk management policies; review the appropriateness of the policy and risk 
management system; establish risk management strategies and annual risk management plan as well as supervising 
and monitoring the Bank’s risk level in accordance with the Bank’s risk management policy approved by The Board 
of Directors. The Bank maintains sufficient capital funds to cover risks after the implementation of the Basel II criteria 
and enables to operate the business to obtain an appropriate return rate. The manaing department has appointed the  
Risk Management Committee to perform the duty of screening, supervising, monitoring, and finding ways to prevent 
risks to accommodate various risks at acceptable risk levels as well as encouraging the Bank to have a risk culture.

2)	 Internal Control: Scrutinize the internal control policy and annual internal control plans as well as  
monitoring the operations in accordance with the Ministry of Finance regulations regarding Standards and Criteria for 
Internal Control Practices for Government Agencies, B.E. 2561 (2018) and report to the Audit Committee to review 
the adequacy, efficiency, and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control process on a regular basis. The managing 
department has appointed a Committee to supervise the internal control system to report the performance in 
accordance with policies and plans approved by the Board of Directors.

Section 8  Business Ethics and Code of Conduct

8.1 	 Business Ethics

	 The Board of Directors, executives and employees must adhere to ethical practices as well as facilitating 
and serving the general public with the following good governance and code of conducts practices:

	 1.	 Adhere to the nation’s main institutions, namely the nation, religion, monarch and the democratic 
regime of government with the King as Head of State.

	 2.	 Perform duties honestly. Be responsible for duties. Do not seek unlawful benefits for oneself or 
others. Do not consent to use one’s position to seek benefits.

	 3.	 Courage in making decision. Conduct right, fair, and legal things.
	 4.	 Adhere to public benefits rather than personal benefits, having a public mind and no conflicts of 

interest.
	 5. 	 Focus on work achievement and maintain standards: quality, cost-effective, transparent, efficient, 

effective, and verifiable.
	 6.	  Perform duties fairly and without discrimination.
	 7.	 Be a good role model and maintain the Bank’s good image.
	 8.	 Provide fast services in good manners and act courteously without prejudice.
	 9.	 Providing complete and accurate information to the public.

	 10.	 Comply with the Bank’s Code of Conduct.
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8.2	 Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors, Executives and Employees

	 8.2.1	 Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors realizes the importance of good corporate governance, important factors that lead 
to the Bank’s credibility and efficiency. Therefore, the Board of Directors has established guidelines on Ethics and 
Code of Conduct for all stakeholders in order to strictly adhere to.

	 8.2.2	 Code of Conduct for executives and employees

The Bank attaches great importance to ethics and codes of conduct, with the Board of Directors reviewing 
and defining guidelines for the principles of good corporate governance and the Bank’s Code of Conduct at annual 
meetings, and publishing the Good Corporate Governance and Code of Conduct Manual through all of the Bank’s 
communication channels, including the Bank’s Website (www.ghbank.co.th), Intranet, sending emails to all stakeholders,  
including organizing activities to enhance behavior according to manuals for executives and employees, such as 
raising awareness. The Bank has strengthened Senior Executive’s role model in ethics and code of conducts so 
that the executives may transmit ethics and lead the team toward the same goals in accordance with the GIVE+4 
values. Since the Covid disease has spread so drastically in the last year, the approach of conveying experiences 
has been adjusted to include clip-captions. Furthermore, with an assessment score of atleast 80 percent, ethics 
issues are incorporated in every promotion and recruitment test. The said operation has developed moral and 
ethical programs by allowing executives and employees to attend moral and ethical training programs through the 
E-Learning system for at least 2 hours and with a score of at least 80 percent. In 2021, the Bank used Google Forms 
to perform a behavioral assessment of executives and employees in order to assess the ethical behavior and code 
of conduct of G H Bank operations. The average score for employee conduct was 94.40 percent, which was higher 
than the Bank’s criteria (90 percent).

8.3	 Anti-Corruption

	 The Bank has contributed to raising awareness, campaigning to strengthen honesty culture, disseminating 
knowledge about good governance, developing networks and encouraging all sectors to participate in all forms of 
anti-corruption by taking the actions as follows:

	 1. The Bank signs a cooperation agreement with the National Anti-corruption Commission, State Enterprise 
Policy Office, and other State Enterprises to implement the Anti-corruption National Strategy, phase 3 (2017 - 2021) 
continued from phase 2 (2013 - 2017).

	 2. The Bank develops and implements an anti-corruption policy approved by the Board of Directors. 
The Bank issues a circular notification for the Board of Directors, executives and employees to strictly adhere to 
the policy. An Anti-corruption Committee is appointed to support the development of an honest culture and  
consciousness in the organization.

	 3. The Bank promotes and supports the national strategy drive according to a three-party MOU by 
preparing an anti-corruption plan and performance report to the Anti-Corruption Operations Center. Moreover, 
the Bank’s management team and employees nationwide announce their intention to combat all forms of corruption 
(Zero Tolerance) together with the No Gift Policy: No gifts in every festival.

	 4. The Bank attaches great importance to communicatie anti-corruption policies. In 2020, the Bank reviewed  
and developed “G H Bank’s Good Corporate Governance, Ethics and Code of Conduct Manual” and delivered to 
executives and officers at all levels to use as a compliance framework. Executives and officers were asked to read 
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	 To ensure that the Bank’s business operations are transparent, open, and auditable in accordance 

with the Bank’s Good Corporate Governance Policy and Market Conduct principles of the control and audit system  

(3 Lines of Defense), the Customer Service Management has a process for controlling and reviewing operations, taking 

into account fair and concise service, as well as effectively managing conflicts of interest, resulting in fair customer 

services.  As a result, the Bank establishes conflict of interest guidelines as a corporate governance tool for all levels 

of bank executives, employees, and business partners to ensure that employees perform their duties with integrity, 

without pursuing personal benefits, or discriminating, and must not engage or be involved in decision-making in 

transactions or business interests in which they have an interest, whether directly or indirectly, that will result in a  

conflict of interest. Furthermore, the Bank oversees that there is no interference in decision making that raises  

the Bank’s risk by clearly allocating duties and responsibilities and conducting proper audits and balances to prevent 

such conduct for one’s own or a friend’s gain.

Section 9  Performance Monitoring
The Bank monitors the performance in accordance with the regulations of the Office of the Prime Minister on 

State Enterprise Performance Assessment, B.E. 2548 (2005), and related laws and regulations as follows:

1. 	 The Board of Directors monitors and reviews the performance under the Memorandum of Understanding  

and financial and non-financial performance on a monthly, quarterly, and yearly basis by comparing actual  

performance with desired goals as well as providing useful suggestions for improving the Bank’s performance as follows:

	 (1)	 Monitoring financial operations such as profit and loss, financial position, liquidity, budget  

disbursement, debt repayment ability, etc., a total of 40 times.

	 (2)	 Tracking non-financial operations, such as performance based on core missions, performance according 

to the government policy, performance according to the Memorandum of Understanding, performance according 

to the strategic plan and action plan, etc., a total of 77 times.

2. 	 Senior executives monthly monitor and review the performance in accordance with the Memorandum 

of Understanding through the Management Morning Meeting to compare actual performance with desired goals, 

forecast year-end performance, analyze problems/obstacles in the operation, and set guidelines for improvement.

3. 	 The Bank reports the performance according to the Memorandum of Understanding to the Ministry of 

Finance. The performance is reported twice a year, at the half-year and year-end.

4. 	 The Bank analyzes the observations of the Performance Assessment Committee (PAC) to formulate 

guidelines for the improvement and reports to the PAC according to the period of the state enterprise assessment.

5. 	 The Bank prepares a Compliance Report to present to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors 

once a year.



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 1

Government Housing Bank164

Regulatory Compliance
1.	 Evaluation of new state-owned enterprises on Corporate Governance & Leadership: CG & Leadership (Enabler 1) 

(Compliance Department as Assistant Secretary to the Sub-committee on Corporate Governance & Leadership). 
	 Since the State Enterprise Policy Office (SAO) has established a policy to implement the new criteria and guidelines 

for the assessment system of state enterprises, consisting of 8 Enablers for evaluating the performance of all state enterprises 
since 2020 onwards by allowing state-owned enterprises to submit information for evaluation of Core Business Enablers in all  
8 areas through information technology systems (http://seam.sepo.go.th). In 2021, SEPO submitted a report on the performance  
of state enterprises in 8 areas of Core Business Enablers (Baseline evaluation) to the Bank, where a team of assistant secretaries 
to the Sub-committee on Good Governance and Organizational Leadership considered the key challenges and operational 
circumstances of state-owned enterprises in the area of Core Business Enablers, including 10 topics of “Good Governance 
and Organizational Leadership” (Enabler 1) and summarized the vital points to create an improvement plan for standards and 
good practices in CG & Leadership; upgrade the scores by developing an operational performance tracking system according 
to the CG (Policy Monitoring System) policy to monitor the performance in accordance with the policy and good governance 
guidelines in its entirety by allowing the data subject to review the information before confirming its accuracy and taking 
into account of the operational performances that affect other policies, as well as creating awareness among operators to 
follow the policies and guidelines in order to report the performance outcomes in accordance with the policies and good 
governance guidelines to shareholders of the public sector in its entirety. The Board of Directors has established policies 
that are consistent with the CG & Leadership criteria of state-owned enterprises, which are disclosed throughout the system.  
The results are in compliance with the plan and have been fully reported with the approval and verification of the Compliance 
Department as the assistant secretary to the Sub-committee on Good Governance and Organizational Leadership (Enabler 
1). In this regard, the operational performance report for the year 2021 to the Board of Directors is based on the assessment 
criteria of state enterprises relating Corporate Governance & Leadership. The assistant secretary team of the Sub-committee  
on Good Governance and Organization Leadership collects and delivers complete documents in accordance with the criteria  
and guidelines for the new assessment system of state enterprises to the Organization Assessment Department via  
electronic system for 2 times as follows: the 1st time is on October 29, 2021 and the 2nd time is on December 15, 2021.  
The aforementioned documents will be considered and approved by the President as the Chairman of the Sub-committee 
on Good Governance and Organizational Leadership, so that the Organization Evaluation Department further submits within 
the specified timeframe defined by the State Enterprise Policy Office (SEPO).

2. 	 Bank of Thailand Notification (BOT) No. SorNorSor. 2/2564 regarding the provision of Reverse Mortgage of  
Specialized Financial Institutions.

	 Providing Reverse Mortgage is one of the country’s measures to support the elderly society, and the Cabinet has 
approved Specialized Financial Institutions to be a pilot bank in providing such loans under the scope of legal transactions 
established by law and under the Ministry of Finance’s consideration. However, since such loans are complicated products 
with different risks from general loans, the following matters should be paid attention to:

	 1)	 Have knowledge and understanding of the nature of the transaction and the risks that may develop as a 
result of the transaction;

	 2)	 The lending procedure is risk-managed by End-to-End Process.
	 3)	 The protection of financial service users is emphasized by highlighting that borrowers and others who may 

be affected by the loan applications have a greater knowledge of the nature of the product, the risks involved, and their 
rights in different cases.

	 Rules
 	 1) 	 Rules for governance and risk management
			   (1)	 Loan policies must be prepared in compliance with the Bank of Thailand’s policy on loan transactions, 

securities investments, and asset sales by Specialized Financial Institutions. The reverse mortgage policy must be clearly 
stated in writing and approved by the Specialized Financial Institution’s board of directors.

			   (2)	 Underwriting Standard on reverse mortgage must take into account the expected cash flows of the 
collateral value and the liquidity of the collateral at the time of the borrower’s death or mainly assume the maturity of the 
loan agreement.

			   (3)	 Classification and provision of reserves shall be in accordance with the Bank of Thailand’s Notification 
on the Regulations on the Classification and Provision of Reserves of Specialized Financial Institutions. Creditors for the  
elderly with residences as collateral shall be classified as normal throughout the loan term. In addition, the provision for debt 
including accrued interest receivable that does not exceed the value of the collateral provided by the Bank of Thailand can 
be deducted at a rate of 1 percent. To compensate any potential losses, the amount of debt and accumulated interest that 
exceeds the value of the collateral submitted to the Bank of Thailand will be deductible at a rate of 100 percent.
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			   (4)	 Maintaining the capital in accordance with the Bank of Thailand’s Notification on the Regulations of 
the Calculation of Credit Risk-Weighted Assets of Specialized Financial Institutions, where the Capital Requirements for Debts 
and Obligations of Committed Line by Standardized Approach are determined by risk weights in the calculation of credit 
risk-weighted assets as follows:

				    (4.1)	 Rever mortgage and a Loan-To-Value Ratio (LTV) as described below: 35 percent risk weighting
						      - If the evaluated value of the collateral is less than 10 million baht, the LTV Ratio will not 

exceed 100 percent.
						      - If the collateral has an evaluated value of 10 million baht, the LTV Ratio will not exceed 90 percent.
				    (4.2) 	 Reverse mortgage will have a risk-weight of 75 percent if the LTV exceeds the Bank of Thailand’s ceiling.
			   (5)	 Establish clear instructions and processes for collecting interest and service charges, and display current 

information prominently at each branch office and on the Internet.
			   (6)	  Recognition of Interest Income - The interest income in the form of Contract Rate or Effective Interest 

Rate (EIR) can be recognized in accordance with accounting standards. In addition, the interest income recognition will be 
suspended upon the borrower’s death or the expiration of the loan agreement, unless otherwise agreed, without canceling 
the recognition of such interest income that has already been recognized.

	 2) 	 Consumer Protection
		  In addition to complying with the Bank of Thailand’s notification on Market Conduct, the Bank must comply 

with the following additional requirements:
			   (1)	 Presenting information to borrowers and people who may be affected by the loan application, with 

minimum disclosures to borrowers at the time of entering into the contract, during the time of entering the contract, and 
during the effective period of the contract in order to provide borrowers the loan conditions and the ability to choose the 
most suitable loan for their needs and their own risks.

			   (2)	 Granting rights to borrowers and people who may be affected by loan applications

	 3)	 Fair credit management principles
		  The Bank of Thailand has increased the level of supervision and management in providing Market Conduct, 

as well as focusing on and encouraging ongoing assistance in following up on and resolving debt difficulties incontinuously 
lessen public debt burdens. In addition, for efficiently solving problems and providing more assistance to debtors, whether 
considering the interest rate to suit the debtor’s risk or determining the form of repayment in accordance with debtors’ 
repayment ability, notification of debtors’ rights and obligations, restructuring of debts in accordance with debtors’ financial 
condition, including accessing to the financial sources and obtaining bank assistance during the Coronavirus Disease 2019 
(COVID-19) pandemic situation, banks or outsourcing agencies must collect debts properly and fairly, as well as using the 
process of debt mediation before suing in order to settle debt problems and reduce litigation against debtors.

	 The end-to-end lending process is comprised of 6 processes as follows: 
 	 (1)	 Development and offering of loan products: Define pricing conditions consistent with the risk and the 

form of loan to be suitable and explicitly clarified. For example, the interest rate of the loans deducted from wages or using 
their own deposits as collateral should be lower than the standard interest rate to match the risks.

	 (2)	 Credit Risk Management: Make an appropriate collateral appraisal by notifying the rights of the debtor and 
guarantor; the latter, in particular, does not need to sign, which would make the guarantor accountable as a co-debtor if 
the loan amount is not received directly. The insurance conditions will not be designed to impose excessive burden on the 
debtors.

	 (3)	 Debt collection and debt collection fees: Appropriately overseeing debt collection behavior and collecting 
expenditures at the specified rate, while keeping the Bank of Thailand’s debt collection guidelines up to date.

	 (4)	 Providing assistance to troubled debtors by restructuring debts and mediating debt problems: Provide 
debtor assistance alternatives and support the whole debt mediation process, including describing the differences in legal 
consequences from legal debt mediation in its entirety.

	 (5)	 Litigation process: Supervise legal proceedings to guarantee fairness. If the debtor so requests, the Bank has 
to inform the debtor of legal proceeding information such as debt burden related to litigation and the exercise of the right 
in court to present the facts.

	 (6)	 Selling and transferring debts to other creditors: Provide accurate information on the debt transference 
and sale, and the accepting bank should consider the previous bank’s method of repayment by providing the debtor the 
equal or better right or in line with the debtor’s ability to repay.
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Social and Environmental Responsibility

The Bank has always prioritized social and environmental responsibility by establishing a policy to promote 
social and environmental operations in accordance with ISO 26000 standards, a globally recognized international  
standard of social and environmental responsibility guidelines. The Bank drives the implementation of social and  
environmental responsibility in a systematic and standardized way according to the CSR Model: “I AM” GHB consisting  
of CSR operations in 3 areas, which are: I-CSR in process focusing on the design, development and actual  
implementation of the operational procedure must consider the possible influence on the community and society as a 
whole; A - CSR after Process focusing on allocating the Bank’s resources to support or create initiatives with the purpose 
of enhancing people’s quality of life in major communities and; M-CSR in Mind focusing on developing personnel with a  
volunteer spirit to promote or support initiatives that are truly valuable to the community with outcomes providing real value 
to the community. The performance of the CSR Model: “I AM” GHB implementation in 2021 is as follows:

I-CSR in Process
The Bank has always prioritized the development of Financial Literacy to increase knowledge and understanding  

of financial institutions’ access to services and to prepare people for house ownership. Interested trainees will get  
recognition of the guidelines for action in 3 phases, including: Phase 1 - Developing financial knowledge on how to save 
money, both for residence purchases and the future; preparing total income and spending accounts for all family members; 
and using the data collected to analyze and determine the guidelines for reducing unnecessary and necessary expenses; the 
latter through growing their own home-grown vegetables; reducing the purchase of food, which in turn allows families to 
reduce expenses and even more money to save, despite having the same income. Phase 2: Cultivating a saving discipline by 
requiring consistent, equal or growing savings on a monthly basis. The achievement of this phase reflects both the discipline 
of saving and the discipline of household adjustment from the process of using household accounting to increase savings. 
Phase 3: Preparing for a home, because owning a home is a simple process if you understand the Bank’s loan rules, collateral 
calculation, income calculation for repayment, as well as interest rate calculation of paying off the house with an “Effective 
Interest Rate” program, which is completely different from the interest charged for an informal loan.

In addition to enhancing financial literacy, the Bank is developing new product and service launch  
guidelines by taking into consideration of the potential impact on society and the environment, as well as responding 
to the requirements and expectations of those who want to have a home with a range of seven products, including:  
1. Reverse Mortgage (RM); 2. State Housing Loan Project (Million Houses Project); 3. Financial School Project; 4. Housing 
Loan Program for Natural Disasters Victims; 5. Measures to support customers affected by the COVID-19 pandemic situation;  
6. Dream Homes Loan by GHB; and 7. Yoo yen pen sook Home Loan, as well as 1 type of digital service aims to improve  
the GHB All Application’s ability to provide more services such as obtaining electronic receipts, scanning for utility payments, 
checking account movements, and checking savings lottery prizes, among other things.

A-CSR after Process
The Bank operates its business with the expectation of good operational performance with higher  

competitiveness and potential than competitors, while the Bank also prioritizes demonstrating social and  
environmental responsibility based on generally accepted international standards. In 2021, the Bank has supported, promoted, 
developed and provided assistance to people in various communities in 5 areas, namely:

1.	 Housing aspect includes the project to build/repair residences for the poor elderly or handicapped, divided into 
25 new homes and 100 repaired homes, totaling 125 houses by distributing assistance in all regions, including communities 
in Border Patrol Police School areas, with the selection of qualified persons to receive assistance in coordination with the 
local administrative organization and community. The branch and district offices in charge of the area supervise and monitor 
the progress of the operations. The Bank’s assistance for building/repairing residences totals 4,462 residences.

	 Furthermore, the “Bank on Bank” project is the Bank’s ongoing and innovative project originating from 
the knowledge gained from great model education developed along with the specific talents and expertise of being  
“The Housing Bank for Thai People.” This project is to support the improvement of the quality of life for the  
Unserved group by establishing a Bank on Bank fund in order to lend money from the house renovations.  
Community leaders will oversee the selection of community members in a group to borrow money from the 
fund. Each group will consist of approximately 5-7 members responsible for overseeing each other’s behavior and  
expecting for complete repayment. When the community repays the borrowed money on a regular basis, the Bank  
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offers a payback period of up to 3 years at a low interest rate. According to the requirements of each community, 
the Bank will refund interest payments to the community for future benefit. By the end of 2021, the Bank has approved  
230 communities to borrow money from the Bank on Bank fund.

2.	 Education aspect includes Project to construct/repair school buildings in the wilderness. In 2021,  
the Bank operated under a cooperative arrangement between the Government Housing Bank and the Border Patrol Police 
Headquarters to construct and renovate 5 school buildings, including Ban Rada Border Patrol Police School, Kanchanaburi 
Province; support the construction of toilets for Chootisawithaya Border Patrol Police School, Nakhon Phanom Province; 
support the construction of early childhood school buildings for Cognis Thai Border Patrol Police School, Sakon Nakhon 
Province; support the construction of school buildings with equipment for Sangwanwit Border Patrol Police School 8,  
Chiang Rai Province; support the renovation of housing buildings for students whose homes are far away and construction of  
a vocational training building for Ban Kor Toei Border Patrol Police School, Surat Thani Province.

There is also an initiative to improve educational quality in teacher development. In 2021, the Bank  
organized an online activity of “G H Bank Developing the life of Border Patrol Police School’s Teachers” on the topic of 
“Classroom without Borders”, focusing on transferring experience to extend new knowledge to Border Patrol Police School’s 
Teachers. This initiative can be used to develop teaching and learning for students to be suitable for their own school,  
as well as realizing the importance of creating a career for the community simultaneously.

3.	 Social and environmental aspect - The Bank is committed to creating a sustainable career for the society and 
community. The Bank does not only support Thai people to have their own residences but also supports the career and 
basic living that will truly create happiness and sustainability for the villagers. Therefore, the Bank developed the project of “1 
Career, 1 Community for Sustainability”. For example, the Bank supports equipment to Wang Phong Sub-district Community, 
Pran Buri District, Prachuap Kiri Khan Province for the production of charcoal briquettes to improve the quality of charcoal 
briquettes produced by burning, crushing, and sifting coconut shells and pineapple stalks into a fine and smooth mixture 
after molding, thus distinguishing the product from commonly sold briquettes or molded charcoal in the area, as well as 
to add value to products and sell them for other purposes such as absorbing odors in refrigerators or closets, using as fuel 
for cooking or grilling, and so on. For another example, the Bank contributes to the development of buildings and tools 
for processing sweet bamboo shoots for the project of 1 Career, 1 Community and the Wang Si Thong Border Patrol Police  
SchoolCommunity in Wang Sombun District, Sa Kaeo Province. Originally, all fresh bamboo shoots were sold in this  
community, but are now processed into chopped bamboo shoots packed in bags that meet the FDA’s quality and food 
hygiene standards. It also adds value to the community’s products and supports the improvement of bamboo growing 
practices in order to generate high-quality bamboo shoots that are marketable and distinct from other community products.

4.	 Promotion of religion, arts and culture aspect include blood donation. The Bank has cooperated with the  
National Blood Center to accept blood donations every 3 months, totaling 4 times a year. In 2021, the Bank received a total 
blood donation of 247,900 ccs. In terms of religion, on November 5, 2021, the Bank hosted the Royal Kathin Robe Offering 
Ceremony for the year 2021 at Wat Maha Phruettharam Worawihan in Bangkok.

5.	 Sports aspect includes sponsorship for the Taekwondo Association of Thailand, a continuous support from 
the project 1 State Enterprise, 1 Sports Association, which began in 2006. The Taekwondo Association of Thailand is highly  
renowned for its achievements and consistent victories. Furthermore, in 2021, the Bank also awarded a special prize 
totaling 4 million baht to taekwondo athletes who made Thailand famous at the 32nd Olympic Games Tokyo 2020,  
as the Taekwondo Association of Thailand had brought happiness and smiles to Thai people in the midst of the Coronavirus 
Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic situation.

M-CSR in Mind
The Bank believes in the concept of “It is not a duty but a concern”, and has been successful in encouraging  

employees to have volunteer spirits or public minds by allocating personal time to activities or projects that benefit society 
or the community as a whole, both directly and indirectly. In 2019, the Bank’s average cumulative total volunteer hours 
were 8.9 hours per person, which grew to 14.4 hours per person in 2020.

As a result, the Bank continues to set a target of 60,000 employee volunteer hours in order to challenge staff to meet 
the volunteer or public mind targets by 2021. The severity of the COVID-19 pandemic situation was a major constraint of 
volunteer activities, but with the adaptability and creativity of the employees, the Bank has accumulated 63,809 volunteer  
hours by the end of 2021, surpassing the target, and accounting for an average of 12.76 hours per person per year.  
The activity with the most participants was the production of hygiene mask straps for distribution to medical workers and 
citizens around the country.
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Connected Transactions

In addition to Note to Financial Statement Subject 6.21, transactions of connected persons or companies; 

the Bank’s connected transactions (Lending and obligations) to subsidiaries, associated companies and related companies 

or organizations can be displayed as follows:

	  Unit : Million Baht

Bank’s Separate Financial Statement

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021

Co-Director or Senior 
management

Lending Obligations Bank’s 
Shares 

(percent)

Lending Obligations Bank’s 
Shares 

(percent)

Associate / Subsidiary companies

•	 SPV-SMC (7) Co., Ltd.  - -  48.00  - -  48.00 -

• 	SPV-SMC (8) Co., Ltd.  - -  49.00  - -  49.00 -

•	 SPV-SMC (9) Co., Ltd.  - -  49.00  - -  49.00 -

Related Companies / State Enterprises 
(Co-Director)

•	 The Government Lottery Office  - -  -  - -  - 
Mr. Chanvit Nakburee1

•	 National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.  - -  15.00  - -  15.00 

•	 National Housing Authority 1,762.10 -  - 1,876.96 -  - 
Ms. Patcharee Arayakul

•	 Public Pawnshop Office (Thailand)  - -  -  - -  - 

-  - -  -  - -  - Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr2

•	 Airport of Thailand PCL.  - -  -  - -  - Mr. Krit Sesavej3

-  - -  -  - -  - Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont3

•	 The Government Lottery Office  - -  -  - -  - 

Associate Professor 
Dr. Thanavath Phonvichai4

•	 Intermedical Care and Lab
	 Hospital PCL.

 - -  -  - -  - 

•	 Muang Thai Insurance PCL.  - -  -  - -  - 

•	 Singha Estate PCL.  - -  -  - -  - 

•	 Nakhonluang Capital PCL.  - -  -  - -  - 

•	 The Golden Bamboo Co., Ltd.  - -  -  - -  - 
Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng3

•	 Dee Trilittlepigs Co., Ltd.  - -  -  - -  - 

•	 BBL Asset Management Co., Ltd.  - -  -  - -  - Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse3

•	 National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.  - -  15.00  - -  15.00 
Mr. Chatchai Sirilai

•	 National Digital ID Co., Ltd.  - -  -  - -  3.12 

•	 Krungthai Card PCL. - - - - - -
Mr. Parinya Patanaphakdee5

•	 PPK Advisory Co., Ltd. - - - - - -

}
}

}

}
}

•  Significant connected transactions
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Bank’s Separate Financial Statement

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021

Co-Director or Senior 
management

Lending Obligations Bank’s 
Shares 

(percent)

Lending Obligations Bank’s 
Shares 

(percent)

Related Companies / State Enterprises 
(Co-Director)

•	 Dhanarak Asset Development Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 
Mr. Yuttana Yimgarund6

•  Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand - - - - - - 

•  Thai Credit Guarantee Corporation - - - - - - 

Mr. Theeraj Athanavanich7•  Tobacco Authority of Thailand - - - - - - 

•	 PTT LNG Co., Ltd. - - - - - - 

•	 Thai Maritime Navigation Co., Ltd,
	 (Joint venture with private companies)

- - - - - - 

Mr. Thanin Pa-em8

•	 Airport of Thailand PCL. - - - - - - 

•	 National Housing Authority 1,762.10 - - 1,876.96 - - Senior Colonel 
Dr. Jearanai Vongsaard8

•	 Palangpatara Co, Ltd.  - - - - - -
Mr. Wichit Sangtongstit8

•	 Thai Parcels Co., Ltd.

	 (Thai Parcels PCL.)

- - - - - -

•	 Thai Smile Airways Co., Ltd. - - - - - -
Mr. Pipat Khanthong8

•	 TOT PCL. - - - - - -

- - - - - - - Mr. Eitti Ponguussara8

Remark : 	 1	 Take a Position of Director: Since March 23, 2021 - October 27, 2021

			   Take a Position of Director of the Board of Executive Directors: Since October 28, 2021

		  2	 Take a Position of Director (First Term: March 22, 2021 and Second Term: Since March 23, 2021)

		  3	 Take a Position of Director: Since March 23, 2021

		  4	 Take a Position of Director: Since March 23, 2021 - January 16, 2022

		  5	 Take a Position of Chairman: January 31, 2022

		  6	 Take a Position of Director of the Board of Directors: March 22, 2021

			   Take a Position of Chairman: Since March 23, 2021 - October 31, 2021

		  7	 Take a Position of Director of the Board of Directors: Since March 23, 2021 - October 27, 2021

		  8	 Take a Position of Director : March 22, 2021

•  Pricing Policy for Connected Transaction
The Bank is a state enterprise under the supervision of the Ministry of Finance which may has business 

transactions with other state enterprises under the control of Thai government, both directly through government 
agencies or indirectly through associates or other organizations, therefore the Bank has set its fair prices and service  
conditions for government agencies according to traditional trading regulations. To prevent conflict of interest  
that may arise from connected transactions and to maximize values and its competitiveness, the Bank has set prices  
for trading transactions with related persons or companies as a general price according to the Bank’s public  
announcement, except for transactions that have conditions specified by regulatory agencies.

}

}
}

}
}

 Unit : Million Baht
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•  Policies and Guidelines for Future Connected Transactions

Connected transactions in the future will possibly occur as general business operations. If the Bank considers  

that transactions will generate greatest benefit to the Bank, such transactions will be performed in compliance  

with regulatory agencies and the Bank’s practice rules. The Bank will adhere to the same practices as general customer  

transactions.

•  Process for Connected Transactions Consideration

The Bank attaches importance to the prevention of conflicts of interest through connected transactions  

in order to ensure that connected transactions are in accordance with regulatory agencies’ regulations. Therefore, 

the Bank has complied with the regulations on conflict of interest prohibition, conflict of interest policy, whereby 

relevant departments has examined stakeholders’ information and relationship in the COI database contained  

in the GHB System. The Audit Committee will review the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal control,  

good governance and risk management processes as well as considering connected transactions or transactions that may  

have conflict of interest and reported to the Board of Directors.

To prevent conflicts of interest, the Bank has established the Code of Conduct for the Board members  

and executives to manage and approve connected transactions as follows:

1)	 Board members, senior management, executives and officers must disclose transactions that may 

have conflict of interest or connected transactions. When appointed to perform any duties, they must perform  

a self-examination (Declare) in accordance with reports required by authorities and the Bank. In order to build trust  

to the general public on the Bank’s good corporate governance, all departments/offices/regions/centers have been 

assigned to review and examine the lists of shareholders every year. The Audit Committee will review the effectiveness 

and efficiency of the internal control, good corporate governance, and risk management processes as well as considering  

connected transactions or transactions that may have conflict of interest and report to the Board of Directors.

2)	 Board members, senior management, executives and officers who have a stake or may earn benefits from 

transactions being considered or approved must not participate in the consideration process or abstain from voting 

for such transactions.

3)	 Avoid involving in transactions related to oneself or related persons that may cause conflict of interest 

and do not act in any manner that is contrary to the Bank’s benefits or seek personal benefits for oneself or related 

persons.

4)	 Board members, senior management, executives, and officers must approve any transaction  

with transparency, fairness, appropriateness and prudence by taking into account the sake of the Bank’s benefits  

to comply with laws, rules, regulations, official requirements, and the Bank’s requirements completely and accurately.
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Administration Manage Organization
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The Board of Government Housing Bank has approved the appointment of the Risk Management Committee 

(According to the Government Housing Bank Board Order No. 4/2564) effective from April 29, 2021, consisting of:

1. Mr. Krit Sesavej		  Chairman

2. Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng	 Member 

3. President			   Member

4. Mr. Kanawut Sititeerapan	 Consultant

5. Executive Vice President, Risk Management Group	 Secretary 

6. Senior Vice President, Risk Management Department	 Assistant Secretary 

The Risk Management Committee performed duties within the scope of duties and responsibilities as stated 

in the Risk Management Committee Charter approved by the Board of Directors on June 24, 2021. In 2021, 

the Risk Management Committee held a total of 11 meetings, and the Risk Management Committee’s performance 

was reported to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors quarterly.

The Risk Management Committee focused on overseeing the risk management process and overall internal 

control by keeping the risk within the level of risk appetite. The key points were summarized as follows: 

1.	 Considered, screened, reviewed, and verified the adequacy and efficiency of the Bank’s key policies 

to ensure that the policies are in line with international standards and regulations of the regulatory agencies 

such as the Bank of Thailand, Ministry of Finance, and Government Policies. Major policies, for example, 

are: Risk Management Policy, Integrated Governance Risk and Compliance Policy (GRC Policy), Internal Control Policy, 

Credit Policy, Credit Review Policy, Information Technology Risk Management Policy, Information Technology 

Security Policy, Policy on use of external Information Technology service providers, Business Continuity Management 

Policy, etc. The risk management policy covers important risks in various aspects as follows: strategic risks, 

credit risks, market risks, liquidity risks, operational risks, information technology risks, etc. 

2.	 Considered and approved the annual work plan related to risk management and internal control, comprising 

risk management plans, internal control plans, credit review plans, plans of the Anti-Corruption Center and 

the Center for Information Technology Security as well as followed up on the performance on a quarterly basis. 

3.	 Established corporate risk management frameworks comprising of Key Risk Indicators (KRI), Risk Appetite, 

Risk Tolerance and Risk Limits to align with the Bank’s business plan and Basel ll guidelines, as well as the State 

Enterprise Assessment Model (SE-AM) of the State Enterprise Policy Office, Ministry of Finance, to serve as a guideline 

for the Bank’s risk management.

4.	 Supervised the risk management in accordance with relevant policies by following up the performance of 

the scorecard and Key Risk Indicator (KRI), as well as closely monitoring significant risks such as economic conditions, 

technological changes, changes in customers’ behaviors, changes in government regulations and business 

competition, in order to manage the organization’s risk within an acceptable level and achieve the prescribed 

mission, goals, and key indicators.

Report of the Risk Management Committee
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5.	 Evaluated and monitored the Bank’s capital adequacy projections in accordance with the Bank 

of Thailand’s guidelines, along with stress testing to ensure the stability of the Bank. 

6.	 Promoted the development of various risk management tools, such as the Portfolio View of Risk tool 

for analyzing and assessing risks that affect the bank’s financial position; the Daily Aging Dashboard tool 

for monitoring the quality of credit portfolios and managing NPLs; the Statistic Repricing Gap tool for analyzing 

the impact of interest rate changes (100 bps.) on estimated net interest income; the Checklist tool for assessing 

risks of the Bank’s IT projects and the New Loan 1st Year Default Tool for monitoring the risks of new loan debtors 

who have the possibilities to become NPLs within the period of one year after the juristic acts and etc., so that 

the Bank can achieve the specified goals. 

7.	 Followed up on the management of the Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19) epidemic situation and its impacts, 

such as new loans or analyses of debtors affected by the outbreak who participated in assistance measures 

to alleviate the burden of debtors according to the Bank of Thailand’s policy, etc. 	

 8.	 Reported to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors on a regular basis of the status of risks 

and changes on the Risk Appetite in order to comply with the policies and strategies set by the Board of Directors.

   					   

					      (Mr. Krit  Sesavej)

        				    Chairman of the Risk Management Committee 
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Risk management is a critical management process and enables an organization in achieving its goals in a 

rapidly changing business environment and unforeseen events such as the ongoing effect of the Coronavirus Disease 

2019 (COVID-19) outbreak and the rising trend of cyber attacks, etc. In this regard, having an efficient and effective 

risk management system reflects strong management, transparency, and responsibility, which are critical factors in 

allowing the organization to grow steadily and sustainably.

The Government Housing Bank as a state-owned Specialized Financial Institution (SFI) has recognized the 

significance of Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) by implementing best practices guidelines such as the Committee 

of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO 2017 COSO 2013)’s framework forcorporate risk 

management. The Bank of Thailand’s practice guidelines are utilized as a risk management framework to ensure that 

the Bank’s operations adhere to international standards and procedures defined by the Bank of Thailand, respond 

in a timely manner to various risks and threats, including having an early warning system, managing capital funds 

and liquidity to support risks to an acceptable level by personnel at all levels involved in driving risk management, 

resulting in the Bank’s performance to achieve the mission, vision, strategy,and goals set.

Overview of Risk Management and risk operation strategy
The Bank recognizes the significance of establishing an efficient and effective risk management system  

contributing to the accomplishment of operational goals and stakeholder expectations within acceptable risk  

levels of Good Corporate Governance. As a result, the Bank has developed a risk management policy and manuals 

to ensure that all departments of the Bank have the same risk management guidelines and tools throughout the 

organization, in accordance with the risk management framework according to international standards, the Bank of 

Thailand’s guidelines, and the Ministry of Finance’s Risk Management regulations. The policy requires that significant 

risk reports on strategic risk, credit risk, market risk, operational liquidity, and information technology be reviewed 

on a regular basis by the Risk Oversight Committee, and the Bank’s Board of Directors.

Risk Management
The Bank’s risk management approach is based on the Bank of Thailand’s (BOT) risk assessment framework, 

COSO 2017 guidelines, and the State Enterprise Assessment Model (SE-AM) criteria of the State Enterprise Policy 

Office, Ministry of Finance in relation to Risk Management & Internal Control (RM&IC), including the analysis of  

internal factors consisting of strategic plans, master plans, and external factors such as government policy  

regulations, economic conditions, emerging risk, etc., as well as regulatory authority’s recommendations to  

determine risk factors, risk causes, risk management plan to manage the organization’s risk to an acceptable level 

and to achieve its mission, goals, and indicators, as well as to enhance the organization’s risk management efficiency 

under the rapidly changing environment.
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Risk Management in 2021
The Bank established a framework of key risk factors in accordance with all five risks, including:

1.	 Strategic Risk Risk that arises from formulation of strategic plan, business plan, and  

implementation of the plan that is inappropriate and inconsistent with  

internal factors and external environment that may affect the Bank’s income, 

capital fund, or viability.

2.	 Credit Risk Probability that the Bank’s counterparty fails to meet its contractual obligations  

with the Bank; as well as the opportunity for counterparties to be downgraded  

credit risk ratings. This may affect the Bank’s income and capital fund.

3.	 Market Risk Risk that may cause damage to financial institutions due to the change in the 

value of the position both in the statement of financial position and off the 

statement of financial position caused by the movements of interest rates, 

the price of instruments, exchange rates and commodity prices. Changes in 

interest rates and price of instruments may arise from general market risks 

and/or specific risks.

4.	 Liquidity Risk Risk that arises from the inability to pay debts or obligations upon maturity 

because assets cannot be converted into cash or fail to raisead equate capital 

to meet the Bank’s demand in a timely manner, or can secure capital but 

capital charge is higher than an acceptable level. This may affect income and 

capital fund due to the change of internal and external factors including the 

inappropriateness of the asset and liability structure of the Bank.

5.	 Operational Risk Risk that arises from inadequate supervision or lack of corporate governance 

and control within the organization, which involves the Bank’s internal process,  

people and system, or from external events, and affects income and capital 

fund, including compliance risks.

	
1.	 Strategic Risk Management 
	 Risks arising from the inappropriate development of strategic plans, operational plans and  

implementation that are inconsistent with internal factors and external environments affect the Bank’s income, 

capital funds, or existence.

	 The Bank addresses strategic risks by integrating process information between the strategic plan, the master 

plan, and the risk management plan in order to have excellent risk management that supports the attainment of 

risk-adjusted goals and indicators at an acceptable level. Through Risk Clinic activities, the Risk Management Division 

consults with Risk Owners on risk assessments to identify risk factors, risk appetite, and risk tolerance of organization  

and line of work’s risk factors in accordance with the Bank’s strategic risks. In 2021, the Bank’s strategic risk  

management is at an acceptable risk level. The following is a summary of strategic risk management:
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Policy • 	Review and improvement of risk management policy
•	 Review and improvement of good corporate governance policy, risk management  
	 and regulatory compliance

Process • 	Review and revise the strategic risk management manual
• 	Review and revise the operations manual of the strategic business risk and  
	 external event
• 	Review and revise a manual of integrated good corporate governance manual,  
	 risk management, and regulatory compliance

Risk Management Plan •	 Prepare an annual risk management plan and review during the year or when  
	 there are significant changes according to the BOT and COSO-ERM 2017 guidelines.

Risk Management Tool •	 Key Risk Indicator (KRI), Risk Appetite, and Risk Tolerance for each risk factor 
	 under strategic risks
•	 Creating a Portfolio View of Risk to view the Bank’s key
•	 Initiating the analysis of Leading Indicators for each risk factor

Monitoring / Performance Report •	 The Bank’s major risk reports are submitted to the Risk Management 
	 Sub-committee and the Risk Management Committee on a monthly basis.
•	 Report the performance according to the risk management plan to the  
	 Risk Management Sub-committee and the Risk Management Committee on a 
	 quarterly basis.
•	 The Bank’s major risk reports are submitted to the Audit Committee on a 
	 quarterly basis.

	 2.	 Credit Risk Management
	 Credit risk refers to the possibility or probability that a bank’s counterparty will be unable to satisfy its 

agreed-upon obligations, including the possibility of a counterparty being demoted to credit risk ratings, which might 
have an influence on the Bank’s revenue and capital.

	 In 2021, the economic recession caused by the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) outbreak is the major 
risk factor impacting customer debt repayment ability, hence the Bank manages credit risk using the following key 
solutions: 1) Review of credit policy, debt classification policy, reserve and debt restructuring in compliance with 
the current situation and rules of the Bank of Thailand; 2) Issue measures to assist affected debtors, such as the 
project of “GHB helps Thai people to build the nation “ to assist customers and alleviate the impact of the new 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) epidemic by suspending both principal and interest payments or suspending 
principal payments and paying only monthly interest and lowering interest rates or lowering installment payments 
(cutting off principal and cutting interest), among other things; 3) Prepare to enable the Bank to comply with  
regulatory requirements impacting its operations, such as Thai Financial Reporting Standard No.9 (TFRS 9), etc.; 
4) The adoption of the Credit Scoring Model (A-Score) system for credit consideration to ensure that approval 
requirements are consistent with good practice and credit objectives, including the implementation of the Credit 
Scoring Model (B-Score) in Loan Portfolio Management; 5) Creating a tool to monitor the risks of new loan debtors 
who may become NPLs within a year after completing legal transactions for Branch Division and daily Aging Dashboard 
for the Debt Restructuring Division to use tools through the SMART RADAR (Branch Portfolio Management) system 
to manage the quality of debtors, and; 6) Operating in line with Bank of Thailand’s announcements, such as credit 
risk-weighted assets calculation using the Standardized Approach (SA) based on Basel II regulations and testing the 
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crisis scenario to estimate capital sufficiency to ensure that the Bank has enough capital to support future credit 
risk-weighted asset effects. In 2021, the bank’s credit risk management outcomes are at an acceptable risk level, 
as summarized below:

Policy •	 Review and revise risk management policy
•	 Review credit policy
•	 Classification, provisioning and debt restructuring policy

Process •	 Review and revise the credit risk management manual.
•	 Review and revise the credit risk management operating manual.
•	 Prepare an annual risk management plan and review during the year or when
	 there are significant changes according to the BOT and COSO-ERM 2017 guidelines.

Risk Management Tool •	 Key Risk Indicator (KRI), Risk Appetite, and Risk Tolerance for each risk factor
	 under strategic risks.
•	 Credit Scoring Model (Application Scoring, Behavior Score).
•	 Early Warning System such as Daily Aging Report, Leading Indicators.
•	 Calculation of provision for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) in accordance with TFRS9.

Monitoring / Performance Report •	 The Bank’s major risk reports are submitted to the Risk Management  
	 Sub-committee and the Risk Management Committee on a monthly basis as well as  
	 proposing to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.
•	 Report the performance according to the risk management plan to the  
	 Risk Management Sub-committee and the Risk Management Committee on a  
	 quarterly basis

	 3.	 Market Risk Management
	 Market risk refers to the risk that financial institutions would suffer losses owing to changes in the value 

of their assets, liabilities, and obligations as a result of interest rate variations. This will have an impact on the Bank’s 
profit objectives and a decrease in the market value for equity. The Asset Liability and Finance Committee (ALCO) 
controls market risks, and there is a supervisory unit that analyses the potential of damages from risk factors trend, 
monitors, and reports significant risks that may arise influence on the Bank’s operations through various tools and 
risk indicators.

	 The severe spread of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) in 2021 has caused the authorities to adopt 
social distancing measures and lockdown the city in order to mitigate the impact of the epidemic. It has a severe 
impact on the economy especially the volatile financial markets. In order for the economy to recover following 
the easing of epidemic control measures in late 2021, the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) had to ease monetary 
measures by maintaining the interest rates at 0.5 percent throughout the year.

	 In terms of market risk management, the Bank has implemented appropriate and timely management,  
monitoring, and measuring systems to reduce the impacts of interest rate changes on net interest income and  
economic value within the risk ceiling defined by the Bank’s board of directors, as well as adjusting the process to 
be in line with best practices, regulations of the Bank of Thailand and other relevant regulations, resulting in market 
risk management outcome at an acceptable level. Summary of market risk management in 2021 is as follows:
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Policy •	 Review market risk management policy according to the BOT Notification 
	 No. SorKorSor.18/2562 Re: Regulations on Market Risk Supervision and Calculation 
	 of Market Risk-Weighted Assets of Specialized Financial Institutions.
•	 The Bank has transactions only for banking business purposes, not speculative 
	 transactions.

Process •	 Determine market risk indicators such as Static Repricing Gap, Duration-Based 
	 Gap (EVE Approach) and determine the Risk Appetite and the Risk Tolerance.
•	 Annually review stress testing, market risks by covering interest rate risks.

Risk Management Tool •	 Executive Information System (EIS).
•	 Business Intelligence (ERP-Module BI).
•	 Asset Liability Management System (ALM).

Monitoring / Performance Report •	 Report on the impact of changes in interest rates (100 bps.) on estimated net  
	 interest income (Static Repricing Gap).
•	 Report on the impact of changes in interest rates (200 bps.) on capital fund  
	 (Duration-Based Gap)
•	 Report on risk assessment under Stress (Stress Testing), market risks and plans  
	 for financing and rebalancing assets and liabilities,etc.

	 4.	 Liquidity Risk Management
	 Liquidity risk refers to the risk of being unable to settle liabilities and obligations as scheduled due to 

the inability to convert assets into cash or the inability to provide sufficient funds to meet the Bank’s demand for 

money on time or at costs that exceed acceptable levels, which may affect income and capital funds from the 

changes in internal and external factors, including the inappropriateness of the asset structure and liabilities (ALCO) 

with a regulatory authority to assess the possibility of damage from risk factors trends.

	 Despite the severity of the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) outbreak in the previous year, the Bank’s 

liquidity remained high as deposit volumes increased owing to customer reluctance to engage in risky assets. 

Furthermore, customer demand for new loans has decreased, combined with the Bank of Thailand’s measures to 

assist customers affected by the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) outbreak, has resulted in the Bank having 

excess liquidity. It has been invested in highly liquid assets to prepare for the case where customers require cash 

withdrawals for business purposes and to support the Bank’s credit growth in the future.

	 In terms of liquidity risk management, the Bank intends to raise funds by releasing deposit products and 

savings lottery tickets in order to have adequate liquid assets in both the short and long term, as well as to  

support the expansion of retail customers’ deposit base. Furthermore, the Bank emphasizes tools and procedures 

for measuring risks in order to deal with severe liquidity circumstances, and it conducts stress testing using Bank of 

Thailand simulation scenarios to estimate possible losses. During the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) epidemic, 

the Bank’s capital fund produced satisfactory liquidity risk management performance. The following is a summary 

of liquidity risk management in 2021:
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Policy •	 Review liquidity risk management policy pursuant to the BOT’s Notification  
	 Re: Liquidity Risk Management of Specialized Financial Institutions, dated  
	 September 2, 2019.
•	 Ratio of liquid assets pursuant to the BOT Notification No. SorKorSor. 21/2562  
	 Re: Regulations on Maintainance of Liquidity Assets of Specialized Financial  
	 Institutions.

Process •	 Determine liquidity risk indicators, Risk Appetite, Risk Tolerance and Risk Limits  
	 to monitor risks.
•	 Quarterly review stress testing and liquidity risks.

Risk Management Tool •	 Executive Information System (EIS)
•	 Asset Liability Management System (ALM) 
•	 Liquidity risk ratios and indicators such as liquidity ratio, Liquidity Coverage Ratio  
	 (LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSRF).

Monitoring / Performance Report •	 Follow up on a liquidity forecast report 30 days in advance.
•	 Report on Ratio and liquidity risk indicators, Contractual Liquidity Gap and 
	 Behavioural Liquidity Gap.
•	 Report on financial resource concentration and results of stress tests on 
	 liquidity risks, etc.

	 5.	 Operational Risk Management
	 Operational risk is defined as the risk of different damages arising from inadequacies or weaknesses in 

internal control mechanisms among personnel and work systems, or from external events, including legal risks 

such as the risk of litigation, legal action or fine, excluding strategy risk and reputation risk. The Bank has managed 

operational risks under the framework of the Bank of Thailand and COSO-ERM 2017 by allowing all departments 

to participate in risk management according to the 3 Lines of Defense consisting of the First Line of Defense, i.e. 

the Business Unit; the Second Line of Defense, i.e. Supporting agencies in charge of risk management and internal 

control and; the Third Line of Defense, i.e. an inspection unit. However, the Bank’s operational risk management 

outcomes in 2021 remained within an acceptable risk level and summarized as follows:
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Policy •	 Review and improvement of Risk Management Policy
•	 Review and improvement of BCM Policy;
•	 Determine Key Risk Indicators (KRIs), Risk Appetite, and Risk Tolerance for each  
	 risk factor under operational risk.

Process •	 Annually review and improvement of Risk Management Manuals and Operational 
	 Risk Management Plans;
•	 Review and update the operation manual of the Operational and System Risk  
	 Management Section;
•	 Create a Risk Self Assessment (RCSA) and connect significant risks to generate 
	 a Key Risk Indicator (KRI); and
•	 Analysis of the Loss Data
•	 Review contingency plan and business continuity plan in accordance 
	 with ISO22301:2019 standards and current situations such as the COVID-19 
	 pandemic.

Risk Management Tools •	 Operational Risk Management System (ORMS) Self-recording and store the data 
	 of Risk and Control Self Assessment (RCSA), Key Risk Indicator (KRI) and Loss 
	 Event

Monitoring / Performance Report •	 Report operational risks monthly.
•	 Report Loss Data monthly.
•	 Key Risk Indicator (KRI)

Development in 2021 •	 Has been assessed in order to maintain the validity of ISO 22301: 2019 certification,  
	 Business Continuity Management System, the Scope of the GHB All Application’s  
	 Money Transfer and Payment System - 1st round Surveillance
•	 Continuously improve the Operational Risk Management System (ORMS) to 
	 optimize system usage
•	 Create various Dashboard systems for use in Early Warning System (EWS), such as  
	 the KRI Dashboard system;
•	 Develop the GHB We Care system to assess the risk of COVID-19 infection and  
	 store employee vaccination information.
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	 6.	 IT Risk Management
	 Information technology risk refers to the risk that arises from the use of information technology such as 

operating systems, application systems, database systems, computer hardware, and communication network systems 

including risks arising from cyber threats (cyber attacks).

	 In 2021, the Bank has continually focused on information technology risk management to be efficient 

in order to support the new business model and disruptive technology, unexpected situations, such as an emerging 

disease (COVID-19), etc., under the framework of regulatory principles of the BOT, such as the confidentiality of 

systems and data (Confidentiality); accuracy, reliability of systems and information (Integrity); and availability of 

information technology (Availability), which was based on data protection and customers’ benefits. The Bank has 

managed key information technology risks as follows:

Policy •	 Prepare and review information technology risk management policies to keep up 
	 with the current situation.

Process •	 Conduct a Cyber Resilience Assessment and formulate a risk management plan.
•	 Prepare, review and test IT-DRP contingency plans to cover critical banking systems  
	 including a cyber threat response plan to support in the event that critical systems  
	 are unable to provide services or in the event of a cyber threat so as not to affect the  
	 Bank’s customer service and major operations.
•	 Apply the 3-Line Of Defense principle in risk management. All relevant departments  
	 are involved in risk management to prevent and mitigate risks in providing digital 
	 services.
•	 Communicate knowledge and raise awareness of information technology security  
	 including new cyber threats to employees including stakeholders, such as regulators,  
	 partners regularly.

Risk Management Tool •	 Conduct Risk Control Self Assessment for information technology risk assessment.
•	 Prepare Key Risk Indicators (KRI) on information technology, report loss events on   
	 information technology.

Monitoring / Performance Report •	 Report information technology risks monthly.
•	 Report Loss Data on information technology monthly.

Development in 2021 •	 Consistently comply with information security standards and request for various  
	 standard certifications such as ISO/IEC 27001, ISO 22301: 2019.
•	 Develop a standard checklist for managing risks in the implementation of key 
	 information technology projects and assess the risk of sensitive information  
	 leakage, etc.
•	 Apply for a cyber insurance to prevent damage to an acceptable range.
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Internal control
Internal control at the Bank is carried out in compliance with the Ministry of Finance’s laws and  

regulations governing internal control for government entities in 2018, as well as international standards, namely: 

The Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in order to achieve the objectives 

of internal control in 3 areas: Operation, Reporting, and Compliance with laws and regulations related to the Bank’s 

operations. In addition, the Bank has consistently managed its internal control process by establishing internal control 

units carrying out independently based on the internal control components listed below:

1.	 Control Environment: The Bank has an adequate internal control environment, with the Board of Directors 

and executives introducing an internal control policy, serving as a role model in integrity and ethics, establishing a 

clear working structure in accordance with their obligations and responsibilities, and developing written policies and 

procedures for human resource development.

2.	 Risk Assessment: The Bank prioritizes risk management by developing corporate risk management  

policies and assessing risk at all levels. The Bank has implemented Business Continuity Management (BCM) practices 

in management in the midst of the Coronavirus Disease outbreak in 2019 (COVID-19).

3.	 Control Activities: The Bank has reviewed its operations on a regular basis to ensure compliance with the 

laws, regulations, and operating manuals, as well as produced written policies and regulations with clearly separation 

of duties and responsibilities to inspect the work and the balance of powers.

4.	 Information and Communication: The Bank complies with Personal Data Protection Laws by setting 

guidelines for collecting, using, and disclosing customer personal information, as well as guidelines for archiving 

important documents and operational information both internally and externally, to ensure that the information 

that is important and relevant to the Bank’s business is accurate, complete, adequate, and timely for use.

5.	 Monitoring and Evaluation: The Bank assesses the effectiveness of its internal controls at least once  

a year, follows up on and reports the outcomes of its internal control improvement plan to the Board of Directors 

on a quarterly basis, with an audit committee reviewing it to ensure that existing internal control procedures are 

adequate and appropriate.

The Audit Committee investigated the adequacy and appropriateness of the Bank’s internal control 

procedures in 2021 and discovered no major changes. 
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Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

At the meeting No. 3/2021 on March 30, 2021, the Board of Directors resolved to approve the appointment 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, comprising of Mr. Narin Opamurathawongse as the Committee 
Chairman, with Ms. Patcharee Arayakul and Mr. Krit Sesavej as Directors and the Bank’s President as an advisor  
to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has performed various tasks in accordance with the principle 
of good governance under the duties and responsibilities as stipulated in the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee Charter by setting forth policies, criteria, and methods for recruitment, appointment, promotion, remuneration 
and other benefits for Senior Vice President of departments/offices/regions (equivalent or higher level), Senior 
Executive Vice President or equivalent levels, as well as remuneration and other benefits to the directors in various 
sub-committees and proposed to the Board of Directors for approval. The Committee also established performance 
evaluation guidelines and annual remuneration adjustments for sub-committee members and Executive Vice President 
(equivalent and higher level) as well as determined the remuneration and other benefits of the President and 
proposed to the Board of Directors for approval, among other things.

In 2021, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held a total of 12 meetings. Each committee attended 
the meeting and performed their duty in considering important matters to be presented to the Board of Directors 
as follows:

•	 Considered the framework for performance assessment of Senior Executive Vice President or equivalent 
level and Executive Vice President or equivalent level.

•	 Considered the guidelines for employee performance-based bonus payments for employees in job 
ranks 9–11 and 8 (Branch Executives only).

•	 Considered and scrutinized the performance assessment of Senior Executive Vice President or equivalent 
level and Executive Vice President or equivalent level, including the annual performance assessment of the President 
for annual salary increases.

•	 Considered and scrutinized the results of self-assessment and group-assessment of the Board of Directors.
•	 Considered and scrutinized the appointment of the Bank’s executives (promotion/rotation/in acting).
•	 Considered the selection of the Bank’s Directors for a position in the sub-committees.
•	 Considered and scrutinized the Bank’s Human Resources Management Master Plan.
•	 Considered and reviewed the performance assessment form of the President in terms of organizational 

management abilities (on the part of the assessment staff).
•	 Considered and reviewed the Bank’s Board of Directors nomination policy.
The Bank’s human resource management has been constantly improving and helping the Bank to effectively 

achieve the goals in accordance with the government policy in 2021. With meeting minutes and recommendations 
reported to the Board of Directors quarterly by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Committee also 
has performed duties as assigned by the Board of Directors to the best of their ability with care, prudence 

and transparency for the best interests of the Bank and all stakeholders.  

			                                                                    (Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse)

  				                                          Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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Human Resource Management

	 1.	 Human Resource Management Plans/Projects
	 According to the Bank’s strategy to become Digital Banking by upgrading customer service and internal 

work processes to support Digital Banking as specified in Strategic Objective 3 (SO3), concentrating on efficiency in 
personnel cost management which is Human Capital Return on Investment (HCROI), including enhancing personnel 
capacity to support transition in order to efficiently increase productivity.

	 As a result, the Bank has established a variety of initiatives under the 5R strategy to prepare individuals in 
terms of current and digital skills to support the future with a workforce capacity appropriate for the Bank’s mission, 
as well as enhancing value corporate culture (GIVE+4) in order to support the Bank’s objective to become Digital 
Banking as follows: 

	 1)	 Recruit strategy or Digital DNA recruitment focuses on improving the efficiency of the recruitment 
system for people with basic digital skills by using the Competency Base Interview (CBI) tool, which is the design 
of interview questions based on the Bank’s skills and competencies to recruit new employees with the required 
qualifications; adding a Digital Skill test to the recruitment process to ensure that they can attract individuals who 
fulfill the Bank’s requirements; adopting the Probation Assessment Form to add Digital Skill assessment topics to 
new employees; and using communication to popularize the Bank’s image in terms of Employee Digital Branding  
through various bank channels to encourage the younger generation to apply for a job with the Bank; and to  
recognize that G H Bank employees are “Proud to be GHB Digital Life.” 

	 2)	 Retrain strategy or personnel development to support changes by dividing development  
process into 3 groups, consisting of:

		  2.1)	 Developing and educating the Bank’s employees on GHB All Application in various areas, such 
as how to download GHB All Application, functions in the GHB All Application / the ability to recommend GHB All 
Application to customers, as well as troubleshooting GHB All Application by re-skilling and up-skilling executives 
and employees to have the necessary knowledge / skills / experience through training courses via the E-Learning 
system.

		  2.2)	 Developing high performance personnel and preparing them to become the Bank’s key successor.

		  2.3)	 Improving the capability of human resource management personnel to have knowledge and 
ability in order to become successful strategic partners or internal consultants.

	 3)	 Re-Allocate Strategy or Manpower rate management to support Digital Bank Despite the  
emergence of digital disruptive, the Bank’s policy is not to reduce the number of employees but to use the 
Re-Allocate approach and re-skilling/up-skilling personnel to support the Bank’s upgrade to Digital Banking in order 
to use the existing manpower efficiently in 2021.

	 4)	 Re-Attitude Strategy or focusing on enhancing Culture To keep up with the digital banking 
transformation, the Bank has revised its corporate culture from GIVE to GIVE+4 and promoted the application of GIVE+4 
values to benefit the Bank and customers under the concept of “GHB 1 TEAM thinks differently but is not separated” 
by organizing a workshop “GHB 1 TEAM” for senior executives and asking them to jointly create a project “GHB 1 
TEAM” as a project in the work group/division in 2022, including acting as a role model for employees to adhere to.

	 5)	 Restructure Strategy or reviewing the structure to support the changes Working towards  
becoming a digital bank is the process of restructuring the Bank to accommodate future competition. In 2021,  

the Bank examined and restructured the Information Technology Group and the Debt Restructuring Group.
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	 3.	 Employee Remuneration and Expenses
	 The Bank has a policy to determine employee remuneration based on economic conditions, cost of living, 

standard compensation of the same industry group, business conditions, and the Bank’s performance, which is still 

in accordance with the criteria for improving the incentive system for remuneration according to the performance 

appraisal system of state enterprises and the Bank’s regulations. In addition, the Bank has a performance-based 

bonus system. For annual salary increases, the Bank sets a different salary increase rate (Money Model) base on the 

employees’ level of evaluation, while bonuses are paid according to the Bank’s executives’ assessment performance.

	 In 2021, the Bank had expenses for its employees (including senior executives) consisting of salaries, bonuses, 

and welfare expenses such as contributions to the provident fund, medical expenses, child support, child education 

assistance, and costume costs, totaling 4,633.56 million baht. The details are as follows:

	 Unit: Million Baht

Item 2019 2020 2021

Salary 2,390.44 2,549.71 2,733.55 

Bonus 1,295.96 1,291.70 1,343.67 

Welfare 503.52 526.72  556.34

Total 4,189.92 4,368.13  4,633.56

	 4.	 Employee Training and Development Policy 
	 The Bank has adapted human resource development plans to prepare personnel for technical  

developments and current competitiveness, including the following development policies to suit significant changes:

	 1)	 Conducting people capability development in both Core Competency Managerial Competency and  

Common Digital and Functional Competency in order to prepare information for use in the creation of an Individual 

Development Plan (IDP) to develop their capacity to efficiently accomplish the Bank’s objectives or directives.

	 2)	 Emphasizing on developing personnel’s digital potential to support the Bank’s progress toward  

becoming a fully digital bank, such as the GHB ALL Application Program, the Cyber Security Act Program, the Program 

of adjusting the deposit account opening process to be Digital Service, the Digital Leadership Program, the Intensive 

Cybersecurity Capacity Building Program, the CMMI Standard, etc.

	 3)	 Developing a self-learning system for employees to adjust to the new normal lifestyle amidst the  

Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic situation that adheres to the Social Distancing principles while also 

allowing for greater flexibility, speed, and convenience for personnel.

	 4)	 Developing and reskilling financial personnel to increase their knowledge and skills in credit  

operations in order to prepare manpower for effective business development support.  
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	 5)	 Developing employees’ professional expertise in auditing, technology, and human resource  

management. The Bank encourages and supports executives and employees in taking professional qualification tests 

with nationally and internationally recognized external organizations, such as Certified Professional Internal Auditor 

of Thailand, Certified Internal Auditor, Certified Ethical Hacker, Certified Information Security Manager, IRCA/2016 ISMS 

Auditor/Lead Auditor (A17207), Internal Audit Competency Framework, HR Certification, Treasury Dealer Certification, 

Advance Audit Committee Program (AACP), etc.

	 6)	 Promoting development according to Model 70:20:10 as follows: 70: Experiential Learning; 20: 

Coaching & Mentoring and; 10: Formal Learning by focusing on self-learning and experiential learning through Digital 

Learning in order to develop digital learning skills for personnel, until it becomes a Digital Culture.

	 7)	 The Bank has a structured and ongoing development strategy to prepare and support the  

succession of Executives such as the Leadership Succession Program (LSP) for Senior Executives and the Leadership 

Development Program (LDP) for Executives at the department/office/region level.

	 8)	 The Bank has implemented the High Potential Management Project and the High Potential  

Management Boost Up Program for executives at the Vice President/Head of Division levels or equivalent to  

continuously develop their high potential in order to prepare for the role of Senior Vice President of a department/

office/region.

		  Simultaneously, the Bank has improved personnel at the operation level and first-line executives 

through the Smart Leader program to enhance their potential to support the Bank’s growth and to prepare for the 

formation of the Bank’s next-generation leaders.

	 9)	 Evaluating the Bank’s personnel career path as a guideline for building and raising their morale with 

comprehensive growth and development directions to support the Bank’s advancement.

		  Furthermore, the Bank has developed personnel in other areas related to the Bank’s business  

operations and supports future changes such as Business Continuity Management (BCM) ISO 22301 Standards,  

preparation of plans to reduce and prevent risks in IT operations, Digital Leadership Innovative IA: Recalibration for 

the COVID Environment, Modern Banking Executive Development Program (MOBEX), etc. Over the last year, the Bank 

has established a variety of development approaches, including Virtual Classroom, E-Learning, VDO Conference, 

Project Assignment, and Coaching & Mentoring, etc.

		  In 2021, the Bank improved executives and employees through 57 in-house training courses,  

102 public training courses, and 24 e-Learning system courses, totaling 183 courses with an average cost of 3,632.61 

baht per person per year, accounting for an average of 124.60 hours of training per person per year.
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Report of the Audit Committee
	 The Board of Directors has resolved to appoint the Audit Committee consisting of qualified independent 

Directors. The members of the Audit Committee that performed duties in 2021 are as follows:
	 1.	 According to the Bank’s Board of Director Order No. 18/2563, as of April 29, 2020, 
		  effective from  April 24, 2020 to March 22, 2021, consisting of:
		  Mr. Thanin Pa-em	 Chairman of the Audit Committee 
		  Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr	 Member
		  Mr. Wichit Sangtongstit	 Member
	 2.	 According to the Bank’s  Board of Director Order No. 3/2564, as of April 29, 2021, 
		  effective from April 29, 2021 to  January 17, 2022, consisting of:		
		  Asst. Prof. Dr. Thanavath Phonvichai	Chairman of the Audit Committee (The resignation is effective from January 17, 2022.) 
		  Dr. Kirida Bhaopichitr	 Member
		  Mr. Ratsapa Chirakranont	 Member
	 The top management of the Audit Department acts as the Secretary of the Audit Committee. 
	  In this regard, the Audit Committee has performed duties within the scope, powers, duties, and responsibilities 

as stated in the Audit Committee Charter assigned by the Board of Directors and in line with the Ministry of Finance’s 
regulations regarding the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit Unit of State Enterprises B.E. 2555; the Operational 
Manual of the Audit Committee in State Enterprises, Ministry of Finance B.E. 2555. The Audit Committee emphasized 
on the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal audit processes to enhance added value and to prevent potential 
damage to the Bank as well as focusing on the Bank’s transparency.

	 In 2021, the Audit Committee held a total of 13 meetings to consider and follow up on various matters 
by discussing on the relevant agenda with the management and held special meetings to discuss with the Bank’s 
auditor (Office of the Auditor General) on a quarterly basis. The Audit Committee has reported the performance 
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis, which can be summarized as follows:

	 Financial Reports
	 The Audit Committee reviewed the Bank’s financial results and financial reports on a monthly, quarterly 

and annual basis together with the Finance and Accounting Group executives. Along with the Bank’s auditors, 
the Committee also considered the financial reports which have been reviewed and audited by the auditors in regard to 
the accuracy, the report of important account improvements, and the issues that have significant impacts on 
the financial statements including the auditors’ observations from the audit and review of the financial statements 
to ensure that the Financial Statements and Financial Reports were in accordance with financial reporting standards, 
and the requirements of  Ministry of Finance and the  Bank of Thailand, and that the disclosures of information 
were adequate, complete, timely and reliable.  Furthermore, the Audit Committee has also monitored the Bank’s 
operations and preparations to be in compliance with the new financial reporting standards on a regular basis, as well as 
the impacts of COVID-19 pandemic and other internal/external situations that may affect the Bank’s financial reports.

	 Internal Control
	 The Audit Committee emphasized on the “Three Lines of Defense” management concept; namely. 

The internal controls system was reviewed by considering the Bank’s internal control assessment reports, internal 
audit reports of the Bank of Thailand and the Office of the Auditor General of Thailand. The Audit Committee also 
monitored on the preparations of the internal control system and internal control self-assessment, as well as followed up 
on the improvement results of the internal control system and solved issues identified by the internal audit unit 
and regulatory agencies, such as the Ministry of Finance, State Enterprise Policy Office, Bank of Thailand and the Office 
of the Auditor General of Thailand; to be appropriate and timely to ensure that the Bank’s internal control system 
was appropriate and sufficient. Furthermore, the Audit Committee also reviewed the Bank’s operations to be in accordance 
with the State Enterprise Assessment Model: SE-AM, prescribed by the State Enterprise Policy Office, Ministry of Finance; 
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Report of the IT & KM-Inno Strategy and
Policy Committee

The Board of Directors has resolved to appoint the IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee responsible 
for overseeing information technology and the operations of knowledge management and innovation within 
the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned in the IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee Charter. 
The Committee consisted of independent directors and qualified persons as follows:

1.	 Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng	 Chairman 

2. 	 Mr. Chanvit Nakburee	 Member

3. 	 Mr. Theeraj Athanavanich	 Member

4. 	 Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse	 Member

5. 	 President			   Member

6.	 Mr. Sommart Maneeyan	 Consultant 

7. 	 Senior Executive Vice President, Information Technology Unit	 Secretary

On December 23, 2021, the Board of Directors issued an order to appoint a new IT & KM-Inno Strategy 
and Policy Committee, consisting of:

1.	 Dr. Krithpaka Boonfueng	 Chairman 

2. 	 Mr. Chanvit Nakburee	 Member

3.	 Mr. Narin Opamuratawongse	 Member

4.	 President	  		  Member

5.	 Mr. Sommart Maneeyan 	 Consultant 

6.	 Senior Executive Vice President, Information Technology Unit	 Secretary

In 2021, the IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee oversaw information technology and 
the implementation of knowledge and innovation management in accordance with the scope, authority and  
responsibilities as determined in the Charter of the IT & KM-Inno Strategy and Policy Committee with the meeting 
results reported to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis. Key points can be summarized as follows: 

Established digital technology, knowledge and innovation management policies.

For Digital Technology Management, the Committee has established a good IT Governance Policy as a guideline 
for managing, supervising, controlling and overseeing the use of technology to be worthwhile and in accordance  
with said policy and to be prepared for changes in accommodating digital services continuously both in the present 
and the future by following up on the performance of key digital projects such as the Digitizer project and 
the GHB Intelligent Dashboard project, which supported efficient internal management; the GHB Connect e-Signature 
e-Contract project, which enhanced the accommodation of customers in using the bank’s services and supported 
the establishment of the SOC (Security Operations Center) unit to monitor the results of digital technology security 

surveillance, thereby strengthening the Bank’s technology structure.
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The Bank’s “Digital Service”
2021 was the year where the Government Housing Bank continued evolving into Smart Digital Services  

in line with the Bank’s strategy, despite the fact that GHB has been challenged by the Coronavirus Disease 2019 

(COVID-19) pandemic situation since 2020, which greatly impacted on the country’s economy and changing  

customer behavior through channels, as well as new social contexts such as equality, diversity, privacy, aging society, 

and environmental concerns.

G H Bank remains committed to expanding customer service through digital channels by integrating  

information technology innovations with new normal lifestyles in order to support the emerging effects and  

changing social contexts. In addition, the Bank’s internal operating model has also been adjusted to be faster and 

more efficient; and continuously enhances information technology security in order to build confidence among  

the Bank’s stakeholders in all sectors through various strategic projects driving operations to achieve concrete  

strategic objectives. In this regard, the Bank has set up 2 information technology strategies as follows:

1.	 IT Services Strategy The Bank places a high priority on the development of digital platforms and 

technical breakthroughs in order to provide customers with experiences that correspond to their lifestyles and to 

enhance the Bank’s internal procedures, consisting of:

	 1.1 	 External Services is an expansion of digital channels and services to fulfill the requirements of  

customers and the general public, including the following major projects:

		  -	 Information Technology System to support customer registration to take measures to help and 

mitigate the economic impact caused by the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic situation according to 

government policy by the Ministry of Finance under the project of GHB unites Thais to Build a Nation.

		  - 	 Reverse mortgages to support the country’s transition to an aging society.

		  - 	 A registration system for applying for a loan under the Million House Project Phase 2 to enhance 

opportunities for low to middle income groups to access home loan sources or persons starting a family, including 

the elderly, to purchase dwellings to live on their own.

		  - 	 Line GHB Buddy Channel Initiative to improve customer contact shifted from SMS channel to 

Application Line channel to facilitate notice of every entry-exit notification of winning lottery prizes and applying 

for loans witout service fee.

		  - 	 The e-Signature/e-Contracts Project was developed in response to the requirement for loan 

agreements to be signed using a digital system rather than traditional paper contracts.

		  - 	 G H Bank Smart NPL project as a channel for compromising customer debt before entering the 

legal process.

	 1.2	 Internal Services is the development and production of digital technology systems as well as 

new innovations to encourage employees perform more efficiently, reduce redundancy, and focus on minimizing 

resources, as well as having an international standard consisting of the following significant projects.
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		  - 	 The Digitizer project’s form/request form to be effective, develop a collection, follow-up, and 

assessment by becoming a paperless job approval system to assist Bank employees’ work during Work from Home 

(WFH) and minimize the utilization of corporate paper resources.

		  -	 The GHB WE project provides internal communication through a mobile application, supports 

time attendance, acknowledgement of essential regulations and processes, and acceptance of Pay Slips, etc.

		  -	 The Electronic GHB Intelligent Dashboard (eGID) project seeks to provide a Dashboard to support 

in the administration and operation of all essential processes throughout the organization.

		  -	 The PDPA system project, which was established to facilitate the administration of personal data 

in line with the Personal Data Protection Act B.E. 2562 (2019), highlights the Bank’s commitment on comprehensive 

personal data management.

2.	 IT Infrastructure Strategy focuses on improving the management of information technology and  

digital infrastructure in order to strengthen security and support the Bank’s digital services safely, efficiently, and in 

accordance with international standards, consisting the following major projects:

	 2.1	 Data Analytic for Up/Cross Sales Project supports Data Virtualization in order to thoroughly analyze 

data and utilize such information to develop and offer solutions that better suit the demands of customers.

	 2.2	 The Integrated GRC Platform Project is created to develop a Dashboard for monitoring the Bank’s 

readiness for compliance with principal state laws and regulations.

	 Furthermore, in order to accomplish information technology management in line with international 

standards, the Bank has been constantly accredited with ISO in 4 areas, namely: (1) ISO/IEC38500:2015 standard, 

covering good IT Governance and the preparation of Data Governance within the organization; (2) ISO/IEC22301:2019 

standard of “Business Continuity Management System”; (3) ISO/IEC27001: 2013 standard of “Information Security 

Management System (ISMS)”; and (4) ISO/IEC20000:2018 standard of “IT Service Management(ITSM)”.

	 In the midst of the crisis and rapid changes, the Bank has applied digital innovations to create and  

develop IT services and upgrade its IT Infrastructure to support its services safely, effectively, privacy respected,  

and in line with international standards, create equal access to good services and comply with the new social  

context, and be ready to move forward in all challenging situations to fully embrace Digital Banking. Furthermore,  

the Bank can operate in line with its purpose of “Enabling Thai people to have their own homes” and becoming 

“The Best Housing Solution Bank”, while taking into account of economic, social, and environmental repercussions, 

as well as sustainable corporate governance.



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 1

Government Housing Bank198

Report Financial
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Report of the Board of Directors’
Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors has been prioritizing and attentive to the responsibility for the Bank’s financial statements, 

including financial information shown in the Annual Report. The financial statements were prepared in accordance 

with the BOT’s regulations on accounting and financial reporting of specialized financial Institutions with appropriate 

accounting policies applied on a consistent basis. The Board of Directors has established a good disclosure system 

to ensure that the Bank has disclosed sufficient and reliable financial information.

The Board of Directors has arranged for management under the good corporate governance system, 

maintaining proper and effective risk management and internal control systems, including internal audits to ensure 

that the financial information is accurate and sufficient to preserve the Bank’s assets as well as preventing fraudulent acts 

or significant irregularities and has prepared appropriate financial statements.
The Board of Directors has appointed the Audit Committee comprising of Independent Directors solely. 

The Audit Committee is responsible in overseeing the credibility and accuracy of financial reports as well as 
the adequacy of the internal control system, reviewing audit results with the Bank’s auditors, suggesting any item 
to be reviewed or examined if deemed necessary (if any), including proposing the Bank’s auditors’ remuneration 
to the Board of Directors for consideration. The Audit Committee has expressed its opinion with regard to the stated 
matters in the Report of the Audit Committee as shown in this Annual Report.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that the Bank’s overall internal control system is adequate 
and appropriate for the Bank’s business and can assure that the creditability of the Bank’s financial statements 
for the year ended December 31, 2021 are in compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

					     (Mr. Patchara Anuntasilpa)	 (Mr. Chatchai Sirilai)

					     Chairman	 President
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Auditor’s Report

To: The Board of Directors of Government Housing Bank

Opinion

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand has audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of Government Housing Bank and its subsidiaries (the Group), and the Bank’s financial statements of  
Government Housing Bank (the Bank), which comprise the consolidated and the Bank’s statements of financial  
position, as at December 31, 2021, the consolidated and the Bank’s statements of profit or loss and other  
comprehensive income, the consolidated and the Bank’s statements of changes in equity and the consolidated 
and the Bank’s statements of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s opinion, the accompanying consolidated and the Bank’s 
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of  Government Housing 
Bank and its subsidiaries, and the Bank’s financial position of Government Housing Bank, as at December 31, 2021, 
and its consolidated and the Bank’s financial performance and its consolidated and the Bank’s cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with the regulations related to the Preparation of Accounts and Financial Reports 
for Specialized Financial Institutions and other regulations of the Bank of Thailand as disclosed in Note 3 Basis of 
Presentation of The Financial Statements.

Basis for Opinion

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand conducted the audit in accordance with the State Audit 
Standards and Thai Standards on Auditing (“TSAs”). The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s responsibilities  
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated and 
the Bank’s Financial Statements section of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s report. The State 
Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand is independent of the Group and the Bank in accordance with the ethical 
requirements set out in the State Audit Standards issued by the State Audit Commission, and the Federation of  
Accounting Professions’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants that are relevant to the audit of the consolidated 
and the Bank’s financial statements and the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand has fulfilled other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand believes 
that the audit evidence the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand has obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s opinion.
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Emphasis of Matter

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand draws attention to Notes to the financial statements Note 
3.1, Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with the Notification of the Bank of 
Thailand No. Sor Gor Sor 2. 7/2564 dated April 9, 2021, regarding the Preparation of Accounts and Financial Reports 
for Specialized Financial Institutions which become effective for the periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020.

However, the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information included 
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements and the auditor’s 
report thereon.

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s opinion on the consolidated and the Bank’s financial 
statements does not cover the other information and the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand will not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with the audit of consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements, the State Audit Office of 
the Kingdom of Thailand’s responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available  
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated and  
the Bank’s financial statements or the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s knowledge obtained in the audit,  
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand reads the annual report, if the State Audit Office 
of the Kingdom of Thailand concludes that there is a material misstatement therein, the State Audit Office of the 
Kingdom of Thailand is required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated and the Bank’s Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and the Bank’s 
financial statements in accordance with the regulations related to accounting and financial reporting of Specialized 
Financial Institutions, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation  
of consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Group and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group 
and the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group and the Bank’s financial reporting 
process.



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 1

Government Housing Bank202

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and the Bank’s 
Financial Statements

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of 
Thailand’s opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted  
in accordance with the State Audit Standards and Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement  
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the State Audit Standards and Thai Standards on Auditing, the State 
Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand exercises professional judgment and maintains professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand also:

•	 Identifies and assesses the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and the Bank’s financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, designs and performs audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtains audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the State Audit Office of the Kingdom 
of Thailand’s opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.

•	 Obtains an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Group and the Bank’s internal controls.

•	 Evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.

•	 Concludes on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Group and the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If the State Audit 
Office of the Kingdom of Thailand concludes that a material uncertainty exists, the State Audit Office of the Kingdom  
of Thailand is required to draw attention in the auditor’s report of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand  
to the related disclosures in the consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements or, if such disclosures are  
inadequate, the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s opinion will be modified. The State Audit Office of 
the Kingdom of Thailand’s conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s 
report of the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Group or the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.
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•	 Evaluates the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and the Bank’s financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	 Obtains sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the bank or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. The State Audit Office  
of the Kingdom of Thailand is responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit.  
The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand remains solely responsible for the State Audit Office of the  
Kingdom of Thailand’s opinion.

The State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand communicates with those charged with governance  
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand identifies during 
the State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand’s audit.

					     (Signed) Pattra Showsri

					     (Pattra Showsri)

					     Deputy Auditor General

					     (Signed) Wilaiwan Promyou

					     (Wilaiwan Promyou)

					     Director of Financial and Procurement Audit Office No.5

State Audit Office of the Kingdom of Thailand

March 24, 2022
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1.	 General Information
	 The Government Housing Bank (“the Bank”) was established in accordance with the Government Housing Bank  

Act B.E. 2496 (1953), amended by the Revolutionary Announcement No. 317 dated December 13, 1972,  
the Government Housing Bank Act (No. 2) B.E. 2535 (1992), the Government Housing Bank Act (No. 3) B.E. 2549 (2006)  
and the Government Housing Bank Act (No. 4) B.E. 2562 (2019). The Bank’s major objectives are to promote 
and encourage the acquisition of residential housing and/or land, including to support elderly people from use 
of their own land or building for living. 

	 The Bank’s head office is located at 63 Rama IX Road, Huai Khwang, Bangkok. The branches are located  

throughout the region in Thailand.

2.	 Coronavirus 2019 Pandemic
	 The Bank has complied with the circular of the Bank of Thailand (BOT) No. Tor Por Tor. For Gor Chor. (72)

Wor.277/2563 dated February 28, 2020, regarding Guidelines on Providing Assistance to Borrowers Adversely 
Impacted by Situations that Affect the Thai Economy and the circular of the BOT No. Tor Por Tor. For Nor Sor. 
(01) Wor.380/2563 dated March 26, 2020, regarding Measures to Provide Additional Assistance to Borrowers during 
the COVID-19 Pandemic Situations during January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2021. It is effective for the Bank  
providing assistance to borrowers impacted by situations that affect the Thai economy. The Bank classifies  
loans that are not yet non-performing (Non-NPL) (normal and special mention categories) as normal loans  
immediately, provided that analysis of its status and business shows that the borrower is able to comply with 
the debt restructuring agreement without compliance monitoring. Such debt restructuring is considered a 
pre-emptive debt restructuring rather than a troubled debt restructuring (TDR). Non-performing loans (NPL) are 
classified as normal loans if the borrower is able to make repayment in accordance with the debt restructuring 
agreement for three months or three installments consecutively, whichever is the longer period.

	 As at December 31, 2021, the outstanding balance of loans to customers that the Bank has assisted amounted 

of Baht 126,127.45 million.

3.	 Basis of Presentation of The Financial Statements
	 3.1	 Basis of Preparation of The Financial Statements

		  The Bank has prepared and presented the financial statements in accordance with the Notification of 
the Bank of Thailand (BOT) No. Sor Gor Sor. 27/2562 dated September 2, 2019, regarding the Preparation 
and Announcement of Financial Statements of Specialized Financial Institutions, in order to be prepared 
under the same standard and comparable with the financial statements of other Specialized Financial 
Institutions which will be useful for the regulators and users, and in accordance with the Notification of 
Bank of Thailand No. Sor Gor Sor 2. 7/2564 dated April 9, 2021 regarding the Preparation of Accounts and 
Financial Reports for Specialized Financial Institutions, in order to set the requirement for SFIs to account 
for recording and preparing financial reports for transactions or items related to financial instruments 
during the SFIs are extended the adoption of Thai Financial Reporting Standards related to financial 
instruments issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions which become effective for the periods 

beginning on or after January 1, 2020.

GOVERNMENT HOUSING BANK AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
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	 3.1	 Basis of Preparation of The Financial Statements (Continued)		

		  The Bank complies with the regulation on the Preparation of Accounts and Financial Reports issued by 

the Bank of Thailand, which became effective on January 1, 2020. Significant regulations are as follows: 

			   “(1)	 Transactions or items that are not related to financial instruments transactions are complied 

with the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting, Thai Accounting Standards and Thai Financial 

Reporting Standards issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions, including the preparation of 

other relevant accounting and reporting in accordance with the Bank of Thailand.

			    (2)	 Transactions or items that are related to financial instruments, transactions and other transactions  

referred to Thai Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions with 

reference to TFRS9 shall comply with this accounting regulation in appendix of the announcement and 

other additional regulation announced by the Bank of Thailand.”

		  Titles of the regulation for preparing accounts and financial reports for SFIs (the “Regulation”) prescribed 

by the Bank of Thailand for the use of financial instruments are as follows:

			   1.	 Regulations on doubtful debts and bad debts as specified by the BOT

			   2.	 Regulations for troubled debt restructuring as specified by the BOT

			   3.	 Regulations on accounting for investments in debt and equity securities as specified by the BOT

			   4.	 Regulations for writing off financial assets and financial liabilities as specified by the BOT

			   5.	 Regulations for recording stock dividend accounts as specified by the BOT

			   6.	 Regulations on assets transferred to the debtor for the payment of debts as specified by the BOT

			   7. 	 Regulations on disclosure of information in the Bank’s financial statements and similar financial  

		  institutions specified by the BOT

			   8.	 Regulations on presentation and disclosure for financial instruments as specified by the BOT

			   9.	 Regulations on the treasury shares of the business as specified by the BOT

		  The aforementioned regulations will replace Thai Financial Reporting Standards related to financial  

instruments, during the process of preparing to apply Thai Financial Reporting Standards related to  

financial instruments, the Bank will be able to use such regulations until January 1, 2025.

		  Thai Financial Reporting Standards related to financial instruments which the Bank extended the adoption 

are as follows:

			   1.	 TAS 32	 Financial Instruments: Presentation

			   2.	 TFRS 7	 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

			   3. 	 TFRS 9	 Financial Instruments

			   4.	 TFRIC 16	 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

			   5.	 TFRIC 19	 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

			   6.	 Thai Accounting Guidance	 Financial Instruments and Disclosures for Insurance Business
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	 3.1	 Basis of Preparation of The Financial Statements (Continued)

		  The Bank has no transactions related to the mentioned Thai Financial Reporting Standards no. 4-6.

		  The consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis 
except as disclosed in the accounting policies.

		  The consolidated and the Bank’s financial statements presented in Thai Baht has been rounded in the 
financial statements and notes to financial statements to the nearest thousand Baht and nearest million 
Baht respectively, except as otherwise specified. 

		  The Bank’s financial statements presented investments in subsidiaries under the cost basis.

		  An English version of the financial statements has been prepared from the financial statements that are 
in the Thai version. In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages, 
the Thai financial statements shall prevail.

		  The Bank has separated Public Service Account (PSA) according to the Notification of Bank of Thailand  
No. Sor Gor Sor. 28/2562 dated September 2, 2019, regarding Public Service Account. The Bank has 
recorded PSA using allocation method for other operating expenses and fees and services income as 
approved by Fiscal Policy Office in the Letter No. Gor Kor 1006/Wor 2990 dated August 2, 2016.

	 3.2	 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

		  The consolidated financial statements comprise the accounting transactions of head office and all branches 
of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the Group) in which the Bank has a controlling interest, after eliminating  
significant intercompany transactions and balances. The 3 subsidiaries are registered in Thailand :  
SPV-SMC (7) Company Limited, SPV-SMC (8) Company Limited and SPV-SMC (9) Company Limited which 
the Bank has 48 percent, 49 percent and 49 percent participating interests respectively (Note 8.4).

		  The subsidiaries financial statements are prepared for the same accounting period and significant  
accounting policies with the Bank. In case where there are different accounting policies, the Bank has 
already adjusted those effects.

	  3.3	 Applying the revised Thai Financial Reporting Standards

		  Thai Financial Reporting Standards affecting the presentation and disclosure in the current accounting 
period. In 2021, the Bank and its subsidiaries have adopted the revised Financial Reporting Standards and 
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued by the Federation of Accounting Professions, 
which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after January 1, 2021.

		  The Bank and its subsidiaries complied with The revised to TFRS 16 leases relating to COVID-19-Related 
Rent Concessions the Bank and its subsidiaries not to assess whether rent concessions that occur as a 
direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic and meet specified conditions are lease modifications. 
Rent concessions are change insignificant not to relevant condition and other requirement of lease 
modifications.

	 3.4	 New and Revised Thai Financial Reporting Standards

	 	 New and Revised Thai Financial Reporting Standards are effective for accounting period beginning on or 
after January 1, 2022 and significant impacts to the Group.

		  TFRS 1	 First-time Adoption of Thai Financial Reporting Standards

		  Thai Accounting Guidance	 Measures for Debtors affected by Coronavirus 2019 Pandemic 

		  The board of directors is currently considering the impact on financial statements in the period of initial 
application of the Thai Financial Reporting Standards.
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4.   Summary Significant Accounting Policies
	 4.1	 Income Recognition

	 •	 Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, except for loan interest income that has been 
accrued    over three months, which is recognised on a cash basis in accordance with the Bank of 
Thailand regulations. The accrual basis will be applied to these loans once outstanding principal and 
interest are paid.

	 •	 The Bank reverses outstanding accrued interest receivables that have been accrued over three months 
in accordance with the Bank of Thailand regulations.

	 •	 Interest income from investments in debt securities is recognised by the effective interest rate method. 

	 •	 Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive is established.

	 •	 Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

	 4.2	 Expense Recognition

		  Interest expenses, fees and services expenses and other operating expenses are recognised as expense 
on an accrual basis.

	 4.3	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

		  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, and interbank transactions and money market items 
on demand.

	 4.4	 Investments

		  Held-to-maturity investments, which are investments in debt securities that the Bank has the intention 
and ability to hold until maturity, are stated at amortised cost less allowances for impairment (if any).

		  General investments, which are investments in non-marketable equity securities, are stated at cost less 
allowances for impairment (if any). 

	 4.5	 Loans

		  Loans are presented at the outstanding principals except for bank overdrafts, which are presented  
inclusive of principal balances and accrued interest receivables.

	 4.6	 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

	 4.6.1	 The Bank’s allowance for doubtful accounts is complied with the BOT’s Notification No. Sor Gor Sor.  
23/2562 dated September 2, 2019 regarding Regulations on Assets Classification and Provision 
of Specialized Financial Institutions. The Bank has set aside provisions on a qualitative basis by 
assessing debtors’ repayment ability. The Bank has gradually set aside the allowance for doubtful 
accounts on a monthly basis. Apart from this, the additional provision has been appropriately 
considered by the management.

		  For normal and special mention categories, the Bank considers allowance for doubtful accounts 
based on loan characteristics and other relevant factors. An allowance for doubtful accounts for 
performing loans comprises of the minimum allowance for doubtful accounts which is calculated 
by using the rate as specified by the BOT and the excess of the minimum allowance for doubtful 
account announced by the BOT in order to cover the future loss which is annually considered in 
ratio of loans following the policies of the Bank.

		  Bad debts written off are deducted from the set aside provision in allowance for doubtful accounts.
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	 4.6	 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (Continued)	

		  The Bank defines debt write-off guideline which any debtors are classified as doubtful of loss are written 
off at the underlying value of irrecoverable provision in line with the BOT debt write-off regulations.

		  Bad debts recovered are recorded as other income.

		  Moreover, The Bank has set aside provisions for non-performing debtors that need to be considered 
for collateral valuation according to Bank of Thailand’s guidance, regarding Valuation and Appraisal of 
Collaterals and Immovable Properties for Sale Acquired Through Debt Repayment, Loan Coallateral or 
Purchased from Public Auction of Specialized Financial Institution dated September 2, 2019. The summary 
of notifications and guidance regulations are as follows:

		  1)	 The Bank has set aside provisions for non-performing debtors at 100 percent of the difference 
between the carrying value of the outstanding loans and the present value of expected cash 
flows from the disposal of collateral which is determined in accordance with the Bank of 
Thailand’s Notification.

		  2)	 Collateral using for calculation of the present value of expected cash flows from the disposal 
of collaterals are immovable properties (e.g. the present value of the expected cash flows 
from disposals of immovable properties which are collateral of debtors under the litigation 
process is 62 percent of the appraisal value and the present value of the expected cash flows 
from disposals of immovable properties which are collateral of debtors under the public 
auction process equals to 66.38 percent of the appraisal value).

		  3)	 For appraising the value of collateral, the Bank uses appraisal information which taken within 
the last 1 year from its Geographic Information System instead of the data taken over the 
last 3 years, subject to the Ministry of Finance’s approval.

	 4.6.2 	 Allowance for fees of long-term individual loans advanced by the Bank is set up and recognised 
as expenses, similar to those of the loans without the collateral deduction from outstanding 
balances. It is presented in other assets.

	 4.6.3	 Allowance for other accounts receivable with doubtful repayments is set up in full amount.  
It presented in other assets except for account receivables with debtors under litigations and 
account receivables overdrafts under litigations that are stated at the difference between the 
repayment from the auction of collaterals are presented in loans.

	 4.7	 Troubled Debts Restructuring

		  The Bank restructured troubled debts abided by the Bank of Thailand Notification No. Sor Gor Sor. 23/2562 
dated September 2, 2019 regarding Regulations on Assets Classification and Provision of Specialized 
Financial Institutions.

	 4.8	 Properties for sale

		  Properties for sale are stated at lower of appraisal value or carrying value less allowance for impairment 
(if any).

		  The Bank designed the impairment rate of properties for sale at 0 - 70 percent for properties for sale 
holding period less than 10 years and at 100 percent for properties for sale holding period more than 
10 years which complies with the regulation of Ministry of Finance.

		  The reversal of gain (loss) on impairment is recognised as operating income or operating expense in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Gain (loss) on sales after the cost of sale 
is recognised as income or expense when the disposal occurs.
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	 4.9	 Premises and Equipment

		  Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for impairment. 

		  Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over their useful lives at the following rates:

		  Premises:	 Useful life or 20 years

		  Equipment:	 Useful life or 3 - 10 years

		  Equipment which cost per unit does not exceed Baht 10,000 and technological equipment which cost 
per unit does not exceed Baht 30,000 are recognised as expenses in the acquisition period.

		  The cost of renovation and asset development, which can extend the useful lives and the replacement 
value is increased significantly, are capitalized as part of the assets. Repair and maintenance costs are 
charged to expenses in the financial period in which they are incurred.

		  If the carrying value of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, the carrying value is 
written down immediately to the recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount is calculated 
from the greater of the present value of expected future cash flows from continuous use of the asset, 
or the proceeds from the sale of the asset less the disposal cost.

		  Gain or loss on disposals of premises and equipment are determined by the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and carrying value which are recorded in the statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income.

	 4.10	 Right - of - Use Assets

		  Lease agreements with a lease term of less than 12 months or low value assets are recognised as an 
expense in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as specified in the contract. 

		  Lease agreements with a term of more than 12 months are recognised as right - of - use assets and 
lease liabilities, unless the underlying asset is low value, such as vehicle lease and office building lease 
agreements. However, rent concession is not lease modification.

		  Right - of - use assets are stated at cost plus the significant decommissioning costs.

		  Discount rate is the rate as specified in the contract (if any) or cost of fund at the year before the contract.

		  Depreciation and interest expenses are calculated based on the straight-line method and effective  
interest method over the estimated useful lives of right - of - use assets considering the extension  

options of lease term (if any).

	 4.11	 Other Intangible Assets

		  Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and allowance for impairment. 

		  Amortisation is calculated based on the straight-line basis over their useful lives of the assets:

		  Computer software:	 Useful life or 5 years

	 4.12	 Deferred Charges

		  Deferred charges from fees for issuing bonds are amortised on the straight-line basis over the maturity 

of bonds and presented under other assets.
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	 4.13	 Employee Benefits

	 4.13.1	 Short-term employee benefits

		  Short-term employee benefits comprise of salary, overtime, bonus, leave and other short-term 

benefits as stipulated in employment contracts. The Bank recognises short-term employee 

benefits on an accrual basis.

	 4.13.2	 Post-employment benefits

	 4.13.2.1	 Defined contribution plan 

		  The Bank has registered a Provident Fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act 

B.E. 2530 (1987). The Bank pays contributions to a separate fund which is managed by 

an external fund manager in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530 (1987).

The Bank has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. 

The contributions are recognised as the employee benefit expense when they are due.

	 4.13.2.2	 Defined benefit plan

		  The Bank’s defined benefits plan covers employment rewards under the State  

Enterprise Labour Relations Act B.E. 2543 (2000), gifts for retiring employees, and the 

pension under the pension fund of Government Housing Bank Officers as stipulated 

in employment contracts.

	 4.13.3	 Other long-term employee benefits

		  Other long-term employee benefits are rewards for employee loyalty as stipulated in  

employment contracts.

		  The Bank measures the obligations of the defined benefits plan and other long-term employee 

benefits by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques,  

using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The Bank recognises the obligations in the statement of  

financial position and recognises current service costs, past service costs and net interest  

expenses on the obligations as expenses in profit or loss.

		  Actuarial gains and losses from the defined benefit plan are recognised immediately in  

other comprehensive income and gains and losses for other long-term employee benefits are 

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

	 4.14	 Offsetting

		  Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts is presented in the statement of  

financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there 

is an intention to receive or settle the amounts on a net basis or to simultaneously realise the assets 

and settle liabilities.



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 1

Government Housing Bank220

	 4.15	 Related Parties Transactions

		  Related parties are those that have control over the Bank or the Bank has the ability to control the parties 

either directly or indirectly have control or influence over making decisions on financial and operations 

policies. Related parties are under the same control and influence.

		  The Bank is a state enterprise under the Ministry of Finance. The Bank regularly conducts business with 

other state enterprises under common control by the Government. The control might be directly through 

government units or indirectly through associated companies or other entities. The transaction price 

and service condition for government units are conducted as normal business transactions. The Bank, 

therefore, decided that it is not necessary to include and disclose business transactions with other state 

enterprises and government units as related parties transactions.

		  Related parties transactions include the Bank’s directors and management who have the authority and 

responsibility to plan, supervise, and control the Bank’s operations. The Bank stipulated transaction prices 

for related parties transactions follows relevant the Bank announcement to public on normal business 

practices and general conditions of trading.

	 4.16	 Fair Values of Financial Instruments

		  Fair value is the value that the Bank expects to receive from disposal of financial assets or expects to 

pay for settlement of financial liabilities. Fair value is determined from quoted market prices or the price 

derived from accepted financial models that normally apply in the financial market.

		  The methods and assumptions use for estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities 

are disclosed as follows:	

	 1)	 Cash, interbank and money market items, deposits, liabilities payable on demand, borrowings,  

customer’s liabilities under acceptances and off-the statement of financial position items.

	 2)	 Contingencies are presented at fair value by estimation equivalent to the amounts in the statement 

of financial position.

	 3)	 Investments are presented at fair value by estimation equivalent to their net carrying value.

	 4)	 Loans and accrued interest receivables are presented at fair value, estimated from the total loans 

and accrued interest receivables (including Public Service Account and accrued interest receivables) 

on the statement of financial position net by allowance for doubtful accounts.

	 4.17	 Issued Securities and Financial Liabilities

		  Issued securities and borrowings held to maturity are stated at face value.

5.	 Business Combination

	 On September 24, 2020, the Bank accepted the transfer of all businesses, assets, rights, liabilities, capital 
and obligations of the Secondary Mortgage Corporation (SMC) according to the Act for the Dissolution of the  
Secondary Mortgage Corporation B.E. 2563 (2020) which are published in the Government Gazette on September 
23, 2020 and shall come into force as from the day following the date of its publication in the Government 
Gazette (the day of business combination under common control).
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	 5.1	 Business Combination under Common Control

		  Accepting the transfer of all businesses, assets, rights, liabilities, capital and obligations from SMC was 
resulted in the consolidated financial information prepared for the period after September 24, 2020 to 
disclose the information pertaining to a business combination in accordance with the accounting guidance 
for a business combination under common control using method which similar to the pooling-of-interests. 
Under the method, the investment was initially recognised at the carrying amount of SMC’s assets and 
liabilities on the date of business combination under common control. The difference from SMC’s net 
assets were recognised in equity. 

		  Results of SMC’s operations are included in the Bank’s financial statements from the beginning of the 
comparative period which is a shorter period until the end of control date.

	 5.2	 Subsidiaries

		  Under business combination of the Bank and SMC, subsidiaries of SMC are included in the consolidated 

financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020. The consolidated financial information  

includes the financial information of 3 subsidiaries comprises SPV-SMC (7) Company Limited,  

SPV-SMC (8) Company Limited and SPV-SMC (9) Company Limited with the elimination of intercompany  

transactions as if the business combination was occurred on the date which assets and liabilities of SMC 

were merged under common control. Existing equity before business combination under common control 

as of September 23, 2019 is Baht 355.83 million.

6.	 Risk Management
	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components

		  6.1.1	 Credit risk

			   Credit risk is defined as the potential or probability that a counterparty of the Bank will fail to meet their 

obligations in accordance with agreed terms with the Bank, and that the counterparty’s credit 

rating will be downgraded, which may affect the Bank’s income and capital fund.

			   The Bank’s credit policy provides a framework for the objectives, and guidelines for its credit analysis 

and approval processes. It covers returns, competition, social responsibility, and acceptable 

risk level. The two guidelines for credit risk are: a) Credit Risk - General Guidelines, i.e. the new 

product launches, credit bureau verifications, loan to value (LTV), lending terms, interest payment 

terms and principal repayment, credit limits once credit is approved, debt collection, and debt 

recovery, which includes the credit review process and monitoring approved loans, and b) the 

Credit Risk - Specific Guidelines, i.e. LTV, if it is guaranteed by a business owner or consideration 

of consistent payment history, etc.

			   The Bank has currently revised its credit analysis process to cover:

	 1)	 Validating borrower qualifications and the initial overall analysis - the Bank verifies that the 

qualifications are complete and comply with the law, revenue data, collateral criteria, and 

other external factors that impact repayment ability.
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

	 2)	 Credit analysis processes by Data Entry Center (DEC) - the Bank verifies the borrower details 

in accordance with the Bank’s operating manual and regulations for personal loan, records 

data into the system, summaries and reports to Credit Processing Center (CPC).

	 3)	 Credit analysis and approval processes by CPC - the Bank reviews the information validated 

by DEC and the collateral report details in order to approval process.

			   For loans presented on the statement of financial position, the maximum credit risk exposure is the 

carrying value of loans on the statement of financial position after deducting allowance for 

losses and without considering collateral values. Furthermore, credit risks could also result from 

off - the statement of financial position commitments.

		  6.1.2	 Market risk

			   Market risk is defined as the risk arises from interest rate affecting income or capital fund to negative 

effects due to the fluctuations of interest rate of assets, liabilities and off - the statement of 

financial position items that are rate sensitive items. These may affect net interest income, 

income, and other expenses that are interrelated with the interest rate.

			   Most interest rates for assets, especially for loans, are floating, such as MOR, MRR and MLR except  

investment in Bond that fixed interest rates and maturities. The majority of the Bank’s liabilities 

include savings deposits in the domestic money market which pay interest at floating rates and 

fixed deposits which pay interest at short-term fixed rates.

			   The Bank manages interest rate risk continuously by assessing Net Interest Income Sensitivity and  

preparing Static Repricing Gap Analysis for one year under assumption of changing in interest 

rate 100 basis points which has shown the assessment result as at December 31, 2021 of Baht 

1,314 million accounted for 4.06% of net interest income. In addition, The Bank uses Stress 

Testing to assess interest rate risk and manage assets and liabilities in accordance with business 

environment to achieve revenue’s target as planned and has interest rate risk at acceptable 

level. Interest rate risk management is carried out by the Assets and Liabilities Management 

Committee of the Bank (ALCO).
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.2	 Market risk (Continued)

	 The Bank’s significant financial assets and financial liabilities classified by periods of interest rate change 

are as follows:
Unit : Million Baht

 Consolidate

 December 31, 2021

Change in interest
No

interest

Non-
performing 

Loans
TotalWithin

1 month
1-3

months
3-12 

months
More than  

1 year

Financial Assets

Interbank and money market items, net  55,999.72  -    -    -    189.91  -    56,189.63 

Investments, net  -    11,802.17  36,554.29  13,682.73  49.07  -    62,088.26 

Loans to customers  722,758.86  41,191.77  238,131.40  300,640.29  97,555.76  58,380.51 1,458,658.59 

Total  778,758.58  52,993.94  274,685.69  314,323.02  97,794.74  58,380.51 1,576,936.48 

Financial Liabilities

Deposits  434,210.39  171,640.22  493,626.75  175,371.34  -    -   1,274,848.70 

Interbank and money market items, net 3,800.00  -    -    -    -    -   3,800.00 

Debt issued and borrowings  -    3,000.00  25,000.00  83,150.00  -    -    111,150.00 

Total  438,010.39  174,640.22  518,626.75  258,521.34  -    -   1,389,798.70 

Unit : Million Baht

 Consolidate

 December 31, 2020

Change in interest
No

interest

Non-
performing 

Loans
TotalWithin

1 month
1-3

months
3-12 

months
More than  

1 year

Financial Assets        

Interbank and money market items, net  55,417.15  -    -    -    190.10  -    55,607.25 

Investments, net  12,945.61  22,477.67  17,528.48  23,724.33  37.50  -    76,713.59 

Loans to customers  880,670.40  4,983.25  15,588.08  304,404.43  77,650.44  50,054.94 1,333,351.54 

Total  949,033.16  27,460.92  33,116.56  328,128.76  77,878.04  50,054.94 1,465,672.38 

Financial Liabilities

Deposits  408,995.63  135,590.02  471,553.62  145,518.75  -    -   1,161,658.02 

Interbank and money market items, net  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Debt issued and borrowings  1,025.77  1,893.02  25,978.63  107,150.00  -    -    136,047.42 

Total  410,021.40  137,483.04  497,532.25  252,668.75  -    -   1,297,705.44 
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.2	 Market risk (Continued)

Unit : Million Baht

 The Bank

 December 31, 2021

Change in interest
No

interest

Non-
performing 

Loans
TotalWithin

1 month
1-3

months
3-12 

months
More than  

1 year

Financial Assets        

Interbank and money market items, net  55,998.15  -    -    -    189.91  -    56,188.06 

Investments, net  -    11,802.17  36,554.29  13,682.73  49.07  -    62,088.26 

Loans to customers  722,758.86  41,191.77  238,131.40  300,640.29  97,555.76  58,380.51 1,458,658.59 

Total  778,757.01  52,993.94  274,685.69  314,323.02  97,794.74  58,380.51 1,576,934.91 

Financial Liabilities

Deposits  434,210.39  171,640.22  493,626.75  175,371.34  -    -   1,274,848.70 

Interbank and money market items, net  3,800.00  -    -    -    -    -    3,800.00 

Debt issued and borrowings  -    3,000.00  25,000.00  83,150.00  -    -    111,150.00 

Total  438,010.39  174,640.22  518,626.75  258,521.34  -    -   1,389,798.70 

	

Unit : Million Baht

 The Bank

 December 31, 2020

Change in interest
No

interest

Non-
performing 

Loans
TotalWithin

1 month
1-3

months
3-12 

months
More than  

1 year

Financial Assets        

Interbank and money market items, net  55,415.32  -    -    -    190.10  -    55,605.42 

Investments, net  12,945.61  22,477.67  17,759.60  23,724.33  37.50  -    76,944.71 

Loans to customers  880,670.40  4,983.25  15,588.08  304,404.43  77,650.44  50,054.94 1,333,351.54 

Total  949,031.33  27,460.92  33,347.68  328,128.76  77,878.04  50,054.94 1,465,901.67 

Financial Liabilities

Deposits  408,995.63  135,590.02  471,553.62  145,518.75  -    -   1,161,658.02 

Interbank and money market items, net  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Debt issued and borrowings  3,273.56  2,197.76  21,814.09  108,389.80  383.33  -    136,058.54 

Total  412,269.19  137,787.78  493,367.71  253,908.55  383.33  -   1,297,716.56 
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.2	 Market risk (Continued)

			   Primary fixed and floating interest rates loans as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

 2021 2020

Fixed interest rate  617,855.85  375,265.60 

Floating interest rate  840,802.74  958,085.94 

Total Loans  1,458,658.59  1,333,351.54 

			   On December 31, 2021 and 2020, loans consist of General Loan amounting to Baht 1,311,562.76 million 

and Baht 1,191,879.72 million and loans to customers from Public Service Account amounting 

to Baht 147,095.83 million and Baht 141,471.82 million, respectively.

			   The effective interest rates of significant financial instruments were approximate as follows:

P Percentage

 2021 2020

Financial assets   

Interbank and money market items 0.52 0.71

Investments 0.65 0.96

Loans to customers 3.70 3.75

Financial liabilities

Deposits in Thai Baht 0.95 1.38

Interbank and money market items 0.48 0.62

Debt issued and borrowings 3.03 2.96

		  6.1.3	 Liquidity risk

			   Liquidity risk is risk that the Bank fails to meet its obligations and contingent when they fall due as a 

result of an inability to turn assets into cash or is unable to raise funds for its operation in time 

or is able to raise funds with costs that are higher than the acceptable level which may affect 

income and capital fund is risen from internal and external factors. It is also referred to the 

imbalance in the Bank’s assets and liabilities structure. 

			   The organizational structure, policies, and strategies for liquidity risk management are under the Bank’s 

committees including Board of Directors (BOD), Audit Committee (AC), Risk Oversight Committee 

(ROC), and Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO). The committees are responsible 

for establishing strategic policies and liquidity risk management as follows.
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.3	 Liquidity risk (Continued)

				    Board of Directors (BOD)

				    Board of Directors (BOD) is responsible for approving risk management policies and  
delegating the roles and responsibilities to committees or relevant departments as appropriate.

				    Audit Committee (AC)

				    Audit Committee (AC) is responsible for reviewing the efficiency and effectiveness of the 
internal control processes, good corporate governance processes, and risk management processes.

				    Risk Oversight Committee (ROC)

				    Risk Oversight Committee (ROC) is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness 
of the risk management policies and the acceptable risk level annually or when the significant 
change is occurred in order to assess, monitor, maintain the Bank’s risks tolerance and report to 
Audit Committee (AC) and Board of Directors (BOD) for acknowledgement and/or consideration 
every quarter.

				    Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO)

			    	 Assets and Liabilities Management Committee (ALCO) is responsible for formulate both 
short-term and long-term strategies for assets and liabilities in accordance with the Bank’s 
policies and other applicable laws and regulations from the Ministry of Finance and the Bank 
of Thailand, including setting up strategies for liquidity risk management and interest rate and 
reporting to Board of Directors (BOD) via Management committees for acknowledgement and/
or consideration.

			   The Bank manages liquidity risk and controls risk appetite. In addition, the finance management  
department is responsible for managing liquidity, allocating deposits, investment funds and 
loans in line with business operations in order to maintain the appropriate level of liquidity and 
be able to fulfill financial obligations and the risk management department is responsible for 
reviewing the liquidity Key Risk Indicators: KRI policy and specifying related risk limits.

			   Tools for measuring and monitoring liquidity risk are showed in various report forms such as Liquidity 
Coverage Ratio report, Advanced Estimated Liquidity report and Funding Concentration report, 
etc. In addition, the Bank conducts quarterly liquidity stress tests in accordance with the Bank’s 
stress testing policy using the Bank’s custom scenario which can be divided into 3 cases as 
follows:

	 (1)	 Institution - Specific Crisis

	 (2)	 Market - Wide Crisis

	 (3)	 Combination of Institution - Specific Crisis and Market - Wide Crisis

				    Each scenario consists of assumptions that occurred in the past which cover various crises 
such as withdrawal of deposits for each type of customers, decrease in market liquidity, and 
establish financial contingency plan based on stress testing result in each scenario.
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.3	 Liquidity risk (Continued)

			   Financial assets and financial liabilities, classified by contractual maturity, as of December 31, 2021  

and 2020 are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht 

 Consolidate

 December 31, 2021

Contractual maturity
No

Maturity
TotalWithin

1 month
Over 1 to 3 

months
Over 3 to 12 

months
Over

1 year

Financial assets      

Interbank and money market items, net  56,189.63  -    -    -    -    56,189.63 

Investments, net  -    11,802.17  36,554.29  13,682.73  49.07  62,088.26 

Loans to customers and
accrued interest receivables, net  17,078.54  9,012.58  40,624.30 1,232,421.44  58,380.51 1,357,517.37 

Total  73,268.17  20,814.75  77,178.59 1,246,104.17  58,429.58 1,475,795.26 

Financial liabilities

Deposits  428,326.14  172,645.15  498,506.07  175,371.34  -   1,274,848.70 

Interbank and money market items, net  3,800.00  -    -    -    -    3,800.00 

Liabilities payable on demand  1,714.23  -    -    -    -    1,714.23 

Debt issued and borrowings  -    3,000.00  25,000.00  83,150.00  -    111,150.00 

Total  433,840.37  175,645.15  523,506.07  258,521.34  -   1,391,512.93 

Unit : Million Baht 

 Consolidate

 December 31, 2020

Contractual maturity
No

Maturity
TotalWithin

1 month
Over 1 to 3 

months
Over 3 to 12 

months
Over

1 year

Financial assets      

Interbank and money market items, net  55,607.25  -    -    -    -    55,607.25 

Investments, net  12,945.61  22,477.67  17,528.48  23,724.33  37.50  76,713.59 

Loans to customers and
accrued interest receivables, net  14,706.06  9,210.80  41,616.98 1,131,399.59  47,571.95 1,244,505.38 

Total  83,258.92  31,688.47  59,145.46 1,155,123.92  47,609.45 1,376,826.22 

Financial liabilities

Deposits  403,110.38  136,584.08  476,444.81  145,518.75  -   1,161,658.02 

Liabilities payable on demand  1,120.98  -    -    -    -    1,120.98 

Debt issued and borrowings  1,025.77  1,893.02  25,978.63  107,150.00  -    136,047.42 

Total  405,257.13  138,477.10  502,423.44  252,668.75  -   1,298,826.42 
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	 6.1	 The Bank’s Risk Components (Continued)

		  6.1.3	 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Unit : Million Baht 

 The Bank

 December 31, 2021

Contractual maturity
No

Maturity
TotalWithin

1 month
Over 1 to 3 

months
Over 3 to 12 

months
Over

1 year

Financial assets

Interbank and money market items, net  56,188.06  -    -    -    -    56,188.06 

Investments, net  -    11,802.17  36,554.29  13,682.73  49.07  62,088.26 

Loans to customers and
accrued interest receivables, net  17,078.54  9,012.58  40,624.30 1,232,421.44  58,380.51 1,357,517.37 

Total  73,266.60  20,814.75  77,178.59 1,246,104.17  58,429.58 1,475,793.69 

Financial liabilities

Deposits  428,326.14  172,645.15  498,506.07  175,371.34  -   1,274,848.70 

Interbank and money market items, net  3,800.00  -    -    -    -    3,800.00 

Liabilities payable on demand  1,714.23  -    -    -    -    1,714.23 

Debt issued and borrowings  -    3,000.00  25,000.00  83,150.00  -    111,150.00 

Total  433,840.37  175,645.15  523,506.07  258,521.34  -   1,391,512.93 

Unit : Million Baht 

 The Bank

 December 31, 2020

Contractual maturity
No

Maturity
TotalWithin

1 month
Over 1 to 3 

months
Over 3 to 12 

months
Over

1 year

Financial assets       

Interbank and money market items, net  55,605.42  -    -    -    -    55,605.42 

Investments, net  12,945.61  22,477.67  17,759.60  23,724.33  37.50  76,944.71 

Loans to customers and
accrued interest receivables, net  14,706.06  9,210.80  41,616.98 1,131,399.59  47,571.95 1,244,505.38 

Total  83,257.09  31,688.47  59,376.58 1,155,123.92  47,609.45 1,377,055.51 

Financial liabilities

Deposits  403,110.38  136,584.08  476,444.81  145,518.75  -   1,161,658.02 

Interbank and money market items, net  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Liabilities payable on demand  1,120.98  -    -    -    -    1,120.98 

Debt issued and borrowings  1,018.73  2,075.93  21,417.83  111,546.05  -    136,058.54 

Total  405,250.09  138,660.01  497,862.64  257,064.80  -   1,298,837.54 
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	 6.2	 Fair Values of Financial Instruments

		  The outstanding balance on the statement of financial position and the estimated fair value of financial 

assets and financial liabilities as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

	 Unit : Million Baht

Financial Instruments

Consolidated

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value

Financial assets:     

Cash  5,332.34  5,332.34  5,847.45  5,847.45 

Interbank and money market items, net  56,189.63  56,189.63  55,607.25  55,607.25 

Investments, net  62,088.26  62,088.26  76,713.59  76,713.59 

Loans to customers and accrued interest receivable, net  1,357,517.37  1,357,517.37  1,244,505.38  1,244,505.38 

Total  1,481,127.60  1,481,127.60  1,382,673.67  1,382,673.67 

Financial liabilities:

Deposits  1,274,848.70  1,274,848.70  1,161,658.02  1,161,658.02 

Interbank and money market items, net  3,800.00  3,800.00  -    -   

Liabilities payable on demand  1,714.23  1,714.23  1,120.98  1,120.98 

Debt issued and borrowings  111,150.00  111,150.00  136,047.42  136,047.42 

Total  1,391,512.93  1,391,512.93  1,298,826.42  1,298,826.42 

	 Unit : Million Baht

Financial Instruments

The Bank

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value

Financial assets:     

Cash  5,332.34  5,332.34  5,847.45  5,847.45 

Interbank and money market items, net  56,188.06  56,188.06  55,605.42  55,605.42 

Investments, net  62,088.26  62,088.26  76,944.71  76,944.71 

Loans to customers and accrued interest receivable, net  1,357,517.37  1,357,517.37  1,244,505.38  1,244,505.38 

Total  1,481,126.03  1,481,126.03  1,382,902.96  1,382,902.96 

Financial liabilities:

Deposits  1,274,848.70  1,274,848.70  1,161,658.02  1,161,658.02 

Interbank and money market items, net  3,800.00  3,800.00  -    -   

Liabilities payable on demand  1,714.23  1,714.23  1,120.98  1,120.98 

Debt issued and borrowings  111,150.00  111,150.00  136,058.54  136,058.54 

Total  1,391,512.93  1,391,512.93  1,298,837.54  1,298,837.54 
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	 6.3	 Capital Requirement

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Tier 1 capital     

Paid-up share capital  20,320.33  20,320.33  20,320.33  20,320.33 

Legal reserve  30,872.99  28,797.81  30,872.99  28,797.81 

Reserve appropriated from the net profit  1,200.00  1,200.00  1,200.00  1,200.00 

Non-controlling interests  0.36 (91.26)  -    -   

Net income after appropriation  42,317.24  38,897.00  42,297.48  38,897.00 

Surplus on business combination

under common control  355.83  355.83  495.82  495.82 

Total tier 1 capital  95,066.75  89,479.71  95,186.62  89,710.96 

Tier 2 capital

Allowance for pass asset-classification  8,460.12  8,036.23  8,459.64  8,013.20 

Total tier 2 capital  8,460.12  8,036.23  8,459.64  8,013.20 

Total capital requirement  103,526.87  97,515.94  103,646.26  97,724.16 

		

		  The Bank has calculated the capital fund in accordance with the Bank of Thailand’s Notification  

No. Sor Gor Sor. 15/2562 dated September 2, 2019 regarding the Criteria for the Supervision of the 

Capital Funds of Specialized Financial Institutions. The effective date is from October 1, 2019. The Bank  

maintains a ratio of capital fund to risk assets of at least 8.5 percent, provided that the Tier 1 capital ratio 

must be at least 4.25 percent of all the risk assets. While Credit Risk Assets is calculated according to 

BOT’s Notification No. Sor Gor Sor. 17/2562 and Operational Risk Assets is calculated according to BOT’s 

Notification No. Sor Gor Sor. 19/2562.

		  The ratio of the capital fund to risk assets as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 as prescribed by the Bank 

of Thailand regulations and process as follows:

Percentage

Consolidated The Bank

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Total capital fund 15.30 15.17 15.31 15.24 

Tier 1 capital 14.05 13.92 14.06 13.99 
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7.	 Estimations and Assumptions

	 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the regulations of accounting and financial reporting 

preparation of the specialised financial institutions and in accordance with the Bank of Thailand regulations 

requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the accounting policies and 

reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

	 Estimated and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and foreseeable impact in the future. Information about 

the assumption and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to 

the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

8.	 Additional Information
	 8.1	 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Supplementary Disclosures of the Statement of Cash Flows)

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Cash  5,332.34  5,847.45  5,332.34  5,847.45 

Interbank and money market items  56,189.63  55,607.25  56,188.06  55,605.42 

Total cash and cash equivalents  61,521.97  61,454.70  61,520.40  61,452.87 

	 8.2	 Interbank and Money Market Items, Net (Assets)

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Demand Time Total Demand Time Total

Domestic Items       
Bank of Thailand  2.71  -    2.71  3.44  -    3.44 

Commercial banks  279.87  32,400.00  32,679.87  260.04  35,335.00  35,595.04 

Specialised financial institutions  2.45  23,500.00  23,502.45  4.15  20,000.00  20,004.15 

Total  285.03  55,900.00  56,185.03  267.63  55,335.00  55,602.63 

Add Accrued interest receivable  -    4.60  4.60  -    4.62  4.62 

Total domestic items  285.03  55,904.60  56,189.63  267.63  55,339.62  55,607.25 
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	 8.2	 Interbank and Money Market Items, Net (Assets) (Continued)

Unit : Million Baht

The Bank

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Demand Time Total Demand Time Total

Domestic Items       
Bank of Thailand  2.71  -    2.71  3.44  -    3.44 

Commercial banks  278.30  32,400.00  32,678.30  258.21  35,335.00  35,593.21 

Specialised financial institutions  2.45  23,500.00  23,502.45  4.15  20,000.00  20,004.15 

Total  283.46  55,900.00  56,183.46  265.80  55,335.00  55,600.80 

Add Accrued interest receivable  -    4.60  4.60  -    4.62  4.62 

Total domestic items  283.46  55,904.60  56,188.06  265.80  55,339.62  55,605.42 

	 8.3	 Investments, Net

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Cost Cost Cost Cost

Held-to-maturity debt securities     

Government bonds  62,039.19  76,676.09  62,039.19  76,676.09 

Corporate bonds  -    -    -    231.12 

General investment

Non-marketable equity securities  49.07  37.50  49.07  37.50 

Total investments, net  62,088.26  76,713.59  62,088.26  76,944.71 

		  Non-marketable equity securities are an investment in National Credit Bureau’s ordinary share,  

which is a credit data service business.

		  On August 31, 2021, the Bank invested in ordinary shares of National Digital ID Company Limited,  

which has been established as a juristic person under Civil and Commercial Code, with a registered  

capital of Baht 350,000,000 divided into ordinary shares of 3,500,000 held by Government Housing Bank 

109,109 shares at 106 baht per share, totaling Baht 11.57 million.

	 8.4	 Investments in Subsidiaries, Net

		  The Bank has become a shareholder of SPV-SMC (7) Company Limited, SPV-SMC (8) Company Limited  

and SPV-SMC (9) Company Limited in accordance with the Dissolution of the Secondary Mortgage  

Corporation Act B.E. 2563 (2020).
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	 8.5	 Loans to Customers and Accrued Interest Receivables, Net

		  8.5.1	 Classified by loan type

 Unit : Million Baht 

Consolidated and the Bank

 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Overdrafts  1,977.33  1,874.77 

Individual loans to customers  1,303,963.64  1,172,516.78 

Receivable under litigation  5,621.79  4,492.78 

Claims and investment in receivables  -    12,995.39 

Total loans to customers  1,311,562.76  1,191,879.72 

Add Accrued interest receivables  9,709.36  7,673.29 

Total loans to customers and accrued interest receivables  1,321,272.12  1,199,553.01 

(Less) Allowance for doubtful accounts 

1. Minimum allowance required by Bank of Thailand regulations

- Individual  (22,434.00)  (17,419.03)

2. Excess allowance (Note 8.5.4)  (83,777.90)  (76,079.95)

Total loans to customers and accrued interest receivables, net  1,215,060.22  1,106,054.03 

			 

	 As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank has reclassified loans that the proceed from properties 

auctioned did not cover loans, which compulsory execution is overdue, to be classified as other assets 

with the allowance for doubtful account in the amount of 11,606 debtors or totaling Baht 880.56 million 

and 10,038 debtors or totaling Baht 801.63 million, respectively.
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	 8.5	 Loans to Customers and Accrued Interest Receivables, Net (Continued)

		  8.5.1	 Classified by loan type (Continued)

			  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, loans totaled Baht 1,311,562.76 million and Baht 1,191,879.72 million 

respectively, comprise of loans from supporting government treasury policies and not included loans to 

customers under the Public Service Account amounting to Baht 191,553.87 million and Baht 178,026.20 

million. The classification by the project are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

 December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

2015 GHB Paher San Rak  2,050.98  2,433.20 

2016 GHB Paher San Rak  8,885.02  10,985.07 

2017 GHB Paher San Rak  30,058.39  32,044.67 

2017 GHB Paher San Rak (Southern Border-Province)  645.45  681.49 

2018 GHB Paher San Rak  12,985.88  13,662.41 

2019 GHB Paher San Rak  29,279.42  30,162.29 

2019 GHB Paher San Rak (Equipment)  47.36  49.00 

2020 GHB Paher San Rak  18,150.59  17,134.84 

2021 GHB Paher San Rak  24,853.14  -   

Housing Loan to Stimulate Southern Border-Province Economies (Retails)  4,319.33  3,795.73 

2016 GHB for Government Official  5,605.91  9,536.90 

2017 GHB for Government Official  6,684.92  7,399.16 

2017 GHB for Elders  13.14  13.94 

Housing Loan for Grateful Person  7,702.46  8,312.97 

Housing Loan for Grateful Person/1  2,807.14  3,002.81 

Baan Eur-Arthorn Housing Project  9,624.99  12,126.94 

GHB Housing Loan Term-Fhun  184.92  194.01 

GHB Housing Loan Term-Rao Mai Ting Kun  27,654.83  26,490.77 

Total  191,553.87  178,026.20 

		  8.5.2	 Classified by currency and customer’s residence

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total

Thai Baht  1,311,562.76  -    1,311,562.76  1,191,879.72  -    1,191,879.72 
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	 8.5	 Loans to Customers and Accrued Interest Receivables, Net (Continued)

		  8.5.3	 Classified by business types and loan classification 

	 Unit : Million Baht

 Consolidated and the Bank 

December 31, 2021

 Normal 
Special

mention

Sub

standard
Doubtful

Doubtful

of loss
Total

Housing loans  1,162,571.81  96,377.54  7,473.69  11,135.60  34,004.12  1,311,562.76 

Transfer of claims  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Total  1,162,571.81  96,377.54  7,473.69  11,135.60  34,004.12  1,311,562.76 

	 Unit : Million Baht

 Consolidated and the Bank 

December 31, 2020

 Normal 
Special

mention

Sub

standard
Doubtful

Doubtful

of loss
Total

Housing loans  1,053,509.90  87,850.86  8,407.53  5,986.74  31,532.07  1,187,287.10 

Transfer of claims  3,981.23  237.88  38.16  71.08  264.27  4,592.62 

Total  1,057,491.13  88,088.74  8,445.69  6,057.82  31,796.34  1,191,879.72 

		  8.5.4	 Classified by loan classification 

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2021

Loans and
accrued interest

receivable

Net amount
to set

allowance1)

% Used for 
Calculation
Allowance

Allowance
for doubtful

accounts

1. Bank of Thailand minimum allowance     

   - Normal  1,172,077.33  203,146.10 1  2,031.46 

   - Special mention  96,581.38  140,230.02 2  2,804.60 

   - Substandard  7,473.69  1,911.49 100  1,911.49 

   - Doubtful  11,135.60  2,856.23 100  2,856.23 

   - Doubtful of loss  34,004.12  12,830.22 100  12,830.22 

    Total  22,434.00 

2. Excess allowance  83,777.90 

    Total  1,321,272.12  360,974.06  106,211.90 



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 1

Government Housing Bank 237

	 8.5	 Loans to Customers and Accrued Interest Receivables, Net (Continued)

		  8.5.4	 Classified by loan classification (Continued)

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Loans and
accrued interest

receivable

Net amount
to set

allowance1)

% Used for 
Calculation
Allowance

Allowance
for doubtful

accounts

1. Bank of Thailand minimum allowance     

   - Normal  1,064,914.12  145,486.07                1  1,454.86 

   - Special mention  88,339.04  56,215.91                2  1,124.32 

   - Substandard  8,445.69  2,164.71              100  2,164.71 

   - Doubtful  6,057.82  1,473.16              100  1,473.16 

   - Doubtful of loss  31,796.34  11,201.98              100  11,201.98 

    Total  17,419.03 

2. Excess allowance  76,079.95 

    Total  1,199,553.01  216,541.83  93,498.98 

		  1) 	The net amount to set allowance is an outstanding of the capital which is not include accrued interest 

			   receivables after less collateral.

		  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the allowance for doubtful accounts were Baht 106,211.90 million 

and Baht 93,498.98 million (Note 8.6), which are the minimum allowance in accordance with the BOT’s 

regulations and the Bank also sets up additional provision amounting to Baht 83,777.90 million and 

Baht 76,079.95 million, respectively. To alleviate an adverse effect to occur in the future, the Bank also  

considers the qualitative factors. The Bank sets up additional provision by reflecting the qualitative  

factor of retail loans. The Bank reviews the credit quality of loans, the additional allowance for doubtful 

accounts might be set up annually.

		  Loans and accrued interest receivables that are classified as substandard, doubtful, and doubtful  

of loss according to the BOT’s regulations in which the Bank ceased to recognise income because  

they are non-performing loans. As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, these non-performing loans totaling 

Baht 52,613.41 million and Baht 46,299.85 million which are 3.98 percent and 3.86 percent, respectively.
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	 8.6	 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

	 Unit : Million Baht

 Consolidated and the Bank

 December 31, 2021

 Normal 
Special
mention

Sub
standard

Doubtful
Doubtful
of  loss

Allowance
in excess

Total

Beginning balance  1,454.86  1,124.32  2,164.71  1,473.16  11,201.98  76,079.95  93,498.98 

Allowance for doubtful accounts  576.60  1,680.28 (253.22)  1,383.07  2,700.33  7,697.95  13,785.01 

Bad debts written-off  -    -    -    -    (1,072.09)  -    (1,072.09)

Ending balance  2,031.46  2,804.60  1,911.49  2,856.23  12,830.22  83,777.90  106,211.90 

		  As at December 31, 2021, the Bank sets an additional allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount  

of Baht 13,785.01 million by increasing the BOT minimum allowance for doubtful accounts by Baht 

6,087.06 million and increasing the allowance in excess of the BOT’s requirement by Baht 7,697.95 million.

	 Unit : Million Baht

 Consolidated and the Bank

 December 31, 2020

 Normal 
Special
mention

Sub
standard

Doubtful
Doubtful
of  loss

Allowance
in excess

Total

Beginning balance  1,133.33  797.85  2,351.12  2,788.98  9,180.36  68,583.86  84,835.50 

Allowance for doubtful accounts  321.53  326.47 (186.41)  (1,315.82)  3,049.94  7,496.09  9,691.80 

Bad debts written-off  -    -    -    -    (1,028.32)  -  (1,028.32)

Ending balance  1,454.86  1,124.32  2,164.71  1,473.16  11,201.98  76,079.95  93,498.98 

		  As at December 31, 2020, the Bank sets an additional allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount  

of Baht 9,691.80 million by increasing the BOT minimum allowance for doubtful accounts by  

Baht 2,195.71 million and increasing the allowance in excess of the BOT’s requirement by Baht 7,496.09 million.

	 8.7	 Troubled Debts Restructuring

		  For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, troubled debts restructuring are as follows:

Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 December 31, 2021

Types of debt restructuring No. of Account Outstanding

debts before

debt restructuring

Changes of repayment conditions  142,482  129,628.03 

  Total  142,482  129,628.03 
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	 8.7	 Troubled Debts Restructuring (Continued)

Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 December 31, 2020

Types of debt restructuring No. of Account Outstanding

debts before

debt restructuring

Changes of repayment conditions  131,338  111,376.34 

  Total  131,338  111,376.34 

	 8.8	 Assets Classified by Bank of Thailand’s Regulation
	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2021

Loans and 
Accrued Interest 

Receivables1)

Properties
for Sale

Other Assets Total

Normal  1,302,883.31  -    571.60  1,303,454.91 

Special mention  108,080.78  -    110.13  108,190.91 

Substandard  8,607.51  -    7.31  8,614.82 

Doubtful  13,017.28  -    12.87  13,030.15 

Doubtful of loss  36,755.73  1,195.98  1,706.60  39,658.31 

  Total  1,469,344.61  1,195.98  2,408.51  1,472,949.10 

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Loans and 
Accrued Interest 

Receivables1)

Properties
for Sale

Other Assets Total

Normal  1,194,947.64  -    504.95  1,195,452.59 

Special mention  96,804.06  -    91.14  96,895.20 

Substandard  9,408.51  -    7.77  9,416.28 

Doubtful  6,789.30  -    5.91  6,795.21 

Doubtful of loss  33,857.13  1,122.00  1,599.47  36,578.60 

  Total  1,341,806.64  1,122.00  2,209.24  1,345,137.88 

		  1) Loans and accrued interest receivables are total loans and accrued interest from General loans and  

			   Public Service Account loans
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	 8.9	 Properties for Sale, Net

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2021

Beginning
Balance

Additions Disposals
Ending
Balance

Assets acquired from debt repayment     

Immovable properties  21,299.67  5,200.04  3,359.46  23,140.25 

Total properties for sale  21,299.67  5,200.04  3,359.46  23,140.25 

(Less)  Allowance for impairment (4,864.99) (1,565.50) (984.29) (5,446.20)

Total properties for sale, net  16,434.68  3,634.54  2,375.17  17,694.05 

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Beginning
Balance

Additions Disposals
Ending
Balance

Assets acquired from debt repayment     

Immovable properties  17,727.98  6,149.75  2,578.06  21,299.67 

Total properties for sale  17,727.98  6,149.75  2,578.06  21,299.67 

(Less)  Allowance for impairment (4,150.88) (1,446.83) (732.72) (4,864.99)

Total properties for sale, net  13,577.10  4,702.92  1,845.34  16,434.68 

		  The immovable properties from debt repayment totaling Baht 32,563.05 million, assessing by the external 

appraisal and Baht 1,064.14 million, assessing by the internal appraisal.

		  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank had properties for sale of Baht 17,694.05 million and  

Baht 16,434.68 million, respectively. There are properties for sale which are in the process of registration of 

transferring in the total properties for sale of Baht 4,249.69 million and Baht 4,644.23 million, respectively. 

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Bank had gain on sales of properties for sale after transaction 

costs of Baht 361.81 million (transaction cost of Baht 67.01 million).

		  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, The Bank’s allowance for doubtful accounts increased by  

Baht 581.21 million and Baht 714.11 million, respectively, caused by an increase or reverse loss on impairment.
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	 8.10	 Premises and Equipment, Net 
	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2021

Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Net

Balance
Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Land  685.02  -    -    685.02  -    -    -    -    685.02 

Premises  4,212.84  51.45  45.79  4,218.50  2,818.15  144.60  40.03  2,922.72  1,295.78 

Equipment  3,303.21  116.75  147.87  3,272.09  2,174.10  364.50  145.87  2,392.73  879.36 

Others  198.74  300.12  261.65  237.21  -    -    -    -    237.21 

 8,399.81  468.32  455.31  8,412.82  4,992.25  509.10  185.90  5,315.45  3,097.37 

Depreciation for the year 2021  509.10 

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Net

Balance
Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Land  683.51  2.29  0.78  685.02  -    -    -    -    685.02 

Premises  3,973.54  274.72  35.42  4,212.84  2,703.54  146.94  32.33  2,818.15  1,394.69 

Equipment  3,222.46  210.71  129.96  3,303.21  1,883.78  371.16  80.84  2,174.10  1,129.11 

Others  660.02  356.91  818.19  198.74  73.18  -    73.18  -    198.74 

 8,539.53  844.63  984.35  8,399.81  4,660.50  518.10  186.35  4,992.25  3,407.56 

Depreciation for the year 2020  518.10 

		  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the value of the land was Baht 685.02 million. The carrying value of 
land amounting to Baht 7.21 million has been rendered to the usage of the Metropolitan Rapid Transit 
Authority (MRTA) since 2000 with no time limit. The underground of this land is 2 rais 142 squares wahs 
and is the head office parking lot. The Bank is compensated Baht 75.36 million in return. The total amount 
of compensation was recognised as income on the date the payment was received. 

		  Costs of fully depreciated assets still in use as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2021 2020

Premises  1,295.71  1,244.66 

Equipment  1,355.44  1,169.79 

Total  2,651.15  2,414.45 
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	 8.11	 Right - of - use Assets, Net

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2021

Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Net

Balance
Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Land and/or

   premises lease  569.05  131.09  174.59  525.55  96.55  126.98  55.46  168.07  357.48 

Vehicle lease  284.88  109.84  70.48  324.24  97.76  90.74  55.14  133.36  190.88 

Others  171.10  2.70  -    173.80  167.69  1.43  -    169.12  4.68 

 1,025.03  243.63  245.07  1,023.59  362.00  219.15  110.60  470.55  553.04 

Depreciation for the year 2021  219.15 

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Net

Balance
Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Land and/or

   premises lease  551.68  153.72  136.35  569.05  -    122.09  25.54  96.55  472.50 

Vehicle lease  157.35  156.34  28.81  284.88  -    113.84  16.08  97.76  187.12 

Others  171.10  -    -    171.10  166.37  1.32  -    167.69  3.41 

 880.13  310.06  165.16  1,025.03  166.37  237.25  41.62  362.00  663.03 

Depreciation for the year 2020  201.56 

		

		  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, costs of vehicle leases were Baht 324.24 million and  

Baht 284.88 million including the existing costs of the vehicle under the finance leases amount of 

Baht 34.88 million and Baht 54.11 million which was a carrying amount of Baht 16.92 million and  

Baht 32.17 million, respectively.

		  Under the Federation of Accounting Professions’ Notification No. 16/B.E.2563 (2020) dated April 22, 2020,  

regarding the Accounting Guidance on Temporary Relief Measures for Accounting Alternatives in  

Response to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank has adjusted lease payable from reducing 

fees for building space rental for the year 2021 and 2020 for totaling amount of Baht 3.27 million and  

Baht 5.96 million, respectively.
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	 8.12	 Other Intangible Assets, Net

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2021

Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Net

Balance
Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Computer software  2,986.36  135.28  284.99  2,836.65  1,819.37  369.37  206.32  1,982.42  854.23 

 2,986.36  135.28  284.99  2,836.65  1,819.37  369.37  206.32  1,982.42  854.23 

Amortisation for the year 2021 369.37

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Cost Accumulated Depreciation
Net

Balance
Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Beginning

Balance
Additions Decreases

Ending

Balance

Computer software  2,919.45  193.37  126.46  2,986.36  1,533.89  391.41  105.93  1,819.37  1,166.99 

 2,919.45  193.37  126.46  2,986.36  1,533.89  391.41  105.93  1,819.37  1,166.99 

Amortisation for the year 2020 391.41
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	 8.13	 Other Assets, Net

	 Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Other
assets

Allowance
for

impairment

Other
assets 
net

Other assets Allowance
for

impairment

Other
assets 
net

Return fees  1,200.88  (1,200.88)  -  1,101.76  (1,101.76)  -

Long-term individual loan fees  767.66 (113.98)  653.68  662.57 (81.87)  580.70 

Other debtors  80.30 (80.30)  -    157.67 (151.43)  6.24 

Accrued income  47.40 (0.70)  46.70  45.24 (0.70)  44.54 

Deferred charges  9.66  -    9.66  14.11  -    14.11 

Guarantees and cash deposits  80.51  -    80.51  86.92  -    86.92 

Debtors pending refund  358.73 (358.73)  -    360.69 (360.69)  -   

Supplies  2.21 (0.24)  1.97  7.20 (0.24)  6.96 

Others  589.89  -    589.89  484.19  -    484.19 

Total  3,137.24  (1,754.83)  1,382.41  2,920.35  (1,696.69)  1,223.66 

	 Unit : Million Baht

The Bank

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Other
assets

Allowance
for

impairment

Other
assets 
net

Other assets Allowance
for

impairment

Other
assets 
net

Return fees  1,200.88  (1,200.88)  -    1,101.76  (1,101.76)  -   

Long-term individual loan fees  767.66  (113.98)  653.68  662.57  (81.87)  580.70 

Other debtors  80.30  (80.30)  -    157.67  (151.43)  6.24 

Accrued income  47.40  (0.70)  46.70  126.06  (0.70)  125.36 

Deferred charges  9.66  -    9.66  14.11  -    14.11 

Guarantees and cash deposits  80.51  -    80.51  86.92  -    86.92 

Debtors pending refund  358.73  (358.73)  -    360.69  (360.69)  -   

Supplies  2.21  (0.24)  1.97  7.20  (0.24)  6.96 

Others  590.25  -  590.25  497.65  -  497.65 

Total  3,137.60  (1,754.83)  1,382.77  3,014.63  (1,696.69)  1,317.94 

		  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank had debtors pending refund amounting to  

Baht 358.73 million and Baht 360.69 million respectively. The Bank set up an allowance for doubtful 

accounts for the full amount.
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	 8.14	 Deposits

		  8.14.1	 Classified by types of deposits

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2021 2020

Demand deposits  896.00  579.60 

Savings deposits  312,755.65  274,414.89 

Time deposits  961,197.05  886,663.53 

Total  1,274,848.70  1,161,658.02 

		  8.14.2	 Classified by currency and depositor locations

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

2021 2020

Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total

Thai Baht  1,274,848.70  -    1,274,848.70  1,161,658.02   -  1,161,658.02 

	 8.15	 Interbank and Money Market Items, Net (Liabilities)

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

2021 2020

Demand Time Total Demand Time Total

Domestic items

- Commercial banks  -    3,800.00  3,800.00  -    -    -   

Total  -    3,800.00  3,800.00  -    -    -   

	 8.16	 Debt Issued and Borrowings

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated

2021 2020

Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total

Bonds  111,150.00  -    111,150.00  131,240.00  -    131,240.00 

Secured debentures  -    -    -    4,807.42  -    4,807.42 

Total  111,150.00  -    111,150.00  136,047.42  -    136,047.42 
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	 8.16	 Debt Issued and Borrowings (Continued)

Unit : Million Baht

The Bank

2021 2020

Domestic Foreign Total Domestic Foreign Total

Bonds  111,150.00  -    111,150.00  131,240.00  -    131,240.00 

Promissory notes  -    -    -    216.23  -    216.23 

Borrowings  -    -    -    4,602.31  -    4,602.31 

Total  111,150.00  -    111,150.00  136,058.54  -    136,058.54 

		  In 2021, the Bank issued bonds totaling Baht 4,000.00 million and redeemed bonds totaling  

Baht 24,090.00 million. 

		  Debt Issued and Borrowings details are as follows:

Types Lenders

Amount 

(Unit:

Million Baht)

Terms
Maturity

year

Annual

interest rate 

(%)

Domestic

   Bonds - GHB 

   Bonds - SMC

Commercial banks and financial institutions

Commercial banks and financial institutions

 109,200.00  

 1,950.00  

3 - 15 years

7 years

2022 - 2034

2023

1.58 - 4.74

2.89 - 3.01

	 8.17	 Provision 

Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2021 2020

Provision for employee benefits  2,773.85  2,484.71 

Provision of indemnity  0.38  7.74 

Provision for decommissioning costs  -    6.81 

Total  2,774.23  2,499.26 
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	 8.17	 Provision (Continued)

		  8.17.1	 Employee Benefits

			   Provision for employee benefits

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2021 2020

Employment rewards  2,524.78  2,308.77 

Retiring employee gifts  57.86  47.08 

Pensions  3.65  5.77 

Legal Severance Payment  55.27  23.63 

Total post-employment employee benefit liabilities  2,641.56  2,385.25 

Short-term employee benefits  29.53  28.04 

Other long-term employee benefits  102.76  71.42 

Total  employee benefit liabilities  2,773.85  2,484.71 

		  The present values of post-employment benefit obligations for the defined benefit plan are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2021 2020

Beginning balance as at January 1  2,385.25  2,197.82 

Proportion that recognise in profit or loss

Current service costs  194.63  164.62 

Past service costs  -    11.10 

Interest costs  48.98  59.95 

Proportion that recognise in other comprehensive

income

  

Actuarial (gain) loss

Financial assumptions  202.00  (5.01)

Demographic assumptions  (185.92)  25.13 

Experience adjustment  37.58  2.64 

Employee benefits paid during the period  (40.96)  (71.00)

Ending balance as at December 31  2,641.56  2,385.25 
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	 8.17	 Provision (Continued)

		  8.17.1	 Employee Benefits (Continued)

		  The present values of other long-term employee benefits are as follows:

Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2021 2020

Beginning balance as at January 1  71.42  69.51 

Proportion that recognise in profit or loss

Current service costs  8.85  6.06 

Past service costs  -    1.14 

Interest costs  1.98  1.83 

Proportion that recognise in profit or loss

Actuarial (gain) loss

Financial assumptions  23.50  -   

Demographic assumptions  (2.78)  -   

Experience adjustment  7.26  -   

Employee benefits paid during the period  (7.47)  (7.12)

Ending balance as at December 31  102.76  71.42 

		  Expenses recognised in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: 

Unit: Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2021 2020

Current service costs  203.48  170.68 

Past service costs  -    12.24 

Interest costs  50.96  61.78 

Actuarial loss  27.98  -   

Total  282.42  244.70 
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	 8.17	 Provision (Continued)

		  8.17.1	 Employee Benefits (Continued)

		  Expenses recognised in other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

are as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

 2021 2020

Actuarial loss  53.66  22.76 

   Total  53.66  22.76  

		  The principal actuarial assumptions used to calculate post-employment benefits obligation-defined 

benefits and other long-term employee benefits are as follows:

Percentage

 2021 2020

Discount rate 0.82 - 2.02 2.67  

Average rate of salary increase 5.00 - 7.50 7.50 

Average rate of resignation 0.00 - 23.00 0.00 - 30.00   

		  The principal actuarial assumption comprises of the salary increase rate and mortality rate, and the 

discount rate of the sensitivity analysis below was considered from the reasonable change in each of 

the relevant actuarial assumptions as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 while other assumptions remain 

constant as follows:

Percentage

 2021 2020

Increase in discount rate by 0.5 - 1 percent (296.54) (254.83)

Decrease in discount rate by 0.5 - 1 percent 354.32 300.95 

Increase in salary rate by 0.5 - 1 percent 320.27 300.50 

Decrease in salary rate by 0.5 - 1 percent (275.03) (259.21)

Increase in resignation rate by 0.5 - 1 percent (308.75) (265.29)

Decrease in resignation rate by 0.5 - 1 percent 251.56 24.30 

Increase in life expectancy rate by 0.5 - 1 percent 13.74 13.80 

Decrease in life expectancy rate by 0.5 - 1 percent (13.66) (16.48)
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	 8.18	 Other Liabilities

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2021 2020 2021 2020

Other creditors  890.29  1,046.79  890.29  1,046.79 

Deposits and guarantees  1,504.46  1,497.37  1,504.46  1,497.37 

Accrued expenses  968.53  820.24  968.02  818.57 

Withholding taxes  27.86  26.10  27.85  25.93 

Others  1,077.26  878.07  1,077.26  953.65 

Total  4,468.40  4,268.57  4,467.88  4,342.31 

	 8.19	 Capital

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2021 2020

Initial capital  20.00  20.00 

Capital received from budget  1,990.00  1,990.00 

Additional capital received from the Ministry of Finance  18,310.33  18,310.33 

Total  20,320.33  20,320.33 

	 8.20	 Legal Reserve

		  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank had legal reserve amounting to Baht 30,872.99 million  

and Baht 28,797.81 million, respectively according to Government Housing Bank Act, B.E. 2496 (1953) 

and its amendment Section 8 which the Bank is required to set aside at least 20 percent of each year’s 

net profits as legal reserve. 

	 8.21	 Government Housing Bank Pension Fund

		  The Bank included the assets, funds, income and expenses of the Government Housing Bank Pension 

Fund in the bank’s financial statements. In 2021 and 2020, the Fund had outstanding balances of  

Baht 5.61 million and Baht 7.87 million, respectively, and obligations to pay pensions to personal of  

Baht 2.96 million and Baht 5.01 million, respectively.

	 8.22	 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

		  8.22.1	 Contingent liabilities

			   The Bank bears 63 lawsuits as the defendant and co-defendant: 47 pending trials, 10 pending appeals, 

and 6 pending petitions, which the total amount in dispute is Baht 185.00 million.   
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	 8.22	 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (Continued)

		  8.22.2	 Commitments

			   8.22.2.1 The Bank had obligations from issuing the guarantees public utilities to customers  

as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounting to Baht 23.47 million and Baht 13.52 million, 

respectively.

			   8.22.2.2 The Bank agreed to be a surety to the holder of secured debentures for the principal 

and interest repayment of its subsidiary’s secured debentures. The subsidiaries are subjected 

to monthly pay fees to the Bank at the rate of 0.5 percent per annum of the total amount of 

secured debentures outstanding principal. The guarantee will be terminated when the repayment 

for securitization plan is done.

			   According to the guarantee agreement, the Bank became a surety for principal and interest repayment of 

secured debentures issued under the securitization plan from SPV to its holders with the limit 

of 90 percent or 100 percent of the outstanding balance per unit.

			   8.22.2.3 The Bank entered into the financial support agreement and guaranteed for claims 

quality of loans transferred to its subsidiaries. The Bank agreed to grant the subsidiaries a loan 

equaling to an inadequate amount of cash flow for interest and principal including such fees 

and/or obligations repayment with the interest rate based on the rate of Bank of Thailand’s 

regulations on the withdrawal date plus 0.5 percent per annum. The subsidiaries must comply 

with the conditions in the agreement and the agreement termination will be effective after the 

repayment for principal and/or interest of securitization plan is done.

	 8.23	 Related Party Transactions Items

		  Significant outstanding balances with related parties (apart from those already disclosed) are as follows:

		  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, loans to the Bank’s executives (First Vice President and above) are 

Baht 152.04 million and Baht 153.20 million, respectively.

		  The loans outstanding as at December 31, 2021 and 2020 to close family of the Bank’s executives  

mentioned above are Baht 16.73 million and Baht 22.07 million, respectively.

		  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank has other benefits paid to directors and authorized  

managements which are compensation of Baht 11.12 million and Baht 10.44 million, respectively.

		  The Bank has either direct or indirect control and significant influence over financial and operations 

policy decisions of related parties. Related parties are also the entities under the common control and 

influence of those mentioned. In consideration of the relationship between related parties, the Bank 

considers the substance of the relationship over the legal form. The relationship between the Bank and 

related parties are as follows:







A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 1

Government Housing Bank 255

	 8.26	 Interest Expenses

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2021 2020 2021 2020

Deposits  9,505.58  12,632.11  9,505.58  12,632.11 

Interbank and money market items  0.81  1.53  0.81  1.53 

Remittance to Fund for Development

     of Specialised Financial Institutions  1,559.78  1,431.18  1,559.78  1,431.18 

Borrowings  3,691.44  4,383.21  3,672.57  4,452.97 

Borrowing fees  35.07  44.49  35.07  44.49 

Others  12.86  15.86  12.86  15.86 

Total interest expenses  14,805.54  18,508.38  14,786.67  18,578.14 

	 8.27	 Fees and Services Income, Net

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated The Bank

2021 2020 2021 2020

Fees and services income    

Acceptance, aval, and guarantees  0.31  0.28  24.30  63.50 

Miscellaneous income - Khum Ni Run fees  811.19  824.39  811.19  824.39 

Commission income - premium insurance  274.93  261.65  274.93  261.65 

Loans to customers  (51.93)  43.39  (51.93)  43.39 

Others  24.97  23.97  24.97  23.97 

Total fees and services income  1,059.47  1,153.68  1,083.46  1,216.90 

(Less) Fees and service expenses  (38.84)  (28.51) (38.84) (28.51)

Fees and  service income, net  1,020.63  1,125.17  1,044.62  1,188.39 

	 8.28	 Bad Debt and Doubtful Accounts

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

 2021 2020

Bad debt and doubtful accounts

Normal operation  13,781.50  9,691.85 

Public service account operation  1,813.06  1,079.21 

Total  15,594.56  10,771.06 
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	 8.30	 Public Service Account

		  8.30.1	 Public Service Account details

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

Assets and liabilities 2021 2020

Assets

Loans to customers from public service account and 

accrued interest receivables, net  142,457.15  138,451.34 

Receivables for governmental compensation under

public service account  284.33  17.27 

Total assets  142,741.48  138,468.61 

Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

Revenue and Expenses 2021 2020

Income from public service account  4,440.01  3,828.56 

(Less) Expenses from public service account (2,794.22) (3,167.74)

Bad debt and doubtful accounts from public service

account (1,813.06) (1,079.21)

Net profit (loss) (167.27) (418.39)

		  8.30.2	 Loans to customers from Public Service Account and accrued interest receivables, net

Unit: Million Baht

Projects Projects Details Period December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

The residential home loan 

for the low-to-middle 

income citizens

To support the low-to-middle 

 income citizens to be able to access  

to the residential home loan.

From October 19, 

2015 onwards.

5,338.56 7,428.79

Bann Pracha Rath For citizens, especially the low- 

income citizens, including the 

civil service officers, soldier, police  

officers, educational personnel and 

freelances, who have no property 

rights for the purpose of residence 

owning, fixing and/or renovation.

From March 23, 

2016 onwards.

7,933.47 8,609.20
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	 8.30	 Public Service Account (Continued)

		  8.30.2	 Loans to customers from Public Service Account and accrued interest receivables, net (Continued)

Unit: Million Baht

Projects Projects Details Period December 31, 2021December 31, 2020

Bann Thanaruk Pracha 

Rath

For government officials and citizens, 

who have never owned the property 

right, to own residence on the state 

property, including the fixing and 

renovation of the home built on the 

state property.

From April 19, 2016 

onwards.

19.30 18.49

State Welfare

(Only State Welfare 

cardholders not more 

than Baht 1 million)

To support the qualified cardholders 

and low-income citizens (income that 

is not more than Baht 25,000 per 

month) for owning residential home.

The applicat ion 

period is January 

15, 2018 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

28, 2018 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

80.15 85.65

State Welfare

(Income less than Baht 

25,000 per month or 

State Welfare cardholders 

not more than Baht 2 

million)

To support the qualified cardholders 

and low-income citizens (income that 

is not more than Baht 25,000 per 

month) for owning residential home.

The applicat ion 

period is January 

15, 2018 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

28, 2018 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

24,517.68 26,366.66

Residential home loan 

for state welfare

(State Personnel)

To support state personnel for owning 

residential home.

The applicat ion 

period is January 

15, 2018 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

28, 2018 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

20,182.57 21,937.96
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	 8.30	 Public Service Account (Continued)

		  8.30.2	 Loans to customers from Public Service Account and accrued interest receivables, net (Continued)

Unit: Million Baht

Projects Projects Details Period December 31, 2021December 31, 2020

State Welfare

(Southern provinces 

not more than Baht 1 

million)

To support the qualified cardholders 

and low-income citizens (income 

that is not more than Baht 25,000 

per month) and state personnel 

for owning residential home where  

domicile is located and willing to be in 

southern provinces: Yala, Narathiwat 

and Pattani.

The applicat ion 

period is January 

15, 2018 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

28, 2018 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

8.50 9.90

State Welfare

(Southern provinces 

not more than Baht 2 

million)

To support the qualified cardholders 

and low-income citizens (income 

that is not more than Baht 25,000 

per month) and state personnel 

for owning residential home where  

domicile is located and willing to be in 

southern provinces:  Yala, Narathiwat 

and Pattani.

The applicat ion 

period is January 

15, 2018 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

28, 2018 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

381.16 415.14

Million houses Type 1

(Income not more than 

Baht 25,000 per month)

To support the people to have their 

own residents, especially those with 

low income, working people or people  

starting to build a family, including 

the elderly group. The Bank supports 

housing loans under lenient condition 

in the amount of not more than Baht 

1.2 million (Income that is not more 

than Baht 25,000 per month).

The applicat ion 

period is January 

2, 2019 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

30, 2021 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

29,080.74 21,910.38



A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 2 1

Government Housing Bank260

	 8.30	 Public Service Account (Continued)

		  8.30.2	 Loans to customers from Public Service Account and accrued interest receivables, net (Continued)

Unit: Million Baht

Projects Projects Details Period December 31, 2021December 31, 2020

Million houses Type 2

( Income more than 

Baht 25,000 per month)

To support the people to have their 

own residents, especially those with 

low income, working people or people  

starting to build a family, including 

the elderly group. The Bank supports 

housing loans under lenient condition 

in the amount of not more than Baht 

1.2 million (Income that is more than 

Baht 25,000 per month).

The applicat ion 

period is January 

2, 2019 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

30, 2021 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

5,475.22 4,310.32

Housing loan measures 

of the Government 

Housing Bank

To support people who have needs of 

owning residents. The bank supports 

housing loans that are not more than 

3 million.

The applicat ion 

period is October 

22, 2019 afterwards 

unt i l  December 

24, 2020 or fully 

approaching the 

credit limit of the 

project.

45,362.86 47,358.85

Million houses project 

Phase 2

To support people who want to have 

their own residents at a selling price 

does not exceed 1,200,000 baht per 

unit, focusing on the low-income 

groups who are unable to obtain 

loans from commercial banks, working  

age and people starting to build a 

family, including the elderly group.

The  app l i c a t i on  

period is September 

10, 2021 afterwards 

un t i l  Decembe r  

30, 2023 or fully  

approach ing  the 

credit limit of the 

project.

4,076.94 -

Total   142,457.15 138,451.34
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	 8.30	 Public Service Account (Continued)

		  8.30.3 Asset classification and allowance for Public Service Account

		  Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2021

Number 
(person)

Outstanding 
balance

Guaranteed 
value

% Used for 
Calculation

The Allowance 
For Doubtful 

Accounts

Allowance 
for Doubtful 

Accounts

1. Bank of Thailand minimun allowance

- Normal  126,397  129,847.70  160,870.51 1  200.61 

- Special mention  11,111  11,481.02  13,563.39 2  263.98 

- Substandard  1,051  1,133.83  1,299.64 100  350.42 

- Doubtful  1,619  1,881.68  2,124.86 100  579.05 

- Doubtful of loss  2,382  2,751.60  3,051.95 100  809.08 

   Total  2,203.14 

2. Excess allowance  3,412.20 

   Total  142,560  147,095.83  180,910.35  5,615.34 

		  Unit : Million Baht

Consolidated and the Bank

December 31, 2020

Number 
(person)

Outstanding 
balance

Guaranteed 
value

% Used for 
Calculation

The Allowance 
For Doubtful 

Accounts

Allowance 
for Doubtful 

Accounts

1. Bank of Thailand minimun allowance

- Normal  117,428  129,270.62  159,726.93 1  125.09 

- Special mention  8,341  8,446.11  10,261.89 2  105.87 

- Substandard  970  962.82  1,111.01 100  305.61 

- Doubtful  701  731.48  876.93 100  196.65 

- Doubtful of loss  1,764  2,060.79  2,353.91 100  553.41 

   Total  1,286.63 

2. Excess allowance  2,515.65 

   Total  129,204  141,471.82  174,330.67  3,802.28 
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	 8.30	 Public Service Account (Continued)

		  8.30.3 Asset classification and allowance for Public Service Account (Continued)
		  As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the allowance for doubtful accounts were Baht 5,615.34 million 

and Baht 3,802.28 million, respectively which are the minimum allowance in accordance with the BOT’s 
regulations and the Bank also sets up additional provision amounting to Baht 3,412.20 million and  
Baht 2,515.65 million, respectively. To alleviate an adverse effect to occur in the future, the Bank also 
considers the qualitative factors. The Bank sets up additional provision by reflecting the qualitative  
factor of retail loans. The Bank reviews the credit quality of loans, the additional allowance for doubtful 
accounts might be set up annually. 

		  Loans and accrued interest receivables that are classified as substandard, doubtful, and doubtful of 
loss according to the BOT’s regulations in which the Bank ceased to recognise income because they 
are non-performing loans. As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, these non-performing loans totaling  
Baht 5,767.11 million and Baht 3,755.09 million which are 3.92 percent and 2.65 percent, respectively.

		  8.30.4  Receivables for Governmental Compensation under Public Service Account

Unit : Million Baht
Consolidated and the Bank

2021 2020

Million home project  194.94  -   
Housing loan measures of the Government Housing Bank  84.01  17.27 
Million home project Phase 2  5.38  -   

  Total  284.33  17.27 

		  8.30.5	 Income from Public Service Account

Unit : Million Baht
Consolidated and the Bank

2021 2020

Income from loans to customers from public service account
- Interest income from loans to customers from Public  
     Service Account  3,895.49  3,483.95 
- Fees and services income from loans to customers from
     Public Service Account, net  122.97  131.48 

Compensation income from government from public service account
- Interest compensation income from government from 
     Public Service Account  421.55  213.13 
Total  4,440.01  3,828.56 

		  8.30.6	 Expenses from Public Service Account

Unit : Million Baht
Consolidated and the Bank

2021 2020

Interest expenses from Public Service Account  1,913.60  2,347.40 
Operating expenses from Public Service Account  880.62  820.34 
Total  2,794.22  3,167.74 

	 8.31	 Approval of the Financial Statements

		  The financial statements have been approved for issue by the president on March 24, 2022.
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Major Improvements
1973 - 1974
In 1973, the Bank operated its business by providing housing loans, both short-term loans for housing project 

developers (Housing Project Development Loan or Pre-construction Financing) and long-term loans for the general 
public for (Home Mortgage Loan or Post-construction Financing). In 1974, the Bank launched its first “Deposit Taking” 
business, comprising 3 types of deposits, namely 1) Demand deposits 2) Savings deposits 3) 3, 6, 12 month fixed 
deposits. 

1979 - 1981 
After the economic crisis, the Bank reorganized its operations and banking strategy by dividing its loan section 

into general loans and housing project loans. At the same time, the lending process was streamlined and personnel  
training was developed. Super Savings Accounts were initiated and became well-known as the Bank’s major  
funding source for many years. Moreover, the Bank established a credit center, which was subsequently upgraded 
to the Project Credit Department, to solve the problem of outstanding debts in housing projects by analyzing and 
considering granting loans to project developers.

1986
On August 18, 1986, The Bank moved its head office from Ratchadamnoen Nai Road to 63 Rama 9 Road,  

Huai Khwang, Bangkok. The old office at Ratchadamnoen Nai Road became the First G H Bank’s branch. The Bank 
began to open more branches and operated banking counters at department stores. Besides, One Stop Services at 
district offices nationwide and several loan service units were opened to serve customers.

1993 - 1996
On the occasion of the Bank’s 40th anniversary in 1993, the Bank changed its logo from “Vimanmek”  

to an image of “Two hands embracing a house”. At the same time, the Bank was approved by the Cabinet’s to be  
a “Good state enterprise”. The Bank began publishing its journal and created a website to present housing information  
to the general public. In 1996, the Bank was honored by the United Nations Centre for Human Settlements as  
a “Financial Institution with Outstanding  Operations”. The Bank proudly received this international recognition.

1997 - 1999
During Thailand’s 1997-1999 servere economic crisis, the Bank played an important role in reviving the housing 

and real-estate sectors following government policy such as 14 debt restructuring schemes to recover NPLs, 
providing 30 - year fixed low interest-rate loans in cooperation with the Government Savings Bank, establishing 
a secondary mortgage market office, the K-ha Ruam Jai Project and creating website specifically for home buyers 
at www.ghbhomecenter.com.
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2005 - 2007
The Bank amended the Government Housing Bank Act (No. 3) B.E. 2549 and announced in the Royal Gazette 

on January 17, 2006, resulting in significant changes in the Bank’s business operations which allowed the Bank to 
expand its scope of  financial services and allowed customers to purchase equipment or facilities for housing such 
as furniture, kitchenware, sanitary ware, electrical appliances and others items as specified by the Bank’s Board of 
Directors. In 2007, the Bank launched a new corporate identity symbols to support its vision of a “Modern Bank for 
Comprehensive Housing” and used the English name “G H Bank”. The Bank also adopted modern technology in 
its operations by launching its new Core Banking system. The management structure was restructured into a Hub & 
Spokes system. Credit analysis and approval centers were centralized at the Credit Processing Center (CPC) so that 
credit considerations were standardized across the Bank and able to serve customer more efficiently and quickly.

During 2005 - 2007, the Bank received the “Outstanding State Enterprise” award for three consecutive years. 
In 2005, it was the first and only state enterprise that won the Best State Enterprise award in all 3 categories in the 
same year, including the Outstanding Performance award, Best Board of Directors award and Outstanding Organization 
Management award. In addition, the Bank also received the Best Practice Certificate, Best Marketing Campaign award 
and the Boss of The Year 2007 award (given to Mr. Khan Prachuapmoh, President of Government Housing Bank).

2016 - 2018
The Bank announced a new mission, “Enabling Thai people to have their own homes” to achieve its goals 

under the vision “The Best Housing Solution Bank” by applying Digital Technology to all parts of the business including 
focusing on raising service level according to Transformation to Digital Services Plan to meet customers’ needs and 
expectations in the 4.0 era such as 1) Mobile application: GHB ALL 2) Cashless Loan Payment Machine: QR Non Cash 
Payment 3) LRM Loan Repayment Machine etc.

During 2016 - 2018, the Bank received awards from various organizations such as
1.	 Green Office award : Very good level in 2016
2.	 Integrity and Transparency Assessment (ITA Award) with the highest score for two consecutive years 

	 (score of 97.97 in 2017 and 99.55 in 2018).
3.	 State Organization Enterprises (SOE Award) 
	 In 2017 :	 -	 Outstanding Innovation Award, Honorable mention
	 In 2018 : 	 -	 Outstanding Organization Management Award 
		  -	 Outstanding Development Cooperation Award on upgrading organizational management  

			   or mentoring projects
		  -	 Development Cooperation Award on strategic cooperation, Honor category
4.	 Thailand Quality Class  Award (TQC) in 2017

2019
The Bank upgraded its services by changing its core work system, “GHB System” to accommodate future business  

operations and increase the Bank’s management efficiency and competitiveness. In addition, the Government  
Housing Bank Act (No. 4) B.E. 2562 was amended and announced it in the Royal Gazette on April 17, 2019. As a result,  
the Bank was able to issue Reverse Mortgage loans and GHB savings lottery. In 2019, the Bank issued 2 savings lottery 
tickets, including, Premium Vimankmek (1 million baht/ unit), and Prawpiman (10 million baht/ unit). The Cabinet 
also approved income tax exemption for savings and savings lottery.

The Bank received awards from many organizations including,
1.	 State Organization Enterprises (SOE Award) : 3 awards
	 -	 Outstanding State Enterprise 2019
	 -	 Outstanding Leader 2019, awarded to Mr. Chatchai Sirilai, the Bank’s President
	 -	 Outstanding Development Cooperation Award on enhancement of organizational management, 

		  Honorable mention
2.	 Thailand Quality Award (TQA) in 2019 
3.	 Integrity and Transparency Assessment 2019 (ITA Award) with the highest score for three consecutive years  

	 (2017-2019)
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2020
The Bank is committed to upholding its mission of “Enabling Thai people to have their own homes” and 

maintaining a leading position in a housing loan market along with enhancing its customer services to accommodate 
customer behaviors in the New Normal era and to support its transition to a  Digital Bank in the future by establishing 
important plans/projects that support being a Digital Bank such as

1.	 Develop additional functions for GHB ALL, a mobile application with 6 new services: 1) Buying GHB savings 
lottery 2) Requesting a deposit account statement 3) Booking a service queue in advance 4) Loan payment receipt 
in electronic form 5) NPA payment and 6) Editing personal information.

2.	 Tollway Loan Plus project: Cooperation with the Bank’s HR department or the agency that has loan welfare 
with the Bank by providing a service to submit loan application documents via electronic system and interviewing 
applicants for consideration via  a phone so that they come to the Bank only once for signing a contract.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank has provided measures pursuant to the government policy to 
help customers affected by the COVID-19 including suspension of both principal and interest payment, suspension 
of principal payment or reduction of interest rates such as measures to help customers affected by the COVID-19 
pandemic, and “GHB Helps Thai People to Build a Nation”

The Bank has operated its business in accordance with the government’s policy. Following the announcement  
of the Act for the Dissolution of the Secondary Mortgage Corporation B.E. 2563, SMC assests and liabilities were 
transfered to G H Bank. The Key rationale for the merger is to enhance efficiency which will benefit customers, public, 
real estate sector and overall economy of the country.

The Bank received awards from many organizations including,
1.	 State Organization Enterprises (SOE Award) : 3 awards
	 -	 Outstanding Disclosure and Transparency Award
	 -	 Outstanding Development Cooperation Award on enhancement of organizational management
		  (mentoring project) 
	 -	 Digital Transformation Initiative Award, Honorable mention
2.	 Integrity and Transparency Assessment (ITA Award) with the highest score for four consecutive years 

	 (score of 99.60).
3.	 Thailand Top Company Awards 2020: 2 awards
	 -	 Best Digital Banker of the Year Award for the best digital financial services organization leader.
	 -	 CSR of The Year Award for the best organizations that focus on social responsibility.
4.	 Global Performance Excellence Award 2020 (GPEA): Best in Class. It is a prestigious award for an organization  

	 in the Asia Pacific region with excellence in business practice which demonstrates the progress in driving 
	 the organization towards its vision for success, as well as consistently maintaining a good performance.
	 It is an award that organizations in Thailand in 18 years to receive the award.
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2021
The Bank intends to improve service and organizational management under the main concept of  

“Be Simple, Make it Simple,” or making Thai people have easy access to having a home with  G H Bank by  
enhancing the development of digital services, both financial and loan services, in order for G H Bank to become  
a Digital Service Banking with 4 new cities consisting of: 1) Application GHB ALL Excellent; 2) GHB Buddy;  
3) Application G H Bank Smart NPA; and 4) Application G H Bank Smart NPL.

Moreover, the Bank has launched the Virtual Branch project in order to develop services and respond to 
the strategy of expanding the new mortgage base in the Social & Business group, which is a new Business Model 
for customers with a focus on off-site service form. It also accesses to financial services for customers, expands 
the home loan base, offers savings lottery products called Proud Phiman Plus series at a price of 10 million baht 
per unit and operates the project in accordance with the government policy “The Million House Project Phase 2,”  
by allowing customers to register the loan via the GHB ALL Mobile Application.

As the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic situation continues to impact the Thai economy,  
the Bank continues to support those affected by lower income from COVID-19 from 2020 to the present through 
over 20 measures of “G H Bank Project Helping Thai People Build a Nation” and “G H Bank unites Thais to Build a 
Nation”, including alleviating suffering for public customers by launching the “Housing Loan Project to Help Victims 
of Natural Disasters in 2021” from the case of flash floods at the end of the Chao Phraya Dam. From 2020 to the 
present, over 20 measures have been implemented under the “GHB Project Helps Thai People to Build a Nation” 
and “GGS Unite Thais to Build a Nation Project,” as well as measures to alleviate consumer suffering. “Housing Loan 
Program to Help Victims of Natural Disasters in 2021,” in response to flash floods at the end of the Chao Phraya Dam.

The Bank has received honorable awards from organizations, namely:
1.	National Innovation Awards on “Outstanding Innovative Organization in the category of honorary awards 

in state-owned enterprises” for the year 2021 from the National Innovation Agency (Public Organization). G H Bank 
is the first state-owned enterprise to receive this award.

2.	 “Thailand’s Top CEO Awards 2021” as an organization leader with the capacity and dedication to “Making 
homeownership available to Thai people” in accordance with the Bank’s mission while efficiently providing digital 
services for customers by Neo Target Co., Ltd. and Influential Co., Ltd., Singaporean branded organizations.

3.	 “BUSINESS + PRODUCT OF THE YEARS AWARD 2021” The Million House Project Loan product was surveyed 
as the best products and services of the year in the finance, banking and investment category by Business + Magazine 
in collaboration with the College of Management, Mahidol University.

4.	 Integrity and Transparency Assessment (ITA Awards) in Government Sector Operations for the fiscal  
year 2021 - The Office of the National Anti-Corruption Commission (NACC Office) awarded the best score with 
99.81points, ranking first for the fifth consecutive year.

5.	 SOE Award 2021 includes 6 awards, namely: 1) Outstanding Organizational Management Award (Outstanding); 
2) Outstanding Disclosure and Transparency Award; 3) Outstanding Creativity and Innovation Award; 4) Outstanding 
Honored Strategic Cooperation for Development Award; 5) Outstanding Service Awards and; 6) Honorable Mentioned 
Award for Outstanding Creativity and Innovation in the category of innovations granted by State Enterprise Policy 
Office (SEPO).
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Management Team

No. Name - Surname Position Telephone e-mail

1 Mr. Chatchai Sirilai President 0-2202-1780 chatchai.s@ghb.co.th

2 Mr. Kamonpop Veerapala Senior Executive Vice President,
Finance and Accounting Business Unit

0-2202-1965 kamonpop@ghb.co.th

3 Mr. Witthaya Saenphakdee Senior Executive Vice President, Marketing Business Unit 0-2202-2526 witthaya@ghb.co.th

4 Ms. Chatravee Chirakunmethaphat Senior Executive Vice President, Branch Business Unit 0-2202-1092 chatravee@ghb.co.th

5 Ms. Orada Chareonsilp Bank Inspector (Equivalent to Senior Executive Vice President) 0-2202-2053 orada@ghb.co.th

6 Dr. Vichai Viratkapan Bank Inspector (Equivalent to Senior Executive Vice President) 0-2202-1898 vichai.v@ghb.co.th

7 Mr. Pongsak Kumnuansiri Senior Executive Vice President, Credit Business Unit 0-2202-1179 pongsak.k@ghb.co.th

8 Ms. Thidaporn Mekingthong Senior Executive Vice President, Operation Unit and
Acting Executive Vice President, Compliance and
Legal Management Group

0-2202-2448
0-2202-2255

thidaporn@ghb.co.th

9 Mr. Apirat Aroonvilairat Senior Executive Vice President, Information Technology Unit 0-2202-1514 apirat@ghb.co.th

10 Mr. Saksit Jittanoon Senior Executive Vice President, Debt Restructuring Unit and 
Acting Executive Vice President, Execution Group 

0-2202-6381 saksit@ghb.co.th

11 Mr. Tuantong Treenuparb Executive Vice President, Digital Development Group 0-2202-1778 tuantong@ghb.co.th

12 Mr. Popkorn Charoenlarp Executive Vice President, Risk Management Group 0-2202-1619 popkorn@ghb.co.th

13 Mr. Danai Sangsrichantara Executive Vice President, Regional Branch Group 3  0-2202-1618 danai@ghb.co.th

14 Mr. Narongpol Prapanirin Executive Vice President, Strategic Planning Group 0-2202-1967 narongpol@ghb.co.th

15 Ms. Porta Yimtraiporn Executive Vice President, Metropolitan Branch Group 0-2202-1446 porta@ghb.co.th

16 Ms. Paninee Manosan Executive Vice President, Credit and Social Policy Group 0-2202-2343 paninee@ghb.co.th

17 Ms. Karuna Muantoei Executive Vice President,
Human Resources Management Group 

0-2202-1911 karuna@ghb.co.th

18 Ms. Sudjittra Kumdee Executive Vice President, Communications and
Corporate Image Group 

0-2202-2181-2 sudjittra.k@ghb.co.th

19 Ms. Oranuch Phongprayoon Executive Vice President, Debt Management Group 0-2202-1558 oranuch.p@ghb.co.th

20 Mr. Chana Jirarustanarangsee Executive Vice President, Regional Branch Group 1 0-2202-1535 chana@ghb.co.th

21 Ms. Kanjanika Srirattanatri Executive Vice President,
Marketing and Business Development Group 2 

0-2202-1123 kanjanika@ghb.co.th

22 Ms. Ranee Pachsong Executive Vice President, Finance and Accounting Group 0-2202-1713 ranee@ghb.co.th

23 Mr. Sornpong Durongkavarojana Executive Vice President,
Marketing and Business Development Group 1 

0-2202-1747 sonpong@ghb.co.th

24 Ms. Usanee Boosayakomut Executive Vice President, Credit Analysis Group 0-2202-1842 usanee@ghb.co.th

25 Ms. Saowakon Chusri Executive Vice President, Regional Branch Group 2 0-2202-1730 saowakon@ghb.co.th

26 Mr. Manop Chanchaum Bank Inspector and Acting Senior Vice President,
Eastern Branch Department 

0-3806-9286 manop@ghb.co.th

27 Mr. Chainarong Sawatdeewongsa Executive Vice President, Support Group 0-2202-1479 chainarong.s@ghb.co.th

28 Mr. Monchai Teeravorakul Executive Vice President, Retail Customers Operating Group  0-2202-1148 monchai@ghb.co.th

29 Ms. Luckana Supasirisun Senior Vice President, IT Development Department and 
Acting Executive Vice President, Operating Technology Group

0-2202-1659 luckana@ghb.co.th
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30 Ms. Khwanjai Sakdamin Senior Vice President, Office of the President 0-2202-1313 khwanjai@ghb.co.th

31 Mr. Jedsada Meesuwan Senior Vice President, IT Audit Department 0-2202-1798 jedsada@ghb.co.th

32 Ms. Angkana Chantarasiri Senior Vice President, Branch Audit Department 0-2202-1108 angkana.c@ghb.co.th

33 Ms. Rawaeo Eksuwan Senior Vice President, Head Office Internal Audit Department 0-2202-2165 rawaeo.e@ghb.co.th

34 Ms. Hathaitip Luangthanaponkul Senior Vice President, Strategic Planning Department 0-2202-1301 hathaitip.l@ghb.co.th          

35 Mr. Wanchat Chitcharoenwarakit Assistant Senior Vice President, Corporate Assessment 
Department and Acting Senior Vice President,
Corporate Assessment Department

0-2202-1274 wanchat@ghb.co.th

36 Mr. Nitichai Soongtrong Senior Vice President, 
Research and Information Services Department

0-2202-2110 nitichai@ghb.co.th

37 Mr. Nisit Aunvijit Senior Vice President, Human Resources Department 0-2202-2146 nisit@ghb.co.th

38 Ms. Saipin Suntiphun Senior Vice President, Learning and Development Department 0-2202-1051 saipin@ghb.co.th

39 Ms. Sureepan Siriapornskul Corporate Communications Department Specialist and Acting 
Senior Vice President, Corporate Communications Department

0-2202-9000
ext 6951

sureepan.s@ghb.co.th 

40 Ms. Suparat Sodsong Senior Vice President,
Corporate Social Responsibility Department

0-2202-2524 suparat@ghb.co.th

41 Mr. Kninruch Dabbaransi Senior Vice President, Risk Management Department 0-2202-2038 kninruch@ghb.co.th

42 Mr. Chitpol Sriteeraviroj Senior Vice President, Credit Review Department 0-2202-1262 chitpol@ghb.co.th

43 Ms. Narumon  Rungrueng Senior Vice President, Metropolitan Support Department 02-202-2667  narumon.r@ghb.co.th

44 Mr. Wanchai Pongboonchoo Senior Vice President,
Bangkok Metropolitan Branch Department 1

0-2202-2212 wanchai.p@ghb.co.th

45 Ms. Chanakarn Chitboriboon Senior Vice President,
Bangkok Metropolitan Branch Department 2

0-2202-2039 chanakarn.c@ghb.co.th

46 Mr. Pongsakorn Tulanont Senior Vice President, North Branch (Uptown) Department 0-5330-4948 pongsakorn@ghb.co.th 

47 Ms. Somsong Sukmano Senior Vice President, North Branch (Downtown) Department 0-55301-716
ext 400

somsong@ghb.co.th

48 Mr. Sanya Sriratana Senior Vice President,
Northeastern Branch (Uptown) Department 

0-2645-9000
ext 6740

sanya.r@ghb.co.th                      

49 Mr. Isara Naowasiri Senior Vice President,
Northeastern Branch (Downtown) Department 

0-2202-1627 isara.n@ghb.co.th

50 Ms. Supornpat Sangaram Senior Vice President
Central and South Branch (Uptown) Department 

0-3442-9353-60 supornpat.s@ghb.co.th

51 Ms. Tanitta Sangthawon Senior Vice President,
Western and South Branch (Downtown) Department 

0-7421-1237-42 tanitta@ghb.co.th

52 Mr. Kriangsak Mahiwan  Assistant Senior Vice President, IT Operating Department 
and Acting Senior Vice President, IT Operating Department 

0-2202-1719 kriangsak@ghb.co.th

53 Ms. Pratanporn Sampaongoen Senior Vice President,
IT Strategic Planning and Support Department 

0-2645-9000
ext 6670

pratanporn.s@ghb.co.th

54 Mr. Apirat Wongmaneeroj Senior Vice President,
Core Business Development Department

0-2202-2646 apirat.w@ghb.co.th

55 Mr. Sompong Narksuetrong   Senior Vice President,
Digital Services  Development Department

0-2202-1415 sompong.n@ghb.co.th 

56 Mr. Sirapong Suwannasri Senior Vice President,
Loan Products Development Department

0-2202-1624 sirapong@ghb.co.th

57 Ms. Vanitharat Boonsuphanith Senior Vice President, Customer Relationship Department  0-2202-1982 vanitharat.b@ghb.co.th
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58 Ms. Darin Kaewngam   Assistant Senior Vice President, Digital Services Banking
Department and Acting Senior Vice President, 
Digital Services Banking Department

0-2202-1297 darin@ghb.co.th

59 Ms. Chintana Songsiri Senior Vice President,
Deposit Products Development Department

0-2202-1756 jintana.s@ghb.co.th

60 Mr. Peeyus Taechatakrantham Bank Inspector and Acting Senior Vice President, 
Deposit and Alliances Department

0-2018-6517 peeyus.t@ghb.co.th

61 Ms. Nungrutai Sari Senior Vice President, Retail Credit  Analysis Department 0-2202-2351 nungrutai@ghb.co.th

62 Ms. Kanchana Kaewyeam Senior Vice President, Project Loan Analysis Department 02-202-1116 kanchana.k@ghb.co.th

63 Ms. Warapron Poosanarat Senior Vice President, Government-Policy and Social-Devel-
opment Loans Department

0-2202-1616  warapron@ghb.co.th

64 Ms. Atchara Munutsar Senior Vice President, Credit Support Department  0-2202-1614 atchara@ghb.co.th

65 Ms. Lavan Wongvivat Senior Vice President, 
Bangkok Metropolitan Debt Management Department

0-2202-1739 lavan@ghb.co.th

66 Mr. Thitapon Phususinlapathorn Senior Vice President, 
Regional Debt  Management Department  

0-2202-2955 thitapon.p@ghb.co.th

67 Mr. Thawat Bunyaphaluk Senior Vice President, Case Management Department 0-2202-1326 thawat.b@ghb.co.th 

68 Ms. Nitikarn Ratanukoon Senior Vice President, NPA Development Department 0-2202-2599 nitikarn.r@ghb.co.th

69 Mr. Akarapol Ringrod Senior Vice President, 
Legal Execution and Deficit Loan Department 

0-2202-1299 akarapol.r@ghb.co.th

70 Mr. Krisda Pattamapalin  Senior Vice President, Compliances Department 0-2202-1251  krisda@ghb.co.th

71 Mr. Nuntawut Suksawang Senior  Vice President, Legal Department  0-2202-1235 nuntawut@ghb.co.th

72 Mr. Chatchai Chottikumporn Assistant Senior Vice President Office and Branch 
Administration Department  and Acting Senior Vice President, 
Office and Branch Adminstration Department  

0-2202-1008 chatchai.c@ghb.co.th

73 Mr. Pisan Kongsup Senior Vice President, Procurement Department 0-2202-1434 pisan.k@ghb.co.th

74 Ms. Rathsachon Kittisawetpong Senior Vice President,  Accounting Department 0-2202-1860 rathsachon.k@ghb.co.th

75 Ms. Piyawan Anongjanya Senior Vice President, Cash Management Department 0-2202-1503 piyawan@ghb.co.th

76 Ms. Prawrat Ratanamongkolkasem Senior Vice President, Treasury Department 0-2202-2180 prawrat@ghb.co.th

77 Mr. Korapol Chinpat Senior Vice President, 
Secondary Mortgage Business Department

0-2018-6505 korapol.c@ghb.co.th

78 Mr. Niwat Sawangvun Senior Vice President, Collateral Appraisal Department 0-2202-1323 niwat@ghb.co.th

79 Mr. Tawat Sa-ubon Assistant Senior Vice President, Loan Documents Department  
and Acting Senior Vice President, Loan Documents Department

0-2202-1337 tawat.sa@ghb.co.th

80 Mr. Nigorn Archankul Bank Inspector 0-2202-1520 nigorn@ghb.co.th

81 Mr. Chokchai Julasinthanaporn Bank Inspector 0-2202-2373 chokchai@ghb.co.th

82 Mr. Amnat Phonsiri Bank Inspector 0-2202-2220 amnat@ghb.co.th
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G H Bank Directory

SCAN QR code for information
of nationwide branches






